CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

and

WORK SESSION MEETING

March 9, 2015

Town Hall Room, Meridian Municipal Building
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M| 48864

Regular Meeting

1.

2.

Call meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m.'
Approval of agenda
Approval of minutes

A. February 23, 2015 Regular Meeting

B. February 23, 2015 Work Session Meeting

Public remarks

Communications

A Eckhart Dersch RE:
B. Michael Corr RE:
C. Ken and Brenda Miller RE:
D. Michael Corr RE:
E. Teresa Parsons RE:

Public Hearings

Meridian Mall Proposed Development
REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)

A Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC), request to rezone approximately 39.46

acres from | (Industrial), PO (Professional and Office), RR (Rural Residential), and
C-2 (Commercial) to C-2 (Commercial) with an offer of conditions to develop as a
mixed use planned unit development and restrict density to no more than 18
dwelling units per acre. The site has frontage on Kansas Street and Jolly Oak

Road

B. Rezoning #15020 (George F. Eyde Family, LLC) request to rezone approximately

8.7 acres from PO (Professional Office) and RA (Single Family, Medium Density)
to C-2 (Commercial) at 1614 and 1622 Grand River Avenue and an undeveloped

parcel on Central Park Drive

Unfinished Business




Planning Commission Agenda
March 9, 2015
Page 2

8.

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

Other Business
A. 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Schedule amendment

Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or
reports

New Applications

Site Plans received

Site Plans approved

A Site Plan Review #15-01-30 (Michigan State University Federal Credit Union),

request to amend an approved site plan to add four parking spaces at 1775
Central Park Drive

B. Site Plan Review #15-14-04 (Wolverine Building Group), request to amend an
approved site plan to add 2,080 square feet to the Whole Food’s building under
construction at 2750 Grand River

Public Remarks

Adjournment

Post Script: None

The Planning Commission's Bylaws state agenda items shall not be introduced for discussion or
public hearing that is opened after 10:00 p.m. The chair may approve exceptions when this rule
would cause substantial backlog in Commission business (Rule 5.14 Limit on Introduction of
Agenda ltems).

Persons wishing to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission to the Township Board in the
granting of a Special Use Permit must do so within ten (10) days of the decision of the Planning
Commission (Sub-section 86-189 of the Zoning Ordinance)

Work Session Meeting

1.

2.

Call meeting to order
Approval of agenda
Discussion

A. 2005 Master Plan Update
Public remarks

Adjournment




TENTATIVE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Work Session Meeting
March 16, 2015

Meridian Area Resource Center (MARC)
4675 Okemos Rd. Okemos, M.

Call meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.
Approval of agenda

Discussion

A. 2005 Master Plan Update

Public remarks

Adjournment




TENTATIVE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Regular Meeting
March 23, 2015

Town Hall Room, Meridian Municipal Building
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M| 48864

Regular Meeting

1. Public Hearings

2. Unfinished Business

B. Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC), request to rezone approximately 39.46
acres from | (Industrial), PO (Professional and Office), RR (Rural Residential), and
C-2 (Commercial) to C-2 (Commercial) with an offer of conditions to develop as a
mixed use planned unit development and restrict density to no more than 18
dwelling units per acre. The site has frontage on Kansas Street and Jolly Oak
Road

C. Rezoning #15020 (George F. Eyde Family, LLC) request to rezone approximately
8.7 acres from PO (Professional Office) and RA (Single Family, Medium Density)
to C-2 (Commercial) at 1614 and 1622 Grand River Avenue and an undeveloped
parcel on Central Park Drive

3. Other Business

Work Session Meeting

A. 2005 Master Plan Update

G:\PLANNING\Plan Comm\AGENDAS\2015\3-9-15 agenda.doc




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION DRAFT
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
February 23, 2015

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864-1198
853-4000, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.IM.

PRESENT: Commissioners Cordill, DeGroff, Deits, Ianni, Jackson, Scott-Craig, Tenaglia, Vanv

Coevering

ABSENT: Commissioner Honicky

STAFF: Director of Community Planning and Development Mark Kieselbach, Principal Planner
Oranchak :

Call meeting to order
Chair Scott-Craig called the regular meeting to order at 7:02 P.M.

Approval of agenda
Commissioner DeGroff moved to approve the agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Cordill.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 8-0.

Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Ianni moved to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of January 26, 2015 and
the Work Session Meeting Minutes of January 26, 2015 and February 9, 2015. Seconded by
Commissioner Tenaglia.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 8-0.

Public Remarks
Chair Scott-Craig opened the floor for public remarks.

Chris Buck, 2642 Loon Lane, Okemos, spoke in support of the Okemos Pointe Mixed Use Planned
Unit Development (MUPUD) Concept Plan.

Chair Scott-Craig closed public remarks.
Communications (None)

Public hearings (None)

Unfinished Business (None)

Other Business

A. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development Concept Plan - Okemos Town Center (Kansas Street and
Jolly Oak Road)
Director Kieselbach offered a brief synopsis of the MUPUD concept plan.

Brent Forsberg, 2422 Jolly Road, Okemos, offered updates as a result of visits to the site by
Planning Commissioners and Township Board members. He reported there will be an open
forum meeting tomorrow night for the neighbors on Kansas Street followed by a meeting at 2398
Jolly Road on March 5™ at 6:00 P.M. for a broader spectrum of nearby residents and businesses.
Mr. Forsberg indicated he has entered into discussions with the Greater Lansing Housing
Coalition relative to affordable housing, scheduled a meeting with Michigan Energy Options to




Plamning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
February 23, 2015
Page 2

use best practices in the project and scheduled a meeting with the Okemos School District
concerning the project’s impact on the school system. He noted talks with the neighbors have
shown an interest in adding a small grocer component in existing vacant space.

Planning Commission and applicant discussion:

e Appreciation for affordable housing within the project

e Affordable housing and energy options are two elements which make this project “special”

e Developer is a sponsor of ICE which is a five-year affordable housing plan being developed
by the Greater Lansing Housing Coalition and Mid-Michigan Program for Greater
Sustainability for the Tri-County area

e Meeting scheduled with the Greater Lansing Housing Coalition to fill out the 40-page

application

Appreciation for the property owner’s proactive approach to this plan

Affordable housing would be interspersed throughout the housing component

Potential grocer would be part of the property on which the project is located

Potential grocer would be another use in an existing building on the property

Rezoning application has capped the density at 18 dwelling units per acre

Product mix is projected to be near 14 dwelling units per acre

Planning Commission will have the rezoning request come before it in the near future, with

the request conditioned upon a MUPUD

e Applicant could have brought this project before the Planning Commission prior to bulldmg
the hotel which would have included more commercial and more closely resembled true
mixed use development

e Planning Commission needs to have a more global picture relative to processes for
development

e List of amenities within the MUPUD is not meant to be exhaustive (e.g., affordable housing)

® & o o o o o

. Commercial Planned Unit Development (CPUD) Concept Plan — Meridian Mall (new building)
Director Kieselbach summarized the concept plan for the proposed CPUD as outlined in staff
memorandum dated February 20, 2015.

Jeff Kyes, KEBS, Inc. 2116 Haslett Road, Okemos and representative for CBL Properties, stated
it is the applicant’s intent to retain both the current pervious/impervious calculation and the
parking ratio from the original CPUD. He indicated he has applied for a permit to work in the
floodplain from the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) through the joint
permit application process, but has not yet applied for the special use permit (SUP) for a drive-
through window. Mr. Kyes noted the goal is to redevelop the area which previously housed a
bank, but some trees are proposed to be cut to provide a view of the commercial site from both
Marsh Road and from Grand River Avenue, adding the parcel is “very limited” due to the gas
main PIPELINE running through the site accompanied by a large easement. He stated a board
certified master arborist has been retained to provide a report on the condition of the property’s
cottonwood, ash and pine trees. Mr. Kyes indicated the proposed project would fill 54 cubic yards
of floodplain with a commensurate amount of compensating cut.

Planning Commission and applicant’s representative discussion:

o Cottonwoods are “dirty” trees

Planning Commissioner belief the applicant is approaching this project “all wrong”

Concern with parking close to Grand River Avenue

Site line is for visibility of the driveway

Commissioner suggestion for the applicant to clear the trees and then plant trees which can be
seen through to provide a “park-like” environment




Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
February 23, 2015
Page 3

¢ Planning Commissioner preference to handle visibility of the site through signage v. clear cut
of trees

¢ Planning Commissioner preference for the applicant to garner the services of a landscape
architect

¢ Possible achievability of a site line by cutting down diseased and damaged trees

e Applicant does not currently have a tenant for the property as they are first seeking approval

o Gas pipeline easement and floodplain prevent placing the building closer to Grand River
Avenue

o Township preference to have the greenspace on the eastern side of the main mall entrance on
Grand River remain as is ‘

e Capital Area Transportation Authority’s (CATA’s) bus rapid transit (BRT) proposal does not
work for the mall’s property owner (CBL) as it adversely affects one of Meridian Mall’s
largest anchor stores

e Vision for non-motorized transportation from Grand River Avenue into the applicant’s
property

e Easement is written is such a way that it allows for parking on the easement, but not a

building

Concept plan is the maximum which would be requested on the site

Synopsis of the history on the eastern greenspace section

Building on the eastern greenspace area would allow for less tree removal

Movement of the building closer to the drive may provide better sight lines

Curb cut entrance to this site off Grand River Avenue creates traffic issues

Drive through window creates significant demands on the property

Planning Commissioner belief the argument by the applicant for the need of sight lines to the

building is not valid because of ready availability of global positioning systems (GPS)

o Internal roads are technically off-street parking approved by the Township at the time of
construction

e Connection to Grand River Avenue would be under the jurisdiction of the Michigan
Department of Transportation (MDOT)

e Concern with maneuverability of traffic into the subject property traveling westbound on
Grand River ‘

o Concern with alignment of the curb cut on the dog leg off Grand River Avenue

e Single internal curb cut into the property off the northern internal road frees up frontage and
the building can be moved closer to Grand River Avenue

. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development Concept Plan — The Avenue on Grand River (Meridian
Pointe — 2655 Grand River Avenue) '

Director Kieselbach summarized the concept plan as outlined in staff memorandum dated
February 19, 2015.

John Gaber, Williams, Williams, Rattner & Plunkett, 380 North Old -Woodward, Suite 300,
Birmingham, offered an overview of the surrounding uses on both sides of Grand River Avenue.
He displayed the multi-family residential component of the MUPUD at a density of up to 18
dwelling units per acre (accompanied by corresponding permissible amenities), with the
commercial component already home to Foods for Living, State of Fitness and a Salvation Army
store. Mr. Gaber addressed the “synergy” created among the residential and retail components.
He noted the average of 1.9 beds per unit focuses on grad students and graduates interested in
starting their own businesses as tenants, with an entrepreneurial hub which contains conference
rooms, meeting rooms, offices, group work spaces, etc. :




Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
February 23, 2015
Page 4

Ray Behling, Director of Design and Construction, Campus Village Communities, 919 West
University Drive, Suite 700, Rochester, offered an extensive overview of the layout of the
proposed housing development and surrounding amenities.

Planning Commission and developer discussion:

e Pervious/impervious ratio

e Concern there is not enough pervious surface

¢ Some of the area shaded in gray on the plan (e.g., fire pits) may consist of a pervious paver

material

Frequency of train traffic

Setback requirement from industrial to multi-family residential

Proposed project does not have a commercial component to it

Inquiry if the Township’s ordinance allows for a MUPUD with no commercial development

Variances and setbacks needed if the project was developed as a multi-family housing project

Project has “community” built into it on Grand River, which provides density on a major

corridor

Appreciation for the applicant’s consideration of walkability and bus stop location

e Concern with compromises Planning Commissioners will need to make (e.g. setbacks from
the railroad, ordinance requirements) in order for this project to happen

e MUPUD ordinances are typically adopted by communities to allow for flexibility

e Project adds commercial space for tenant use and office space for tenant’s entrepreneurial
pursuits within the clubhouse

e Proposed area will allow for possible redevelopment of some of the commercial space in the
future

e Review of the ordinance needed to determine if existing commercial development on the land
can be counted towards the MUPUD requirements

e One parking space allotted for each bed within the entire development

o Developer’s belief the existing retail parking space is “over parked”

o Shared parking calculation is normal for mixed use development as not everyone is using
every space at the same time all the time

e Proposed parking configuration would require some residents to park in an assigned spot on

the other side of Foods for Living with a small reduction in rent

Entrepreneurial center can be reserved by residents only

Existing commercial and proposed development will be under the same ownership

12.65 acres is three separate tax parcels all under common ownership

Developer intends to purchase the entire 12.65 acres

Meridian’s PUD ordinance allows for ownership to be split in a variety of ways

Planning Commissioner suggestion to open up entrepreneurial space to the “arts”

Number of gallons in flammable fuel transported by railroad has increased 40 fold over the

last several years

In 2014, there were 121 reported railroad accidents

Concern with placing housing close to the railroad tracks

Difficulty in moving away from the required setback from the railroad tracks

MUPUD ordinance states that residents shall be as far as possible from railroad tracks

There is a maximum impervious surface of 70% in the underlining C-2 zoning

One amenity would be more pervious surface

Developer anticipates a mixture of tenants

Suggestion to run a shuttle bus to the university as an amenity

Necessity for screening from the adjacent industrial area on Dawn Avenue

Current easement into Dawn Avenue from the subject property




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
February 23, 2015
Page 5

¢ Subject property could connect to the Pathway Master Plan

Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or reports
Commissioner Jackson stated the number of trains which run through Meridian Township is cited in
the Infrastructure Chapter of the Master Plan.

Chair Scott-Craig reported receipt of copies of the Economic Development Corporation (EDC) report
on its meeting with developers and suggested the document be a Planning Commission topic of
discussion in the near future. He reminded fellow Commissioners of the Site Plan Review Training
on March 5, 2015 from 5:00 PM until 9:00 PM at the Hampton Inn.

New applications .

A. Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC), request to rezone approximately 39.46 acres from I
(Industrial), PO (Professional and Office) and C-2 (Commercial) to C-2 (Commercial) with an offer
of conditions to develop as a mixed use planned unit development and restrict density to no more
than 18 dwelling units per acre. The site has frontage on Kansas Street and Jolly Oak Road.

B. Rezoning #15020 (George F. Eyde Family, LLC) request to rezone approximately 8.7 acres from
PO (Professional Office) and RA (Single Family, Medium Density) to C-2 (Commercial) at 1614
and 1622 Grand River Avenue and an undeveloped parcel on Central Park Drive

Site plans received
A. Site Plan Review #15-01-30 (Michigan State University Federal Credit Union), request to amend an
approved site plan to add four parking spaces at 1775 Central Park Drive

B. Site Plan Review #15-01 (Fedewa), request to develop a 5-unit townhouse project to be located at
2043 Hamilton Road

C. Site Plan Review #15-14-14 (Boomer Group), request to amend an approved site plan for an all-
suites hotel by increasing the building size from 57,000 to 62,684 square feet and increasing the
number of rooms from 107 to 111, to be located at the northeast corner of Jolly Oak Road and
Water Lily Way (2350 Jolly Oak Road)

D. Site Plan Review #15-14-04-2 (Wolverine Building Group), request to amend an approved site plan
to add 2,080 square feet to the Whole Food’s building under construction at 2750 Grand River

E. Site Plan Review #15-14-04-2 (Wolverine Building Group), request to amend an approved site plan
to add a 3,275 square foot mezzanine to the Whole Food’s building under construction at 2750
Grand River

Site plans approved
A. Site Plan Review #15-04-2 (Wolverine Building Group), request to amend an approved site plan to
add 3,600 square feet to the Whole Food’s building under construction at 2750 Grand River

Avenue

B. Site Plan Review #15-15 (Dawn Avenue Associates), request for a roof addition, redesign of the
parking lot and stormwater management plan at 4884 Dawn Avenue

C. Site Plan Review #15-88-13-2 (St. Martha Church), request to amend an approved site plan to
reduce the building addition size at 1100 Grand River Avenue

Public remarks
Chair Scott-Craig opened and closed public remarks.




Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-

14. Adjournment \
Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at 9:04 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sandra K. Otto
Recording Secretary

February 23,2015
Page 6




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN DRAFT
PLANNING COMMISSION
WORK SESSION MINUTES
February 23, 2015
5151 Marsh Roéd, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
Town Hall Rom, 517-853-4560

PRESENT: Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Jackson, Commissioners Deits, Ianni, Cordill, Tenaglia

and De Groff
ABSENT: Commissioners Honicky and Van Coevering
STAFF: Principal Planner Gail Oranchak

1. Call meeting to order

Chair Scott-Craig called the work session meeting to order at approximately 9:15 P.M.
2. Approval of agenda

Unanimous consent to proceed with the agenda as written.
3. Discussion

A. Master Plan Update — Plan Structure

Difficulty making the transition to a goals oriented structure

2005 Master Plan structure not working

Hands-on working session to accomplish initial work

Work session meeting on March 16 possibly at the MARC

Identify gaps in the old plan to include in the new one

Physically break up the 2005 plan into sections for the work session

Each goal to be supported by information

Structure of short narratives with large appendices where data will be stored

Narratives will include where are we now, data supporting changes needed to achieve where
we want to go, with objectives and strategies to identify how we will get there

Structure and author(s) undecided

e Commissioner Deits will prepare an example of a chapter template for Goal #1 before the
March 16 work session

4. Adjournment
Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the meeting at approximately 10:15 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Gail Oranchak, AICP
Principal Planner




2205 Butternut Drive Pﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁg‘ﬁ N

Okemos, Mi 48866 S
February 23, 2015 FEB 2 4 2015

PR~

"“‘T;:Nw..

L;'TJKJLJU UP’S ;

Meridian Township Planning Commission . ‘ S—————
5151 Marsh Road ‘
Okemos, M| 48864

RE: PROPOSED COMMERCIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AT MERIDIAN MALL

Dear Commissioners: Scott-Craig, Chair
Herring Jackson, Vice Chair
Van Coevering
DeGroff
Deits
lanni
Tenaglia,

A sudden high fever prevented me from aftending your meeting this evening. However, | believe that it
is important for me to bring to your attention several red-flags associated with the Commercial Planned
Unit Development proposed for the southwest corner of the Mall property. They are:

1. The official Soil Survey of Ingham County maps the entire C-PUD site as Hn (Houghton Muck).
The report further emphasizes that Hn is characterized by severe limitations for all of the
following:

a. Shallow excavations

b. Dwellings with or without basements

¢.  Small commercial buildings

d. Local roads and streets
. The primary reasons given for these limitations are: excess humus, subsidence, low bearing
strength, and ponding. In addition, the Soil Survey warns that: “Building site development and
sanitary facilities are not practical on this (Hn) soil. The limitations caused by the high water
table, flooding, and the instability of the soil are difficult to overcome.

2. .Several years ago the Mall Corporation sutcessfu”y argued that this area was unbuildable, and
was consequently granted a waiver of property tax on this same land (I do not know if this
continues to be the case),

3. Despite warnings by LINC, a bank building was approved for construction on this same site
several years ago. A short time after completion, a massive structural failure occurred due to
very unstable soil conditions, and the nearly new bank building had to be torn down and

removed.

4. More recently, yet another commercial structure was proposed for this same site, but the
developer wisely withdrew the proposal upon learning of the severe problems associated with
this site. '




5. This site, ASIT IS, is already an extremely valuable natural island providing many important
environmental benefits to the community. Among these are:
a. The wooded wetland and its surrounding wet areas serve as a natural sump for
" runoff from all surrounding land and parking lots (to the west).
. It helps filter and clean surface runoff from surrounding areas.
c. Itservesasamuch needed green island which bréaks-up the monotony of wall-to-
wall commercial development along Grand River Avenue.: (It also will greatly
enhance the Grand River Corridor concept currently being developed).

IN CONCLUSION, let us learn from the history of this site and not make the same mistakes again. It will
be to everyone’s advantage (developer, Township planners and officials, and residents of the broader
community) to keep and even enhance this site as an attractive green island within the commercial

district of our community.

Sincerely,
(Sent via email attachment)

Eckhart Dersch

- Cc: Gail Oranchak
Meridian Township Board of Trustees




February 24, 2015

Charter Township of Meridian
Martha Wyatt

Associate Planner

5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M. 48864

RE: Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)

Dear Martha:

| recently received correspondence notifying me, as an adjacent property owner, of the proposed
rezoning of 39.46 acres owned by Forsberg Family, LLC (#15010).

As you know, as a commercial developer, | am always-a strong proponent of development and growth.
In principle, | am in favor of growth in the Jolly-Okemos interchange, but am admittedly apprehensive
when it may come at the cost of one of the very few well wooded sanctuaries this area has left.

My property backs right up to the existing wooded area/wetland (facing South) and am fortunate to
have the occasional visit from many deer, wild turkey and other wildlife and do not wish to have that
diminished as it brings much intrinsic value to living there.

| do not intend for my comments to convey an opinion of disapproval for the proposed rezoning and
eventual development. So long, however, as the existing natural habitat and woodlands are protected
and preserved as much as possible and that the MDEQ wetlands and associated boundaries are
observed as law dictates.

Please contact me if you have any questions or wish to discuss this further. Thank you very much for
your time and consideration.

Regards,

Michael Corr

2355 Coyote Creek Drive

Okemos, MI. 48864

{517) 333-5300
michaelcprr@corrcommercial.com

(!

CH

i

i |
il




March 9, 2015

Ken & Brenda Miller
3681 Kansas Rd.
Okemos, MI. 48864

To; Meridian Township Planning Commission

RE: Oppose - Rezoning #15010 (T.A. Forsberg, Iric.)

Due to unfortunate circumstances the Miller’s will not be able to attend the March 9®
public hearing regarding a rezoning request. Let’s get to the point; we STRONGLY
“OPPOSE” the rezoning request on Kansas Rd. The Forsberg camp has already come
before the board in the past with this same request, at that time they were given the
boards blessing to build three houses on the Rural Residential properties on Kansas Rd.

We feel what Forsberg is proposing will have an adverse effect on every family who lives
on Kansas Rd. We all chose this older neighborhood because of its rustic Rural
Residential appeal. This neighborhood has what is left in Meridian Township as a good
wholesome country feel, we are a NEIGHBORHOOD, and we want it to stay this way.

Rezoning this parcel definitely purposes many concerns, the biggest, our Property
Values Decreasing, noise and light pollution, invasion of privacy, excessive
infrastructure that we would all have to endure due to the apartment building bordering
Kansas, not to mention the buffer that Forsberg has proposed would take years to mature.
It would be difficult to put in enough dense vegetation for screening purposes
surrounding the edges that border Kansas Rd.

The impact issues on Kansas Rd. that we find very misleading is the fire access path
which opens up a whole new concern for the residents on this road. Before you know it
you have people thinking this is the perfect short cut, the next thing is that it becomes a
paved road connecting to Kansas Rd. We have seen similar type of proposals in the past
right here in Meridian Twp. over the past couple decades. ‘

We the Kansas Road neighborhood, encourage the Township Planning Commission NOT
to grant this rezoning request. Our family, like 99% of all the families on Kansas Road
OPPOSE this endeavor.

Thank you for your time,
Sincerely,

Mr, & Mrs. Kenneth A. Miller




Gail Oranchak

From: Martha Wyatt

Sent: Friday, March 06, 2015 10:18 AM

To: . Gail Oranchak :

Subject: - FW: Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)

Martha Wyatt

Assaciate Planner/Landscape Architect
Phone: 517.853.4580

Fax: 517.853.4095
wyatt@meridian.mi.us
www.meridian.mi.us

From: Michael Corr [mailto:michaelcorr@corrcommercial.com]
Sent: Thursday, March 05, 2015 2:03 PM

To: Martha Wyatt

Cc: jen.gamm@gmail.com

Subject: Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)

Hi Martha:

You're most likely aware that | mailed you a letter last week, in reference to the rezoning of a 39.46 acre of land, #15101
(Forsberg Family, LLC).

After learning more and having more details of the project become known to me, | wish to amend my letter from a
somewhat conditional approval of the rezoning/development to an outright and vehement disapproval.

In addition to the concerns | raised in my letter, | also have sincere concerns over the impact that a development of this
size will have on the current infrastructure of the immediate area. That area is already overly impacted by heavy traffic
flow and noise and | cannot fathom to imagine what an additional 1,000+ cars per day will do to further strain the
infrastructure, living conditions and environment.

There exists a parking lot that connects the newly constructed Michigan Dental Association building with Jolly Oak

Road. The residents will naturally utilize that as a “cut through” to Coyote Creek Drive to access Okemos Rd., which will
be a direct negative impact on my neighborhood. Coyote Creek Condos is a very quiet and somewhat hidden
community, which is why many of the residents live there. This large development will have direct and adverse effects
to the quality of living there and will surely affect property values and taxable values.

I also very much question the need for such a sizable influx of multi-family units in Meridian Township.

I know you are someone who very much values the opinions of Meridian Township’s residents. And has always strived
to create and uphold a community that is aesthetically attractive, functions efficiently and has the best interests of
Meridian’s residents at heart. The rezoning and future proposed development of 500 multi-family units is certainly not
in the best interest of the current residents that it will impact and it is certainly not in the best interest of Meridian
Township. | humbly ask that The Meridian Township Planning Commission deny the proposed rezoning request.

Thank you, Martha and please do not hesitate to contact me.

1




Regards,
CORR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE, INC.

Michael J. Corr

Vice President | Associate Broker

Ph: (517) 333.5300 | michaelcorr@corrcommercial.com
300 Frandor Avenue | 2™ Floor | Lansing, MI. 48912




Gail Oranchak

From: Martha Wyatt

Sent: Friday, March 06, 2015 2:32 PM

To: Gail Oranchak

Subject: FW: An official communication regarding Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Martha Wyatt

Associate Planner/Landscape Architect
Phone: 517.853.4580

Fax: 517.853.4095
wyatt@meridian.mi.us
www.meridian.mi.us

From: Teresa Parsons [mailto:teresaparsons12@yahoo.com]

Sent: Friday, March 06, 2015 2:14 PM

To: oranchak@meridian.mi.usor; Martha Wyatt

Subject: An official communication regarding Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)

My name is Teresa Parsons who is a resident in Coyote Creek Condos, 2346 Taos Trail, Okemos, MI. I strongly oppose
Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC) but cannot attend the township meeting. I would like my opposition to be an official
communication regarding Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC).

I have many concerns over the impact that a development of this size will have on the current infrastructure of the immediate
area. The area is already overly impacted by heavy traffic flow and noise and I cannot begin to imagine what an additional
1,000+ cars per day will do to further strain the infrastructure, living conditions and environment,

There exists a parking lot that connects the newly constructed Michigan Dental Association building with Jolly Oak Road. The
residents will naturally utilize that as a “cut through” to Coyote Creek Drive to access Okemos Rd., which will be a direct
negative impact on my neighborhood. Coyote Creek Condos is a very quiet and somewhat hidden community, which is why I
chose to purchase a home in Coyote Creek. This large development will have direct and adverse effects to the quality of living
there and will surely affect property values and taxable values.

I also very much question the need for such a sizable influx of multi-family units in Meridian Township and my fear is my
property value be reduced significantly.

Thank you for your help regarding the matter.




Rezoning #15010
(Forsberg Family LLC)
March 5, 2015

APPLICANT: v Forsberg Family, LLC
2422 Jolly Road
Okemos, M| 48864

STATUS OF APPLICANT: Owner

REQUEST: Rezone to C-2* (Commercial)

CURRENT ZONING: PO (Professional and Office), | (Industrial)) RR (Rural
Residential) and C-2 (Commercial)

LOCATION: North of Jolly Road, west of Jolly Oak Road and Water Lily
Way, and easts of Kansas Street

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE: 39.46 acres

EXISTING LAND USE: ; Industrial/Office/Warehouse buildings and Undeveloped

EXISTING LAND USES
IN AREA: North: Coyote Creek Condominiums and Consumer’s
Power Right-of-Way
South: Commercial and Farrins Parkway
East: Office building and hotel
West: Single-family residential and Kansas Street

CURRENT ZONING IN AREA: North: RD (Multiple Family, 8 units per acre)
South: C-2 (Commercial)
East: PO (Professional and Office)
West: RR (Rural Residential) and RA (Single Family,
Medium Density) residential

FUTURE LAND USE

DESIGNATION: Office

FUTURE LAND USE MAP: North: Office
South: Commercial
East: Office

West: Office




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission

FROM - fjﬂf‘ e MW Mk

"Gail Oranchak, AICP
Principal Planner

DATE: March 5, 2015

RE: Rezoning #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC), request to conditionally rezone
approximately 39.46 acres from | (Industrial), PO (Professional and Office), RR
(Rural Residential) and C-2 (Commercial) to C-2* (Commercial)

Forsberg Family, LLC has requested the rezoning of approximately 39.46 acres located north of
Jolly Road, west of Jolly Oak Road and east of Kansas Street from | (Industrial), PO (Professional
and Office), RR (Rural Residential) and C-2 (Commercial) to C-2 (Commercial) with the voluntary
offer of two conditions: to develop the site as a mixed use planned unit development and to limit
density to no more than 18 dwelling units per acre. The site has frontage on two public streets,
Jolly Oak Road and Kansas Street.

Master Plan

The 2005 Master Plan designates the subject site in the Office, Residential 0.5 — 1.25 dwelling
units per acre, and Residential 5.0 — 8.0 dwelling units per acre categories.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Legend
1 RESIDEN TIAL 0.5-1:25 DUJA

la_a] RESIDENTIAL1.25-3.5 DU/A
| [[L]] RESIDENTIAL 5.0-8.0 DU/A

FEHH comMERCIAL

B2 oFricE

i [ ] water

| 7] iNsTiTunoNAL

Kl
PRV 1 =
| B s e s s B i (
i < VPR g
d P N 2
..... PP Q
— £ 5 F 7
.\. ie s o - T
. h i1}
L4 s @ A
-
49 o a - v
— ¢4 - -
g * o & F=t b
e P {
. %‘
|| L

~Jolly Rd




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 2

Zoning

The subject site is zoned PO (Professional and Office), | (Industrial), RR (Rural Residential, and
C-2 (Commercial). Lot area is approximately 39.46 acres (1,718,877.6 square feet). Lot width
measures approximately 425 feet along Jolly Oak Road and 564 feet along Kansas Street. The

site’s lot width and lot area exceed the C-2 district minimum requirements of 100 feet of lot width
and 4,000 square feet of lot area.

ZONING MAP
RX l " Re [
| NodIDDDDoom
ralaas Ernrnnodiine Do
RR
4 . A |
1B 2
8 s g
: 2 ;
< c2 | &
[«
PO ! 0 3
Jolly Road

Physical Features

The majority of the site is undeveloped. Three structures, a 19,500 square foot industrial/light
manufacturing building, a 9,040 square foot office/warehouse/storage building and a 2,400 square
foot storage/warehouse building occupy the approximate three acre Industrial zoned area located
on Jolly Oak Road. The area behind the three buildings has been used to park and store -
construction equipment and semi-trailers associated with industrial uses. Wooded areas occur to

the west along Kansas Street and to the east north of Farrins Parkway. The Smith Drain pond is
located on land furthest to the north.




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 3 ‘

Topographically, the site is gently sloping east of the Smith drain with elevations ranging from
866.4 feet above mean sea level to approximately 875 feet above mean sea level. South of the
Smith Drain pond and west of the drain, elevations rise to a high of 888 feet above mean sea level
and then decline to approximately 880 feet along Kansas Street.

Floodplain

Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) for Meridian Township show floodway and floodway fringe
areas associated with the Smith Drain are present on the site.

FLOODPLAIN MAP

SR

‘@m‘\\\\\

&

emmmnoiOinm Do
& I I (000 (7T -

Taos T

ol

/

Okemos Rd
TT

!

a R

AV

ndian

Kansas St|.

T [ [ 4

Jolly Road

Wellands

The Township Wetland Map shows Wetland #33-32, associated with the Smith Drain traverses
the site from south to north.




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 4

WETLAND MAP

Kansas St

SN DpdETonnno
AEnnodiioy Do
i $=myyg

Neasmne- R

Soils

The following predominant soil types are

Jolly Road

found at the subject site:

SOIL ASSOCIATION SEVERE LIMITATIONS

AnA (Aubbeenaubbee) Wetness

Hn (Houghton) Subsides, Ponding, Low
Strength

MaC (Marlette) Slope

MtB (Metea) None

OsB (Oshtemo) None

OwB (Owosso) None

Sb (Sebewa) Ponding

SpC (Spinks) Slope

Source: Soil Survey of Ingham County, Michigan. 1992.




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 5

SOILS MAP

N h |
% ;ﬂ oy

i oA nn |

: s;& HIHHM:\ ‘.

O3B = N -
/B - [AnAlf

Streets and Traffic

The site has frontage on Jolly Oak Road and Kansas Street, both public streets. The partially
constructed Water Lily Way extending north from Jolly Oak Road and Farrins Parkway, a private
road, also provide access to the site.

The two-lane Jolly Oak Road is designated as a local street on the Street Setbacks and Service
Drives Map, Section 86-365 of the zoning ordinance. It connects with both Okemos Road to the
east of the site and Jolly Road south of the site. An Ingham County Road Department traffic
count from 2008 showed average weekday vehicle trips for both directions totaled 3,187 with the
a.m. peak hour between 11:00 a.m. and 12 noon and the p.m. peak hour between 1:00 p.m. and
2:00 p.m.

Kansas Street is a two-lane unpaved local road. It extends approximately 2,000 feet north of Jolly
Road and then curves to the east for approximately 250 feet where it terminates in a dead end. At
least one property has access to Kansas Street via an easement over the subject site. Traffic
counts are not available for Kansas Street.

The Planning Commission authorized the extension of Jolly Oak Road northward as a public
street named Water Lily Way in 1999. In recent years, curb and gutter have been installed but




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 6

the road has not been paved. The Ingham County Road Department will not accept the road as
public until it is completed to its standards and inspected.

Farrins Parkway is a private road serving sites in the Okemos Pointe Office Park condominium.
Design of the road received site plan review (SPR #08-08) approval in 2008. A wetland use
permit was required to fill a portion of Meridian Township Wetland #33-2 to construct the road as
designed. The road has received a base course of asphalt but the final course has not been
installed.

The applicant’s traffic consultant prepared a traffic study for a 500 unit multiple family apartment
complex to be built in two phases (2016 and 2018) of 250 units each while the site plan, which has
not been included as one of the conditions for rezoning, shows 466 units. Trips associated with
the Michigan State Federal Credit Union under construction at this time have been factored into
the report. The analysis shows each 250-unit phase will generate 126 total trips during the AM
peak hour and 155 trips during the PM peak hour.

Both the Township traffic consultant and Ingham County Road Department staff reviewed the
applicant’s traffic study. Most concerning for both is the operation of the Okemos Road/Jolly
Road intersection. Comments included:

e Traffic studies associated with the Jackson National Life expansion, scheduled for
completion in August 2015 and fully populated in two years, show the potential for
intersection operations to affect 1-96 operations.

¢ Update turning counts for the Okemos Road and Jolly Road intersection. The most recent
counts were taken in June, 2013 and are dated.

s Since the intersection already functions poorly, Jackson National Life traffic data and data
from other committed projects (all-suites hotel) should be incorporated into traffic studies if
they have impacts on the same adjacent roadway network to provide a more thorough
evaluation. ‘

e Provide a table listing the total quantity of trips generated by the proposed development
and the quantity of trips approaching each of the four intersection approaches during the
AM and PM peak hours.

e Consider reducing lane width to construct right turn lanes.

e Request for a discussion on how the addition of a southbound right turn lane would
mitigate the lowering of the intersection level of service (LOS) from LOS E to LOS F when
Phase 2 of the project comes online in 2018.

The Township’s traffic consultant also commented on the lack of information for pedestrian and
bicycle movements. Road diets on several streets may provide the solution for non-motorized
facilities.

Utilities

Public sanitary sewer and water lines in the vicinity of the site are available for connection.




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 7

Staff Analysis

The applicant requested rezoning an approximately 39.46 acre site located north of Jolly Road,
west of Jolly Oak road and Water Lily Way, and east of Kansas Street from PO (Professional
Office), | (Industrial), RR (Rural Residential) and C-2 (Commercial) to *C-2 (Commercial) with the
offer of two conditions to develop the site as a mixed use planned unit development and cap
residential density at 18 dwelling units per acre. The Township zoning ordinance acknowledges
the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act’s authorization of voluntary conditional rezonings in Section 86-
96(3) which states, in part, “the Township may establish a time period during which the condition
applies to the land.” The Township may approve the conditional rezoning as proposed or deny it
but may not require the applicant to revise the conditions.

Although it is typical to consider all uses permitted by right and by special use permit in both the
existing and proposed zoning districts, in this case the applicant has requested conditional
rezoning for a mixed use planned unit development with the housing component at not more than
18 dwelling units per acre. Besides potential uses, in making its decision the Planning
Commission should consider topics listed on the rezoning application such as changing conditions
in the vicinity of the site; consistency with the Master Plan; furtherance of health, safety and
welfare; compatibility with surrounding uses; potential adverse impacts to the environment;
identified community need; logical and orderly development pattern; and/or better and more
efficient use of land.

According to Township records, the PO (Professional and Office) zoned area of the site was
rezoned at the property owner’s request from | (Industrial) and RR (Rural Residential) between
1997 and 2000. The zoning is consistent with the properties’ Office designation on the Future
Land Use Map of the 2005 Master Plan. Land currently zoned | (Industrial) is also designated for
Office use on the 2005 Master Plan Future Land Use Map while the RR (Rural Residential) zoned
land is designated Residential 0.5-1.25 dwelling units per acre.

Recent projects in the vicinity include the Staybridge Suites Hotel (2006) on Jolly Oak Road,
Michigan Dental Association building (2009) constructed on Okemos Road north of Farrins
Parkway, approval of a future Michigan State University Federal Credit Union branch (2014) on
the northeast corner of Jolly Road and Jolly Oak Road, and approval an all-suites hotel on the
northeast corner of Jolly Oak Road and Water Lily Way (2014) The following map shows existing
and proposed uses in the vicinity of the rezoning.




REZ #15010 (Forsberg Family, LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 8

‘ RC I

MMmdMDOOODm
NooOOONNe Do
& I (1000 [0

B 88 8 ([
5@ - % Bdgs | |
: P
Coyote(;r?% %3 °
Condominiums

Undeveloped Michigan
Dental
il
¥%

w L Office | OFfi
] Undeveloppd Bidg. Bldggg
w= Future
| All-Suites OFi
a0 Hatel Blo. | Bk
- 1 olly OgicRoad oy

¥ Staybridge |-
Heveloped

- g c-2
B 7
LAy | Fulure
5 “w!c2 msU Cre
Strip Tire Union Bran,

Retait Car Sales
Center [yyash

Jolly Road

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the applicant’s conditional
rezoning request or it may recommend a different zoning designation to the Township Board. A
resolution will be provided for a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Application and supporting materials
2. Township traffic consultant’s report dated February 12, 2015

G: \Planning\ \REZ\16010 (Forsberg Family LLC)\Staff Reports\REZ 15010 pci.doc




gl ' s
¢

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELO
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M1 48864
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

- e e gy e 5 £ 6 B S BN 63 63 02 £ 83 BY G2 04 49

REZONING APPLICATION

Part I, Il and lll of this application must be completed. Failure to complete any portion of this form may
result in the denial of your request.

Part |

A. Owner/Applicant ___ Forsberg Family L.L.C./ WestPac Michigan. .L.L.C.
Address of applicant 2422 Jolly Road, Okemos 48864
Telephone:  Work 517-349-9330 Home 517-202-7572
JFax 517-349-7131 Email brent@taforsberg.com If
there are multiple owners, list names and addresses of each and indicate ownership interest. Attach additional
sheets if necessary. [f the applicant is not the current owner of the subject property, the applicant must provide a
copy of a purchase agreement or mstrument indicating the owner is aware of and in agreement with the requested

action.

B. Applicant’s Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request:

Name / Contact Person _Brent Forsberg
Address 2422 Jolly Road, Okemos 48864
Telephone:  Work 517-349-9330 Home 517-202-7572
Fax 517-349-7131 Email _brent@taforsberg.com

C. Site address/location 2360/2362 Jolly Oak Road and adjacent Vacant
parcels
Legal description (Attach additional sheets if necessary) _- See Attached

Parcel number __See Aftached : Site acreage _ * */- 38.22
D. Current zoning _PO. . RR.C2 Requested zoning C2_See Attached

E. The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

1. Nonrefundable fee.
2. - Evidence of fee or other ownership of the subject property.

3. A rezoning traffic study prepared by a qualified traffic engineer based on the most current edition
of the handbook entitled Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for
Michigan Communities, published by the State Department of Transportation, is required for the

. following requests:
a. Rezonings when the proposed district would permit uses that could generate more than
100 additional directional trips during the peak hour than the principal uses permitted
under the current zoning. .
b. Rezonings having direct access to a principal or minor arterial street, unless the uses in
the proposed zoning district would generate fewer peak hour trips than uses in the existing

zoning district.
(Information pertaining to the contents of the rezoning traffic study will be available in the Department

of Gommunity Planning and Development.)

4. Other information deemed necessary to evaluate the application as specified by the Director of
Community Planning and Development.

Page 1




- o (PR

- i JAN 5 0 2055
Part ll REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST g

NN X W ]
Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof. Explairryour positien-en-the-lines
below, and attach supporting information to this form.

A. Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1) There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically:

2) The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects:
See Attached
3) The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

4) The Township did not follow the procedures that are réquired by Michigan laws, when adopting
"the Zoning Ordinance, specifically:

5) The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at
the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the

area.

6) The current zoning restrictions on the use of the property do not further the health safety or
general welfare of the public, explain:

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate:
1) Requested rezoning is consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:
See Attached
2) Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site,
specifically: See Attached
3) Requested rezoning would not result in signiﬁcan{ adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain: See Attached
4) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water
and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services, explain:
See Attached
B) Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically: _
See Attached
6) Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain:
See Attached
7) Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and
therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services,
explain: See Attached : .

Page 2




Part lll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian's -Boards and/or
Commissions, Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter
onto the above described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the
purpose of gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

M Yes [ No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
nanying documentgjion is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

Sl e s L 30 /5

Signature of Applica Date
Brent Forsberg
Type/Print Name
Fee: fj( 2Zo . Received by/Date: ﬂoéfi/\ WW (3015

b B S

jat 3.0 200 %@

=
P

Page 3




Forsberg Family Rezoning a\pplication attachment - January 30, 2015

Pt -
£ LT
I
&Y

© R
Mg oo
{L I

LIETHETTT “i;fﬁ?fj"‘ ‘
D. Requested zoning: C-2 Limited to development of Mixed Use Planned Unit Deveiopnent~--
with a restriction of no more than 18 units per acre as allowed under the density bonus
provisions in the ordinance. Commercial use will provide services for new potential residents
and existing residents in the corridor.

Part |

Part Ii

REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST

A)

2. The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects: This site was
rezoned in the early 2000’s from Industrial to Professional Office (by the developer) with plans to build a
13 building office park. Due to local and regional economic factors those plans never materialized and
the site has remained an industrial use. In a memorandum dated July 10, 2014 regarding the rezoning of
the adjacent parcel for the Hilton Home 2 hotel reason #6: “While the future land use map shows office
use of this parcel, the excess of comparable office space in the Township, as documented in the current -
master plan, renders it appropriate to designate an alternative compatible use.” On page 9 of the July
15, 2014 Township board meeting minutes, it is noted [in reference to rezoning #14060 (Boomer
Group)]: “need for the board to remember reason #6 [of aforementioned memorandum] when other
rezoning issues are considered along Okemos Road.” '

B)

1. Requested zoning is consistent with the townships master plan, explain: Several of the townships
strategies to complete the goals set forth in the master plan update can be implemented while
reviewing this rezoning case. The attached sections highlight where the township and developer can
work together to achieve these goals for the community. (See: Attached 2005 Master Plan amendment
dated 8/15/14 and Township Board 2015 Goals and Objectives)

2. Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site,
specifically: The completion of this projeét will situate nearly 500 new units (approx 700 residents)
within walking distance of one of the Township’s premier commercial centers. While these businesses
typically rely on vehicular traffic and customers who work near the area, this development would
enhance the economic value of those businesses by locating several hundred new residents within a five
minute walk of their services. In addition to the new residential units, the project provides connectivity
to neighborhoods to the West and North (Hulett Road neighborhoods and The Preserves) without the
needs to access main arterial roads. The corner has potential to become a true mixed use area of the
township, where residents can live, work, shop and play without dependence on a vehicle.

3. Requested Zoning would not result in any significant adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain: [n the Early 1990’s Forsherg Family upgraded the storm drainage system by building the
detention pond and rerouting the Smith Drain in consultation with the Ingham County Drain
Commission. This was done to make it possible for the redevelopment of the old construction yard and




s
A= =
i o

, 4
‘Forsberg Family Rezoning application attachment - January 30, 2015

to mitigate any environmental impact that would come from the anticipated future use of these parcels.
In 2007 wetland delineations were conducted to determine the location of the natural water features
and extent of possible redevelopment. The applicant has taken all of the environmental information into
account in the design of the proposed site plan.

4. Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water and
sewer systems, education recreation or other public services, explain: Based on the traffic study
completed by Bergman Associates, dated January 30, 2015, “the level of service results comparing each
of the phase 1 and 2 build scenarios with their respective year no-build scenarios suggest that the
proposed development is not expected to create significant operational impacts to the surrounding
roadway network.” While minor increases in specific movement delays at this intersection result from
the proposed development, these delay increases are exaggerated by the current capacity constraints at
this intersection and should not significantly impact the current operations at this intersection.

5. Requested zoning addresses a proven community need, specifically: This rezoning (and subsequent
project) would make the Okemos and Jolly corner Meridian Township’s connectivity destination to work
and live, rather than just a vehicle dependent work destination. With neighboring communities and their
large employers rapidly adding jobs and expanding (Jackson National, Delta Dental, MSU and DART), the
professionals who have adopted a renter by choice mentality will be looking for high end living and
lifestyle components. Since East Lansing have a high percentage of student renters, along with the
inflated rent prices that accompany student housing, the choices for a renter looking for high end living
and amenities are limited. This project is an opportunity to become a sought after destination, with
desirable proximity to large employers, an ever expanding park and trail system and a strong school
system in place. This development has potential to attract young residents looking to build their careers

and families in this area.

6. Requested zoning will result in logical and orderly development in the Township: The surrounding
areas are commercial to the South and East, Industrial and Low density residential to the West, and high
density residential to the north. Rezoning to allow a mixed use of commercial and multi-family
residential would transition and link to existing residential uses currently adjoining the proposed

redevelopment site. '

7. Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and
therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services,
explain: Developing this parcel provides a link for Meridian townships trail system to the proposed
trailhead at Jolly Road. This is the last connecting piece of the proposed trail missing in this area. The
connection will allow the existing Meridian Township cross country pathway to service a large
commercial center of the township.




\.toh\.ﬂ AT - Sb = ‘ .

OND£86(8
F101-6£€ (£15) INOHI
0FBSY NVSIROIR “LLFTSVH

m.mOn._.mqu Z<Jn_<mm<u._m<oz<n_xm th llg=z-> vrm &
7102 ‘LI ¥3IgWILHIS FLVA dISOdoNd us 39yd "6 u3an

. 6Lz 39vd '8 yzEn QvY0¥ LIFISVH gLz
MUY NpL ‘ST NOILO3S (AvA—do—LHow avoy oDN\ozrans) MY Nl S NOWD3S “ONI ‘SE3)1
UINHOD /L HINOS . b avod ATior HINHOD LSIMHLNOS X8 QIUVINS
e = — e 6 NOUDSS O BNO HLNOS 8D L
Rz #.0Z,9v.685 )

CHNIL SIHL LY Q3A3A¥NS LON SYM

VY34V SIHL 'SLNZNNOCQ OONOD SNON3Y 3HL NO 03sve £l AUD I SUORDINSDL PUD SIUSWASDD i oY ja0{qns p2und plos ‘s5a| 4o dsow
NMOHS SI Y34Y FIEYONYEXI FUNLNS GISO40¥d RULON 3 24D ZG°0h Buuojuas pausd pros *Buuuibeg jo juiod a3 03 1995 000FF
- i \ov izl wnos onp souswy 993) 9G°BLS M.61,96.68S 9USY 799F 00'STH I.61,00.008

3.0Z.9%.68N ooudYy Kog K|y Jajop 3O Iull ISAM W OF 3993 106 M.OZ.OH.68S
30Ul :pooy 3og Alfop 40 SUY LIJON U} ©F 3,25,90.5HS 5unaq 3ee

15°2¢ 30 UIBUD| PIOYD B pUD GE.LLOE JO SIBUD DYSP D 1933 OG0T SO SMIPDI

o BUNOY SAnD PIOS ‘0] OU} O} NG O LO 199) T Ly Apsasoonog puo o9y

L¥°128 3,40,00,008 ‘3,02,06.41S Bunnsq 3995 66401 Jo wybus| poyo o puo

-1£.0.62 JO 9ibud 0YEP © 909} 00'GOZ JO SMIPDA © Bummoy a3 pios Uy

I} 0} 9AIND B UO 139 BL'GOL Al ynog & avay bumorioy ayy

Suy 3503 pips Buope sousyy Koy A Jorom Jo ouy 3503 ety 0} M 0.LY.9L8

5uuoaq 199 559z j0 WBUS| PIOYS O PUD (C,07.2Z 40 BIBUO DYEP D

993} OG'L6L 0 SPDI D BUNOY AN PIOS 4491 B4y OF IAMO © U sull YpoN

Pios Buojo buinuRuos 139y pa'zs A WIRog S2UIR 'K, 85,66.085 Bupoaq

199} Z0'BE 40 tABUS PIOYD O PUD GOSG.L JO SIGUD OYP O 499} 0GLsT

40 SAIPDJ B SUADY AIND PIOS WYBM TN} 0} AR D UO BuY URJON PIDE Buojo

199} GO°BC AI9ISanUInOs aoudyy Komusd SULIDS Jo Sull yyoN S ) o9y

00'84} A.ZSES.LYS IUBYY 109} YO¥LL M,SG,I4.G0S 9oURYY 9994 2G°9L JSo

°np IDUSLY 1991 Y6°LIL M.00,95.99N IdUSY He9) OLBL M,L€,I2.665 auayy

999} SO'CHL 3,26,41.00S 9oUsLy 2393 §L09 M.20,L5.028 20oUdyy 223) SLry

3.80,54.68N PUD 333} [6'%C UINOS INP 199 99°B/ 3.80,5H.6N 1SeSanaD

22413 Bumalo) sy} Iuy Ynog pros Buop esusyy ooty 810407 jo aur

WNoS pos 03 199; 10'49L 3,00,I.69N SOV 3654 IG°6E M, OS.SLETN SoUSy

9399} $B'61 3,96 650N 90USY) 4994 $9°001 ABCELIBN aduoLy B23) £REY

WNOS J9UA B9) B7°ZL ME0.ZLIES Sousty 9098 BLU0T oul| mnog plos

BUOID 3,90.5t.68N 9oUILY YO0y PO SHISON POpIOIDI BIY O} Buprosso ‘zg

"ON Lold UOISIMPONg wnjuiuiopuog A1uno) wioybuy “Ee.d vjokes o DUl ynos

S 03 1991 SL'6BS 3.91,8L.00S dUSYY 799 HSECy 3.8Z,7+.68N 9ousy) Nowy

9+°098 M,LLLTO0N S0uoyy N93) Z9'/9% 3,6¢.L%.68N 9ousyy 299) 0E°v9g

FEYLL M.SLBLOON 30UsYy 13499) +4°/GH oull Wnog pios yyum [ejipnd M.02.94.685
~-N.SS..80S hadird 30U 393} OC'0SLL MLILBLODN DUy 339 G Lzl BuY RNOg pIdS s
: 075,655 RIR.0d 3,02,95.68N 90UoU} §99) 00°¥9Z M,ILBLOON 9oew 599} Ze'oly sty
FE'6L 3,92,67.99N : @nog plos buojo Bununuod M,07,9%.68S ously ‘uondussep sug jo Buniboq
153m A S9°00L 3,.8€.61L98N Jo od ayy o} 3991 ggTveYL SO SoUDISP O gF UoRDSS pIDS jo Sul yInog
SU) BUOID }4,07,9%,68S OOUSLY IEC UOROIS PIDS JO JOWIOD 4/ WINOS oG

3¢ Bubuswwie) 5o poquosep pand POS o Lopunoy oyy ‘unbiyoy “Kjunogy
woubul “diysumol UDIPLIOW ‘MLY NPL ‘CC UORDIS JO /L 15oMpNOg Sy U
Slth 3.905h6EN R VRN pURY jo 90.u0d ¥ INOILAMOSEA VOET VARIY TIEVONVAXT FUALNA TESOdONd
.hm.v.m..:.:cm \ .S.Qwrmxmo.mv.mmz \W. %LJ

99'8, 3.805%68N  3,.00,(c.69N
VS 1VT Y VI N

8s'aLe
M.BLOY.68S

3.25.90.575 ASCY %2006 00708 by v
3.0¢08.viS £690T JIEONES 00602 8LaglL
M0, L0LS SS9L Wl5.088C ASZ6T FOLL z
M,85,66.085 LEBE S0.S5.L 0S°LLE SEBE

ONv3g QUOHD vil3g sniavy HIONTT | 3AYND

3igavL 3AMND -

ZL06
MOT 9685

avod o ATIOP \
ﬁl ®

_

Z 1330S 338 _
vauy ::_z_zoozoo\%ﬁ:
_ m..«..mw@m\

I..ll;lllllf\&ﬁ:

S00°C0"15"E  425.00°

NORTH-SQUTH 1/4 LINE OF SECTION 33

WATER

LILY WAY

NOO‘18"18™W

M.00,95.99N

_H AV E SNIbRv A
_ OLBL MLLELZE685

S0'EFE 32641008

SL09 M.20,L5.0ZS.

SHIINIT Quv 3dv SNOISNINIG 3A¥N0
“J03YIHL SIVAIDEA ONY . L334 NI 34V SNOISNIWIQ TV

aN3931

o
g
[\8]
¥y

564.30"

OKEMOS ROAD

oA e st
OT WYHONY
AANAR SIS ) aian
CONCT M33MT 210400

N0D"18"18"W

989,75'

L9'L8r  3.62.44.68N :

TS ON
JYW NOLLYDOT

avox ATor

660.46'
3
~

Jovid
NOLdNVH

P> g Qog o5t o

051 = L WIS

avoy
WO _KTior

OKEMOS ROAD

MERIDIAY
S001B16°E

NOO'2Z7'17*W

605 39vd ‘6 ¥38M "
ALY Nl ‘ee .
NOUJ3S 40 ¥3LNZD SEEEY  A.STYr68N

1510 NeIeg | wu
, <

5182 0 8 pyr - HINIOd SOWIMO

NOWYIDOSSY

rarcs ]

@
{L,

FINVEREY
i«.ﬂﬁ&@& ’



A-2 supplemental material

MEMORANDUM
TO: TQWn“shlp Board L
FROM: : &
‘ Mark Kleselbach “
Director of Communpdty Planning -and Development
/éj ﬂf-ap v ‘» :
Gall Oranchak; AICP
Pringipal Planner
DATE; July 10, 20‘14
RE: _ Rezoning #14060 (Boomel Group, LLG), request to rezone approximately 3. 55

acres from PO (Professmnal and Offi ce) to C+2 (Commercial)

The applicant, Boomer Group, LLC, represented by Wllllam Brehm, has requested the rezaning of
approximately 3.65 acres located on the northeast comer of Jolly Oak Road and Water Lily Way
from PQ (Professional and Offics) fo C+2 (Cormmercial) with the voluntary offer of a condition
limiting development on the site to an all-stiites hotel with no more than 135 rooms subject to the
standards applying to hotels in the C-2 district and all requnrements of Chapter 86 of the Code of
Ordinances for special use permit; site plan rewew or variance, if any.

The Planning Commission held the public hearing on the rezoning request at its June 9, 2014
regular meeting and at its June 23, 2014 meeting voted 8-0 to recommend approval subject toa
time limit -of three years for groundbreakmg to begin after.final approval, The Planning
Commisslon cited the following reasons for its degision. ‘ '

1. The use complements &@nd provides a customer base for surrounding commercial
service uses.

2. The Township’s traffic consultant reviewed the applicant's Traffic Assessment
commenting, the proposed hotel use will generate far-fewer vehicle trips than a more
interise commerdial Usé such as a supsrmarket,

8. Comparing trip -generation data found in the applicant’s Traffic Assessment for a

general office building permltted in the PO (Profeeswnal and Offlce) district and an
all-suites hotel use permitted in the C-2 (Commercial) district shows both Uses

generate fewer weekday and peak hour vehicle trips.
4. Public utilities and ~servi‘ces are in placeto serve the site.
5, The razoning will rasult in a logical and orderly development patterh for the site and
surfounding area info the fufure g

-.“'Whlle the Future Land Use Map shows office use of this parcel, the excess: of
comparable office space i the Township, as documented in the current Township
Master Plan, renders it appropriate to desngnate ah alternative compatible use.




]

A" supplemental material

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, TULY 15; 2014 REGULAR MEETING  *APPROVED*

o Benefit is greatly réduced for the-homeowner at 6437 Lake Drive (Mr. Wessels) as there is
no.a¢eéss to Lake Drive \

o Reminder that the Liake Lansing Adyisory Committee passed a motion to conttibute $2,500
towards the paving assessment

o The Township will adjust the estimated assessments prior to bringing Resolution No. 3 to the

Boaid

o Petition would still be valid if the homeowner at 6437 withdiaws his signature from the
petition

¢ Board membet request for information regarding trees and potential impact of the paving on
those trees

e Township has 66 feet of right-of way and there is sufficient room
Ong area at the north énd is crowded as the property owner pushed his rock landscaping .12-
15 feet into the right-of-way

o Board membet request to obtain the speed limit on Perty Road

-« . Board member desire for a four (4) foot paved shoulder; but three (3) foot is what is
achievable

o Board member preference foi two (2) ten (10) foot lanes with a four (4) foot area for
pedestrians on the west side of the road '
Request for staff to explore all options with the county as thete is 24 feet to work w1th
Board desne to have substantial sxgmﬁcant axea f01 pedestman or non-motonzed movement
P1e,fcx¢nce‘ fm assessments to be k.ept at a leasonable level for the lesx,d_ent_s
County restripes every two years and Township-staff will include the striping for next year

> & & o @

e
Kl

|
. @

B

o

H,
9

Lo
D

=

~~
(3
8
=g
Q

t=3
. pmanet.
‘E:’

RS

w

§.

E
[7]

B |
+ "G
=y
- UQ-
g
=,
Q
=N
p= g
”é
Kol
B
=
é
]
'S
I
o
-
B
[~}
£
j 2
o
173

It was the consénsus of the Board to place this item on for action at a fitire meetinig,

B. Rezoning #14060 (Boomer Group, LLC), Request to Rezone- Approximately 3:55 Acres on the
NE Corner of Jolly Oak Road and Water Lily Way from PO (Professiondl and Office) fo C-2
(Commercial) .

]131rect<ir Kieselbach summarized the 1ezomng vequest as outlingd jn staff memorandum dated July
0, 2014

Board discussion;

¢ ICRD requirement that Water Lily Way be paved prior to acceptance as 4 public road

e Project will provide additional patrons for stores and restaurants in the Joily/Okemos Road
area

e Peak traffic will be less for the hotel v. office . _ o

s  Possible hotel amerity for a one-third mile pathway north from Water Lily Way which would
link to the Township. pathway from Okemos Road to Hulett Road

o Farrins Parkway was designed as a private road and maintenance would be the responsibility
of the property owner

s Agreement for shared useis of Farrins Parkway

o Pathway map shows deévelopment-of a seven (7) foot pathway on the east side of Water Lily
Way

®  MSU Fedéral Ciedit Union will be required fo install the pathway to Jolly Road duung
‘construction

. Trafﬁc in the area will incieass due to receipt of fedéral grant money to upgrade the

Jolly/Okemos Road inteysection

Numbels used for the trafﬁc study is mformatlon supplied by the ICRD

' nd

D Spa {\é
Need for the Board to remember Reason #6 when other rezomng issues are considered along, V\ Q.
Okemos Road

\

PAGE 9




GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

The fundamental statement of community values, the personal values, the values relating to
government and the vision for the year 2020 provide the foundation upon which subsequent policy
decisions in this Plan rests. To guide the formulation of specific policy decisions, the Planning
Commission established a more detailed set of goals and objectives, and strategies for pursuing

them,

The Planning Commission presents the following set of specific goals, which are derived from the

statements of community values (no priority is implied):

® Goal 1: Preserve and strengthen residential neighborhoods.
B (Goal 2. Preserve open space and natural areas.

B Goal 3: Enhance the viability of Township businesses.

B Goal 4: Maintain and expand a diverse park system.

B Goal 5: Maintain essential public services.

[ |

Goal 6: Provide and Support an Efficient, Safe, and Environmentally Sensitive
Multi-modal Transportation Network.

W Goal 7: Promote efficient and sustainable growth principles.

For each of these goals, a series of objectives is stated, and for most of the objectives, one or

more strategies for achieving this objective-are specified.

GOAL 1: PRESERVE AND STRENGTHEN RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOODS

Objective A: Maintain a community of desirable, attractive residential neighborhoods.

Siralegies:
1. Prevent inconsistent uses from encroaching into residential areas.

2. Continue to support the designation and preservation of historic neighborhoods
and residences.

3. Designate appropriate neighborhoods as special land use areas and adopt :
zoning specific to their needs.

4. Encourage cluster developments, mixed use and other compact residential.
"~ . choices closer to shopping, public transit and other services.

5. Ensure that the Future Land Use Map has a range of residential densities which
will result in a diversity of housing that meets the needs of various income levels
and household types.

S A
Charter Township of Meridian August 15,2014

Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 1




Objective B: Ensure new residential developments meet high standards of visual
attractiveness, health and safety, and environmental sensitivity.

Stralegies:
1. Minimize erosion and the intrusion of roads, pathways, houses, and driveways

into wetlands and floodplains in residential developments.

2. Continue to require the planting of trees along rights-of-way, and the
replacement of trees when they are damaged, destroyed, or diseased.

3. Encourage residential design that enhances use of outdoor areas for recreation,
" community walkability and integration with public transit.

4. Lay out new residential developments to accommodate public transit, for
example, by providing pedestrian connections to bus stops and by designing for
curb side bus stops near entrances.

5. In all subdivisions and residential developments, encourage layouts which
maintain maximum green space and/or common open space. |

GOAL 2: PRESERVE OPEN SPACE AND NATURAL AREAS

Objective A: Adopt policies and programs that maximize the preservation of open spaces,
natural areas, other undeveloped areas and agricultural land uses in the

Township.

Stralegies:
1. Continue to develop and implement Township policies regarding the protection

of open space land and natural areas via zoning, the public purchase of land,
conservation easements, and development rights, and other appropriate
techniques.

2. Encourage landowners to donate natural areas or open spaces to the
Township, and to place their properties under the protection of the Farmland
and Open Space Preservation (Part 361) or the Conservation and Historic
Preservation Easement (Part 21) of PA 451 of 1994 Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act, where appropriate.

3. Encourage landowners to donate land or development' rights to non-profit land
frusts.

4. Continue to coordinate efforts with the Park Commission to support and
promote the preservation of open space and environmentally sensitive lands in
the Meridian recreation areas through donations of land with natural, open
space and ecological and/or historical significance.

5. Preserve the ecological integrity of the Red Cedar River through zoning,
voluntary agreements with landowners, donation of land to the Township, or the
purchase of land, scenic easements, and development rights, where
appropriate.

6. Develop a tree preservation ordinance to protect significant mature trees.

%
Charter Township of Meridian . August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 2




Objective B: Conserve wetlands, floodplains, and other water retention areas.

Strategies:

1. Identify all wetlands, ﬂoodplains, and other water retention areas.

2. Continue to communicate and coordinate with the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality on activities affecting lakes, streams, and wetlands.

3. Discourage development within wetlands, floodplains, floodplain fringe areas,
and water retention areas.

4. Support the Environmental Commission’s educational efforts to minimize
infiltration of salt, fertilizer, herbicide, and pesticide.

Objective C: Link open spaces and natural areas into a network of continuous greenways
throughout the Township.

Stratlegies:

1. Continue to use the Greenspace Plan as a guide for determining how natural
areas can be linked into continuous greenways throughout the Township. |

2. Work with the Land Preservation Board and Park Commission to continue the
establishment of a continuous greenway along the Red Cedar River through the
identification of additional parcels of land which are important to the ecological
and visual integrity of the Red Cedar River.

3. Utilize land planning methods, purchases of land and development rights, and
plat, site plan, and other review processes to create and maintain continuous
greenways.

4. Encourage the Environmental Commission to develop educational programs
about the importance of protecting endangered animals and plants, ecosystems
and other unique or sensitive natural features.

Objective D: Protect groundwater recharge areas in the Township.

Strategies:

1. Support regional efforts to protect groundwater recharge areas.

2. Continue to educate citizens about the importance of protecting groundwater
recharge areas.

3. Use zoning and other appropriate land management techmques to protect
important groundwater recharge areas.

Objective E: Preserve greenbelts, open spaced and natural areas and create pathways by

" _encouraging the use of planned unit development or other suitable zoning
strategies for new residential developments.

Objective F. Work with the Park Commission, Department of Public Works and
Engineering and the school districts, where appropriate, to maximize the
amount of land left in a natural state as common open space to encourage
developers and builders.

Charter Township of Meridian August 15, 2014

Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 3




GOAL 3: ENHANCE THE VIABILITY OF TOWNSHIP BUSINESSES
Objective A: Upgrade commercial areas.

Stralegies: ,
1, Participate in regional efforts to redevelop the Grand River corridor.

2. ldentify strategies to maintain the Haslett Road commercial area’s traditional
character. :

3. Encourage redevelopment of the downtown Okemos area using the Downtown
Development Authority (DDA) Integrated Plan as a guide.

4. Evaluate opportunities for walkable urban design.
5. Cooperate with regional partners and other entities to participate in studies.

6. Encourage attractive architecture which harmonizes with the environment
through innovative design and landscaping.

7. ldentify specific areas where the form-based code technique may be
appropriately applied and make recommendations based on the results of the
study.

Objective B: Develop the Township’s commercial core into a viable and vibrant district.

Strategies:
1. Conduct and/or participate in studies where appropriate.

2. Explore the viability of upper floor residences in the commercial core.

3. Continue to engage the public in deciding the direction for development in the
commercial core.

4. Explore options for public-private partnerships to revitalize the Township’s
commercial core..

5. Develop the Township’s center into a vibrant mixed use district, through the
addition of planned or committed office and residential land uses in and
adjacent to the core area.

Objective C: Improve the attractiveness of the Township's entrances and transportation
corridors.

Stralegies:
1. Investigate grant-based funding opportunities to improve landscaping along

major thoroughfares.

2. Create a series of well-designed and atiractively landscaped entrances along
the main roads entering into the community.

]
Charter Township of Meridian - August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) . 4




GOAL 4:  MAINTAIN AND EXPAND A DIVERSE PARK SYSTEM

Objective A: Continue to expand the Meridian Township park and recreational system to
meet the recreational needs of residents into the future.

Sirategies:

1. Pursue acquisitions that target current and future demands of residents.

2. Employ acquisition strategies that leverage available dollars to secure
maximum property for the value.

3. Support Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway linkages to parks and recreation
facilities. "

4. Provide accessible facilities and leisure opportunities for persons of all
physical abilities and socio-economic characteristics. |

Objective B: Develop and support Meridian Township park development and recreation
programming that is diverse, widely distributed, fiscally responsible, and
represents community needs.

Strategies:
1. Support the Park Commission’s continuing efforts to pursue public input in

determining park and recreation development needs.

2. Utilize cooperative methods of providing recreation facilities by working with
local recreation associations, schools, businesses, neighborhood groups and
associations to provide diverse recreation programs.

3. Increase coordination between the Township Board, Park Commission and
Land Preservation Advisory Board to maximize the potential benefits and
enhance stewardship of open space, natural areas and park lands.

4. Encourage developers to incorporate parks and recreation amenities in new
developments to complement the efforts of the Park Commission.

5. Continue to promote fiscal responsibility through partnerships and
collaborative opportunities, grant support sponsorships and donations, and
encouraging volunteerism. :

6. - To provide resources necessary to maintain and develop a diverse parks and
recreation system that:
a. Provide a high quality of life for our community residents.
b. Provides necessary support for maintenance and operation of these

amenities.!

GOAL 5: MAINTAIN ESSENTIAL PUBLIC SERVICES

Objective A: Ensure that any future growth is consistent with the Township's present or
planned capacity for sewage treatment, public water, and other utility
systems.

M
Charter Township of Meridian ~ August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 5




]
S

Strategies:
1. Focus growth into an urban services district to ensure efficient and fiscally
responsible use of public services.

2. Routinely assess the demands on the utility systems from developments to
determine available capacity for future development based on demographics.

3. Routinely inventory water, sewer and other utility systems capacity.

. Maintain and upgrade the infrastructure (water, sewers, roads, community
facilities) of the Township through the Capital Improvements Program’s
systematic scheduling of infrastructure construction, maintenance, and
renovation.

5. Continue to use Special Assessment Districts to finance infrastructure projects.

. Incorporate appropriate recommendations from Tri-County Regional Planning
Commission’s Wellhead Protection Audit for regional best practices to protect
the public water supply.

Objective B: Maintain police, fire, and ambulance service to all areas of the community.
Objective C: Maintain quality library service for the community.

Objective D: Use land use policies to assist the public school districts which are a valued
. community asset that makes Meridian Township a unique and desirable

place to live.

Strategies: ‘

1. Continue and/or initiate land use policies that attract families with students.

2. Support the Park Commission’s agreement with the School Districts to
coordinate park facilities and programs.

3. Support street and pathway improvements that provide safe access routes for
school children.

Objective E: Promote cooperation between adjoining communities, school districts, and
appropriate agencies.

GOAL 6: PROVIDE AND SUPPORT AN EFFICIENT, SAFE, AND
ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION

NETWORK

Objective A: Evaluate the existing transportation. network and identify problems,
including traffic congestion, safety, environment, and aesthetics, which can
be solved at acceptable cost.

S e M S
Charter Township of Meridian August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 6




Strategies: .
1. Cooperate with county, regional and state entities to develop strategies to

improve traffic flow. ‘

2. Consider zoning and other design strategies such as Complete Streets as
effective means of ensuring safe and efficient travel for all modes of
transpottation.

Objective B: Maintain local roads.

Strategies:
1. Support improvements to local streets when a special assessment district

request has been received from local residents.

2. Review reconstruction and expansion of local non-subdivision streets through
the Capital Improvements Program process when 50 percent of the
improvement’s funding will be paid for by the Township or its residents through
special assessment districts.

Objective C: Develop a Complete Streets policy for all users of Township roads.

Strategies:
1. Define a vision for a Complete Streets program.

2. Review current policies to identify inconsistencies and impediménts o
implementing a complete streets policy.

3. Conduct planning, regulatory and physical audits of current street designs as
needed and financially feasible. :

4. Coordinate the Pedestrian-Bicycle Pathway Plan with Safe Routes to School
policies and other Township plans.

5. Share the Township’s vision and work with transportation and road authorities.

Objective D: Expand and improve the Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway Plan.

Sirategies:
1. Continue to implement the requirement for sidewalks as determined

necessary.

2. Continue to implement the pedestrian/bicycle pathway system through site:
plan review.

3. Continue to support the pedestrian/bicycle pathway millage for construction
and maintenance of the Township’s pedestrian/bicycle pathway system.

4, Investigate alternative surfacing materials to reduce the amount of impervious
surface materials used in the construction of the pedestrian/bicycle system.

5. Continue to investigate strategies for safe and efficient travel for bicyclists and
pedestrians.

6. Coordinate the Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway Plan with parks, schools,
preserves, Greenspace Plan, neighborhoods, and other destinations.

m
Charter Township of Meridian August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) . 7




Objective E: Encourage the use of public transportation.

Strategies:
1. Encourage and promote public transportation service to any new developments

and in conjunction with redevelopment via site plan review.

2. Institute design standards for site plan review to ensure public transportation
access to all segments of the population but particularly those with physical
disabilities.

Objective F: Coordinate Meridian Township's transportation planning with regional
planning efforts administered by the Tri-County Regional Planning
Commission and recorded in-the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan.

Strategies:
1. Coordinate transportation planning and road improvements for all non-local

streets with the region’s long range plan.

2. Advocate and promote the Township’s needs and interests in transportation
improvements with transportation and road authorities.

GOAL 7: PROMOTE EFFICIENT AND SUSTAINABLE GROWTH PRACTICES

Objective A: Implement sustainable energy and environmental practices throughout the
Township utilizing the most current best practices

Strategies:
1. Budget funds to have Township buildings assessed for energy efficiency a

minimum of once every five years.

2. For Meridian Township procurement purposes, when equivalent products or
services are available, preference should be given to the more sustainable
services or products.

3. Encourage electric car charging stations.

4, Establish a minimum level of LEED certification or the equivalent for all

projects undertaken by the Township.
5. Establish ordinances providing incentives for redevelopment that emphasnzes
" infill development, building reuse and/or deconstruction.

7. Increase the use of alternative transportation modes for commuting and.
recreation by encouraging the use of mixed use planned unit developments
and implementing the Greenway Plan.

8. Explore methods through ordinances or by providing incentives for existing
businesses to upgrade their parking lots and landscaping to increase tree
cover and shade to be energy efficient and environmentally friendly.

9. Explore incentives for new or redeveloped projects to be LEED certified or
equivalent.

| e e e |
Charter Township of Meridian August 15,2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 8




Objective B: Develop Township policies to balance and manage growth.

Objective C: Maintain open spaces and natural features in suburban and rural areas of the
Township.

Sirategies:
1. Continue to develop zoning standards and Township policies.

2. Continue to encourage and support voluntary citizen land conservancy efforts
which maintain the Township's open spaces, natural features, and rural areas.

Objective D: Define an urban services district to promote walkable community
: development and dynamic community improvement through redevelopment.

Strategies:
1. Promote land use policies that emphasnze compact infill development.

2. Investigate opportunities to maximize the use of existing infrastructure through
development and redevelopment within the urban services district:

3. Investigate additional strategies to provide incentives for development and
redevelopment within the urban services district.

Objective E: Encourage development in Meridian Township that leads to sustainable land
use.

Strategies:
1. Engage all stakeholders to study new techniques for the conirol and

management of development.
2. Review the legality and suitability of these techniques for Meridian Township.

Objective F: Prepare and implement a redevelopment strategy
Sirategies;
1. Eliminate inflexible or obsolete zoning regulations.
2. ldentify priority redevelopment sites.

3. Expand public participation.

4

. Prepare annual reports to the Township Board reporting progress towards the
stated benchmarks and recommending any needed changes.

g:\planning\glo\2005 Master Plam2005 Master Plan Update\Goals\Goals\Distribution\8-15-14 Distribution copy

S 0. S
Charter Township of Meridian August 15, 2014
Chapter 2: Goals and Objectives (Distribution Copy) 9




st
e

Meridian Township 2015 Goal DeEtting o
2015 Goals and Objectives

Meridian Township exists to create a sustainable community through the most effective

o

XTI TS @mooo

°e=37

oo

@~oa

use of available resources that achieve the highest quality of life.

Goal #1
Meridian Township shall sustain and enhance
the environment

Update the street tree ordinance and adopt a tree protection ordinance

. Prepare, update, and enforce ordinances that protect natural features such as woodlands,

wetlands, and floodplain areas

Utilize the Township’s Greenspace Plan as part of the review for land development projects
Apply the best planning practices to encourage the preservation of green and open spaces
Build a new green Central Fire Station

Continue the Deer Management Program 1o reduce the deer population in our community
Manage invasive species in the parks and land preserves (removing garlic mustard,
buckthorn, autumn olive, Japanese knotweed, Japanese hedge parsley, and phragmites)
Administer and enforce the Soil Erosion Sedimentation Control Program

Maintain the sewer system to minimize sewage backups

Develop an Urban Management Service area

Maintain robust recycling initiatives including the Meridian Recycling Center, commumty
events, and educational programs, and work to enhance recycling opportunities in apartment

complexes
Continue energy, water, and waste reduction efforts in Township buildings and other facilities

. Adopt an ordinance prohibiting or regulating, as the law allows, fracking within the Township

Review and update open space requirements
Mitigate climate change - including investigating becoming a solar ready community

Goal #2
Meridian Townshlp shall sustain and enhance
public safety

Increase information shared with the public through social media regarding public safety tips,
PSAs (Public Service Announcements), emergency communications, and police and fire
services

Provide Beyond the Badge police and fire programs and stones

Strengthen communication and educate developers/builders, business owners, and
neighborhood associations regarding the planning process in an effort to minimize violations
and negative impacts ‘
Continue implementation of the Grand River Corridor Access Management Ordinance
Provide police coverage for Williamstown Township

Implement the Office of Highway Safety Planning (OHSP) Traffic Grant

Purchase new mobile phone forensics software

1




—

»~oTOS3 T

TOS3ITATTSQ M0 R0 T

S0

Upgrade the booking area camera

Evaluate conversion to the State Records I\/Ianagement System (RMS) in the Police
Department, and implement if determined to be feasible

Update in-car mobile software to communicate with new Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)
software

Construct the new Fire Station at Okemos Road and Central Park Drive

Purchase 1 replacement ambulance for the Fire Department

. Purchase 3 replacement patrol vehicles for the Police Department

Complete the Okemos Road Pathway Bridge crossing the Red Cedar River

~Continue fire service to Alaiedon Township

Continue the yearly Police Citizens’ and Youth Academies

Participate in the Lansing Regional Shared Fire Services

Process monthly police and fire citizen surveys

Monitor legislative actions relative to medical marihuana and prepare to act accordingly with
local ordinances

Explore revision and/or modification of Township ordinances for the purpose of reducing
penalties for possession or use of small amounts of marihuana

. Goal #3
Meridian Township shall provide an
unparalleled parks system

Develop Phase | of Towner Road Park

Complete Legg Park projects - parking area, dog park, and stewardship
Construct roof structures over the dugouts at Hartrick Park

Install new siding on the pavilion at Nancy Moore Park

Install new safety fencing around the ball diamonds at Nancy Moore Park
Rebuild the drainage system for the Harris Nature Genter parking island
Improve parking lot surfaces at Harris Nature Center, Ferguson Park, and Wonch Park
Construct the Wonch Park Pavilion with grant support

Install new play equipment at Orlando Park and Hillbrook Park

Develop a new Master Plan for Central Park

Replace the footbridge at Legg Park

Provide support for Eagle Scout Projects

. Build an 18 hole disc golf course

Improve directional signage on trails

Construct a youth environmental exploration area at Harris Nature Center

Establish a plan for development of a smart-phone application (App) that provides Township
Parks and Trails information

Develop the Water Trail Access Program

Investigate purchasing the five (5) acres to the east of Wardcliff School, which borders Park

Lake Road, for recreational uses




oo =o

N< % g <

Goal #4
Meridian Township shall provide exemplary
public services and facilities

Conduct an annual assessment/reinspection program of taxable properties within Meridian
Township

Finalize the Comcast franchise agreement to include high definition (HD) PEG (Public,
Education & Government) channels, VOD (Video on Demand), and PEG on the program
guide system

Develop a 5-year equipment purchase plan to be adopted by the Cable Communications
Commission (CCC) that includes HD studio cameras and playback

lmprove communication and educate the public on the Rental Housing Program and continue
to improve the process for rental housing inspections

Revise the sign and parking regulations

Continue support of and membership in regional organizations (i.e. Tri-County Regional
Planning Commission)

Strengthen cooperative planning efforts with the Ingham County Road Department, Ingham
County Drain Commission, Tri-County Regional Planning Commission, and surrounding
jurisdictions

Promote good design standards through the site plan review process

Utilize a health impact assessment guide, created in conjunction with the Ingham County
Health Department and Tri-County Regional Planning, in the review of development projects
Streamline field survey procedures so that information will flow directly into the Geographic
Information System

Participate with Tri-County regional partners to contract for flight services to provide
orthographic photography for the entire Township and surrounding areas

Bring the Township’s payroll back in-house and incorporate the human resources module

software

. Update the patrol car graphic deS|gn

Evaluate options for upgrades to in-building camera systems within the Public Safety Building
and potential expansion to include other facilities

Upgrade or replace lift station SCADA (Supetrvisory Control And Data Acquisition) system
communications and software

Complete the first year of 3-year SAW (Stormwater, Asset Management and Wastewater)
Grant project to develop sanitary sewer system asset management plan

Replace the Towar Lift Station

Replace the control panel at Woodhill lift station

Replace pumps at Shoals lift station and Sundance lift station

Complete Pathway Bridge on Okemos Road crossing Red Cedar River

Construct a new pathway on the south side of Haslett Road (east of Okemos Road to west
of Bayonne)

Replace the retaining wall on Mt. Hope Road at Glendale Cemetery

Replace the pathway retaining wall at 2322 Mt. Hope Road

Construct a pathway on the south side of Mt. Hope Road (Okemos Road to Maumee)
Reroof the Service Center

Pursue Ingham County Trail Millage funding to implement the Lake Lansing to River Tralil
connector pathway

Investigate options for establishing Meridian Township as a smart community and explore
viable plans for expanding municipal fiber, broadband, and public Wi-Fi in Meridian

Township




bb.

ccC.

o

s@ oo

ToS3IT R

oo

o
-

Investigate providing a leaf pickup program in Meridian Township
Fill in pathway gaps

Goal #5
Meridian Township shall sustain and enhance our
economic prosperity for all residents

Defend assessment appeals made to the Michigan Tax Tribunal

Develop a branding campaign and marketing strategy and propose a 2016 budget to the
Township Board to include branding campaign, imaging, print, design, and marketing
Enhance and encourage the retention of eX|st|ng businesses and establishment of new
businesses

Promote Township resources to prospective businesses and industries

Formulate and adopt an Economic Development Plan

Encourage infill and/or redevelopment of existing commercial sites

Promote mixed-use development in commercial areas '

Facilitate the objectives of the Downtown Development Authority by eliminating the causes
of property value deterioration and promoting economic growth

Continue streetscape improvements to define downtown areas and promote a sense of place
Assist with the redevelopment of the former Central Fire Station/MARC property

Continue economic focus on Haslett, Carriage Hills, Grand River, and Okemos

Continue focus on the Douglas J project

. Continue to conduct monthly business visits with a focus on customer service

Complete the 2005 Master Plan update

Sustain and enhance our positive working relationship with Michigan State Umversﬁy
Complete the Gonsolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR) receiving an unmodified audit
opinion and the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Repotting

Complete the annual budget process focusing on how the budget mirrors our annual goal

setting process
Maintain, per the Board’s direction, a minimum fund balance in the General Fund of

$5,250,000

Increase enrollment of online bill pay and explore optlons for new platforms to accept these
payments (including BS&A’s AccessMyGov-Internet Services)

Support all types of transportation modes in the Township including the Bus Rapid Transit
(BRT)

Encourage the use of complete streets practices as a routine part of operations

Investigate the pension liability funding plan
Investigate reaching out and expanding the Celebrate Downtown Okemos event to include

other areas of the Township, including Haslett and East Lansing

Goal #6
Meridian Township shall promote and enhance
diversity across the Township
Promote cultural diversity with our corhmunity programs and celebrations

Explore closed captioning costs for HOM-TV programs
Investigate and possibly launch a Chinese version of HOM-TV news programs




cop

Sae oo

Continue to encourage the use of the Mixed Use Planned Unit Development and Commercial
Planned Unit Development Ordinances

Encourage developers to provide affordable housing

Encourage a wide range of housing types ‘

Strengthen community pride through such actuvntles as downtown events and expanded:
outdoor sculpture displays

Seek diversity in hiring and promoting

Update the Personnel Policy Manual, along with having the Human Relations Ordinance
statement prominently displayed in the introduction, and continuous outreach to special
agencies and networks for recruitment of new hires, volunteers, interns, etc.

Host Chinese New Year and Heritage Festival events

Promote Nokomis Learning Center activities

Consider implementing the Language First Program (in an effort to aid our Township staff
with communicating with visitors from all over the world)

. Utilize additional recruiting outlets and resources such as on-line job boards, advertisements,

and professional organizations to attract qualified minorities to apply for job openings
Provide professional training and development to staff

. Goal #7
Meridian Township shall provide outstanding
recreational and cultural programs

Provide sports and fithess programs for youths and aduits

Administer environmental programs and events for all ages at Harris Nature Center

Offer educational, fithess, and social opportunities for senior citizens at the Meridian Senior
Center and Meridian Mall

Coordinate the Farmers’ Market outdoors (May-October) and indoors (December-April)
Develop a Farmers’ Market Relocation Plan (location, size, and funding)

Support activities of the Friends of Historic Meridian

Support activities of the Meridian Garden Club

Conduct special events: Chinese New Year, Celebrate Downtown Okemos, July 4th
Fireworks Celebration, Meridian Heritage Festival, Halloween Adventures, Drive-thru Santa,
Christmas in the Village, Free Family Winter Sports Weekends, Polar Bear 5K Race, Music
in the Park Program ‘

Continue the Arts and Crafts Marketplace each month during the summer

Continue Recreation Services Agreement with the City of Williamston

 Goal #8
Meridian Township shall sustain and enhance
constituent communications

Continue to respond to all citizen inquiries in a timely, professional, and efficient manner
Provide assessment information to property owners and their representatives (e.g., real
estate agents, title company employees, private real estate appraisers, etc.)

Replace the Town Hall microphones and bases

Investigate replacement of Township hall video imager

Increase encouragement of public engagement and, participation through multlmedla and
other ways to connect




o o

Create a monthly Township Manager blog and increase its outreach

Conduct a communications needs assessment

Investigate costs of new Township website

Audit social media outlets and develop a social media strategy campaign

Upload packet information on the Township website that is in a searchable format for ease
of use by the public )

Publish the Meridian Monitor twice-yearly to all residents

Reach out to residential and business groups regarding potential development impacts
Increase staff engagement and participation with neighborhood groups using social media,
fire safety programs, HOM-TV interviews, and Beyond the Badge

Add a new disk appliance to the network to increase storage space and reliability

Update in-car mobile software to communicate with new Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)
software

Print and distribute one issue of the Meridian Township Parks and Recreation Family Fun
Guide (distribution in January)

Increase communication with constituents through email and multi- medla sources

Rename select Land Preserves

Conduct the citizen survey through ICMA with the same process or method as was used in
2012

Begin the process of overhauling the Township webSIte and branding up to an amount of
$30 000 ‘

Goal #9
Meridian Township shall sustain and enhance
neighborhoods and eliminate blight

Create DAS (Distributed Antenna System) ordinance with the Public Works & Engineering
and Planning Departments

Promote Nelghborhood Watch

Develop a method to increase compliance of communications companies using the rights of
way in the Township

Continue to work with homeowners associations to strengthen code enforcement in
residential neighborhoods

Promote and encourage the preservation of older neighborhoods

Enforce the Property Maintenance Code

Continue the Code Enforcement Committee with neighborhood associations

Continue pavement preservation program on local roads

Continue sidewalk repair program (order to maintain)

Maintain and improve the water and sewer systems

Hire a pari-time code enforcement officer

Support the community gardens in the Township

m. Inspect Township owned buildings annually to ensure appropriate maintenance




l ]

i JAN 3 0 2015
— hz,:za;mu R

T
R e 9 o3 e

SEE

C pEREE
5

3
.' ﬂmj' 4 vy { ;/' @ 3 R N 2 o
e w - . g ‘ *
rlC St

January 30, 2015

B ergassociates

architects // engineers // planners

. 1427 W. Saginaw, Suite 200
East Lansing, MI 48823
517.272.9835 phone
517.272.9836 fax




Table of Contents

[. PURPOSE AND SCOPE.......cocceiiririeeiiceieecnee e e erre e JE R 1

IIl. EXISTING CONDITIONS ... oo e er s 3
A. Study Area Roadways.............ouvriniinmnrsinnsnicinn, et ereeateeieeaaeareeeraner e e s nnanas 3

B. Study Area Intersections (Listed east to west, south to (010] 1 ¢ 0 ) SO 4

HI. TRAFFIC VOLUMES ..ottt et s 6

~ A. Existing Traffic Volumes............c...c.... . U PREPRPPRTPP 6

B. Background Traffic VOIUMES ........ccccoeiniiiiinicecie PO SRS 9

C. Trip GENETAtION ....ecevieeeeciiiiie e e e ercreer e e rne s ereerrereraeaeenanan 12

. D. Trip Distribution and ASSIgNMENT .........c..cocrerrrerieninie e seneserenrenens e eaas 12

E. Projected Traffic Volumes with Development.........c..ovveere.n.. e e a ettt anreereraaas 14

IV. TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ANALYSIS .....ccccoveerieene et eeheeeeeaeasteraeeeaeeaareeareasnenae e nnnes 17

A. EXiSting (2015) CONGIONS ......vcvevveerececsisiseesesstesenseseses s eseesensssnessnssessssasassnsessnns 17

B. Future No-Build (2016) Conditions.............cocceveeiiininieninns et 20

C. Future Build (2016) Conditions — Phase 1 ..o 22

D. Future No-BUild (2018) CONGIIONS ... ..vv..oveeerereecesseeseeeseessereessesssesessesressseesenesen 24

E. Future Build (2018) Conditions — Phase 2 .........cccoociiiicicine i 26

F. Proposed Site Driveways Right Turn Lane Warrants......... errev et rr e e et aaen e e e e eaes 28

V. OKEMOS ROAD/JOLLY ROAD INTERSECTI.ON OPERATIONS ..o 28

VI. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS ..ot cercnc st seecns s een s cimeesesnnnn s seneneeenes 29

VII. RECOMMENDATIONS ...cooiiiiiiiimimt st 29

Appendices

Appendix A - Proposed Site Plan

Appendix B - Traffic Count Information

Appendix C - Level of Service Definitions

Appendix D - Synchro Level of Service Intersection Reports
Appendix E - Trip Generation Information

Appendix F — Right-Turn Lane Warrants

WestPac Campus Commuhities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study




nn

clatas

té% iC I® Ber gma

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

WestPac Campus Communities, LLC is proposing a new apartment complex in Meridian
Township, Ingham County, MI. This Traffic Impact Study (TIS) has been prepared to
document the existing traffic conditions of the study area and to evaluate the estimated future
“traffic conditions and impacts as a result of the proposed development. The development
assumptions under which this study was conducted was that the proposed development

would consist of two phases as follows:

Table 1: Proposed Construction v _ A
Number of Additional -  Estimated Time of

Development Type Units Completion
Phase 1: Apartments 250 Units 2016
Phase 2: Apartments 250 Units 2018

It is important to note that the assumptions listed above are conservative when compared to
the proposed site plan (current site plan proposes only 466 fofal units, while 500 total units
are assumed). The project site is located in the northwest quadrant of the Okemos Road
and Jolly Road intersection (See Figure 1). Please refer to Appendix A for the proposed site
plan for the development. The intent of this traffic impact study is to document the existing
traffic conditions and evaluate the potential transportation- impacts of the proposed
development on the surrounding roadway transportation system, if any.

The following methodology was used to conduct this study:
1. Conduct site visits to obtain roadwéy geometry and observe traffic operations.

2. Perform manual turning movement counts at study area intersections and summarize
the existing weekday morning and evening peak hour traffic volumes.

3. Project the existing traffic volumes to the proposed construction years. Phase 1 is
estimated to-be completed in 2016 and Phase 2 in 2018. Each phase will consist of

the construction of 250 apartment dwelling units.

4. Estimate the number of new trips generated by the proposed development, distribute
the trips on the surrounding: roadways and add the projected frips to the background

traffic volumes.

5. Evaluate the traffic operations of study area intersections under existing traffic
conditions and future traffic conditions, with and without the proposed project for both

Phase 1 and Phase 2.

6. Summarize existing and future traffic operational deficiencies, potential impacts of the
proposed development on the roadway system and identify mitigation measures for
future deficiencies caused by the proposed development, if any.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 1




Bergmant

gssociatas

Jolly Oak Rd
S L
Water Lily

Forsberg Drive
(Proposed S.
Site Drive)

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study ~— 2 '




WestPac - - - % Bergmann

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS

A. Study Area Roadways
1. Okemos Road

Okemos Road is classified as a north-south minor arterial within the study area however,
it functions as a major arterial. From its intersection with Jolly Road north thru the study
area, Okemos Road consists of two (2) 12-foot wide concrete travel lanes in each
dlrectlon with a 12—foot two-way center left-turn lane.

The pavement along Okemos Road in the study area is in good condition. The posted
speed limit is 45 mph within the study limits. Land use along Okemos Road in the study

. area is primarily commereial.

2. Jolly Road

Jolly Road is an east-west minor arterial that consists of two (2) 12-ft wide HMA travel
lanes in each direction with a 12-ft two-way center left turn lane within the study area. The
- travel lanes are bounded by curb and gutter and enclosed dramage The existing

pavement is in good condition.

A speed limit of 45 mph is posted on Jolly Road within the study area. Land use along
Jolly Road is primarily commercial thru the study area.

3. Jolly Oak Road

Jolly Oak Road is a collector roadway that provides access to commercial properties in
the NW quadrant of the Okemos Road & Jolly Road intersection. This roadway connects
" to Okemos Road and consists of two (2) 16-ft wide HMA travel lanes with curb and gutter
and enclosed drainage. The pavement was noted as being in good condition during field
review. The speed limit was not posted along this- roadway however was assumed to be

25 mph for the purposes of this study.

4. Water Lily Way

Water Lily Way is a collector roadway that also provides access to commercial properties

in the NW quadrant of the Okemos Road & Jolly Road intersection. This roadway

connects to both Jolly Road and Jolly Oak Road and consists of two (2) 16-ft wide HMA

travel lanes with curb and gutter and enclosed drainage. The pavement was noted as

being in good condition during field review. The speed limit was not posted along this
. roadway however was assumed to be 25 mph for the purposes of this study.

5. Woodlake Drive

Woodlake Drive is a collector roadway that provides access to commercial properties and
businesses in the SW quadrant of the Okemos Road & Jolly Road intersection. This
roadway connects to both Jolly Road and Okemos Road and consists of two (2) 16-ft
wide HMA travel lanes with curb and gutter and enclosed drainage. The pavement was

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 3




s Bergmany

assagiatas

noted as being in good condition during field review. The speed limit was not posted along
- this roadway however was assumed to be 25 mph for the purposes of this study.

6. Forsberg Commercial Access Drive

- The Forsberg Commercial Access Driveway currently provides access to a small strip
mall on Jolly Road. Per the site plan for the apartment complex, this driveway is proposed
to be extended to provide access to the proposed development from Jolly Road.
Currently, this driveway consists of two lanes with widths that vary from 12-ft to 16-ft.
Limited parking exists along the driveway. The pavement was noted as being in good
condition during field review. No speed limit is posted on this driveway.

7. Farrin Pkwy

Farrin Pkwy is a collector roadway that provides access to commercial properties north
of Jolly Oak Road. The roadway currently connects to Okemos Road, Jolly Oak Road,
and Water Lily Way and consists of two (2) lanes with widths that vary from 10-ft to 12-t.
No speed limit was posted on this roadway however was assumed to be 25 mph for the

purposes of this study.

. Study Area Intersectiohs (Listed east to west, south to north)

1. Jolly Road & Woodlake Drive / Forsherg Driveway

Woodlake Drive and the commercial Forsberg Driveway connect to Jolly Road via an
unsignalized intersection. The eastbound and westbound Jolly Road approaches are free
flow and consist of one exclusive thru lane, one shared right-turn/thru lane and a shared
two-way left-turn lane. On the west approach, the two-way left-turn lane ends
approximately 250 ft west of the intersection. On the east approach, the two-way left-turn
lane continues east beyond the intersection. All lane widths are 12-ft wide.

The stop controlled southbound approach (Forsberg Driveway) does not have pavement
markings - denoting lane assignments however, based upon field review, it was
determined that the approach consisted of a shared right-turn/thru lane and an exclusive
left-turn lane. Lane widths on this approach are approximately 11-ft wide to accommodate

the lane usage. ;

The stop controlled northbound approach (Woodlake Drive) consists of a marked
exclusive left-turn lane and a shared right-turn/thru lane with 12-ft wide lanes.
Approximately 95 ft of vehicle storage is provided by the existing left-turn lane.

2. Jolly Road & Water Lily Way

_Jolly Road meets Water Lily Way at an unsignalized intersection. Both the eastbound
and westbound Jolly Road approaches are free flow and consist of one exclusive thru
lane, one shared right-turn/thru lane and a shared two-way lefi-turn lane. All lane widths

are 12-ft wide.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impéct Study 4




2 Ber gma

= asstelatas

WestPac

s CAMELS COMMUN RS it

The stop controlled southbound Water Lily Way approach consists of one exclusive right-
turn lane and one exclusive left-turn lane. Approximately 100 ft of vehicle storage is
provided for the existing left-turn lane. All lane widths are 12-ft wide.

3. Okemos Road & Jolly Road

Okemos Road intersects Jolly Road at a signalized intersection. The existing traffic signal
is owned and operated by the Ingham County Road Department. All intersection
approaches consist of one shared right-turn/thru lane, one exclusive thru lane and one
exclusive left-turn lane. All lane widths are 12-feet. All of the existing exclusive left-turn
lanes extend beyond the intersection as continuous two-way left-turn lanes.

4. Okemos Road & Jolly Oak Road

Jolly Oak Road meets Okemos Road at an unsignalized intersection. The northbound
Okemos Road approach consists of two exclusive thru lanes and a shared two-way left-
turn lane that extends beyond the intersection. The southbound approach consists of an
exclusive right-turn lane, two exclusive thru lanes, and a shared two-way left-turn lane
that extends beyond the intersection. Approximately 90 ft of vehicle storage is provided
for the existing right-turn lane. The northbound and southbound (Okemos Road)
approaches are free flow. All lane widths are 12-ft wide.

The stop controlled eastbound Jolly Oak Road approach does not have pavement
markings denoting lane assignments however, based upon field review, it was
determined that the approach consisted of a shared right-turn/thru lane and an exclusive
left-turn lane. Lane widths on this approach are apprommately 12-ft wide to accommodate

the noted lane usage.

-

- 5, Okemos Road & Farrin Pkwy

Farrin Pkwy meets Okemos Road. at an unsignalized intersection. The northbound
Okemos Road approach consists of two exclusive thru lanes and a shared two-way left-
turn lane that extends beyond the intersection. The southbound approach consists of a
shared right-turn/thru lane, an exclusive thru lane and a shared two-way left-turn lane that
extends beyond the intersection. The northbound and southbound (Okemos Road)
approaches are free flow. All lane widths are 12-ft wide.

The stop controlled eastbound Farrin Pkwy approach does not have pavement markings
denoting lane assignments however, based upon field review, it was determined that the
approach consisted of a shared right-turn/thru lane and an exclusive left-turn lane. Lane
widths on this approach are approximately 10-ft wide to accommodate the noted lane

usage.

6. Jolly Oak Road, Water Lily Way & Farrin Pkwy

Farrin Pkwy meets Jolly Oak Road and Water Lily Way at an uncontrolled intersection.
The northbound Water Lily Way approach consists of a shared right-turn/thru lane, the
southbound Farrin Pkwy approach consists of a shared left-turn/thru lane and the

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 5




/% Bergmann

aysachitas

es _jgﬁ

C[?'\[\“}le\

westbound Jolly Oak Road approach consists of a shared right-turn/left-turn lane. Lane
widths vary from approximately 12-ft to 16-ft.

Ill. TRAFFIC VOLUMES
A. Existing Traffic Volumes

Manual turning movement counts were performed by Bergmann Associates at five of the six
study area intersections on Wednesday, January 6, 2015 and Thursday, January 7, 2015.
The counts for the Okemos Road and Jolly Road intersection were collected by Bergmann
Associates on Tuesday, June 4, 2013 and Wednesday, June 5, 2013. The counts were
recorded in 15-minute intervals to enable the identification of the peak hour and traffic
peaking characteristics and heavy vehicle activity within that hour. Morning and evening
count hours lasted from 7:00 to 9:00 AM and from 4:00 to 6:00 PM, respectively each count
day. Counts conducted during the mid-week represent the most typical patterns of average .

commuter traffic.

The weekday morning peak hour generally occurred from 7:15 to 8:15 AM. The evening peak
generally occurred between 4:30 and 5:30 PM. Turning movement volumes for each of the
study area intersections were reasonably balanced where appropriate. The existing weekday
morning and evening peak hour fraffic volumes are shown in Figure 2. The percent
commercial traffic for each individual movement is shown in Figure 3.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 6 -




™

=

3
&
S
~E
FARRIN PKHY J l
0 {1)—A
2 110 —
B
0
o
o~
~-i
o 2
5. €8
== 33
o pi
l L A 0] )J l
90 (50} JOLLY OAK RD
: 31 (44 —A
48 (49)—
gs 2R
> 0 o
= ~—
> 3
5
]
5 S
izé
& i
- oy oZ8
B i - =z
o2 e Sen
oo [M%—7 (g S SRS | N 75 (102)
~— 157 {567) : g2 ~— 450 (265)
JOLLY ROAD — 66 (15) ~—2 778 (492) — 426 (440) JOLLY ROAD
(6) —~ 12 (5) —A 160 (262) —7
405 (652) —» 406 (838) —» 161 (341) —
| domme 126 (259 — [ Ll
pxcad ity
-5 oS
[1-] -
o 88
, HOODLAKE DR /
[=~]
-
b
172
(=3
&5
5
LEGEND -
XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
{XXX) = PM PEAK VOLUME
DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE cs: FIGURE 2 DRAWING] SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

FILE:

2015 EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES 7




=

i
o
b
Ov{
FARRIN PKHY ) l
0% (0% —A
0% (0%)'—'\
<]
ed
o
f=112]
28 s
£e oo
58 i
l L 0% (0% J 1
y—3e 0w JOLLY 04K RD ‘
3% (0%) —A
2% 0% —
Fg o]
as ad
= 55 | 8%
jai
3
]
=
£
e e .
TR ~38 =23t
268 ag R
TRELE 32t TN
5o [“ gy (0%) ~o o= [ gy (39)
J l L «—2% (1% J L N 12% (50%) ) 1 L ~—2% (2%
JOLLY ROAD p— 0% 0% ~—Z 2w p 1 GA JOLLY ROAD
0 (0% — | 8% (0% — 6% (23—
21 (1) — 2% (1%) —> 4% @) —
% OR | gaa A | aaq
, R Bod
S BRs
g :
HOODLAKE DR
2
e
w3
£
Y
(=3
LEGEND
XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
{XXX) = PM PEAK VOLUME
DESIGN UNIT: ) TSC: DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE Cs: : FIGURE 3 ) DRAWING] SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY
FILE: 2015 PERCENT TRUCKS BY MOVEMENT 8




: :T .
/‘-\:\

IR Bergmann

EEELIHEIEE]

WestPac

57 CAMEUS COMM UN ITHES ezl

B. Background Trafﬁc Volumes

The estimated time of completion (ETC) for this project is 2018 with the total project to be
constructed in two phases. The first phase is estimated to be completed in 2016 and the
second phase in 2018. Based upon the proposed completion dates, a background growth
rate of 0.50% per year (compounded annually) was utilized to develop background traffic
volumes. This growth rate is based upon historic traffic volumes and studies in the immediate

vicinity of the project area.

- It was noted during field review that an MSU Federal Credlt Union (MSU FCU) is currently .
being constructed within the project area and is anticipated to be completed by 2016. Based
upon the traffic study developed for the credit union, the generated trips at the study area
intersections have been added into the No-Build traffic volumes for Phases 1 and 2.

It is important to note that the anticipated traffic volumes generated by the proposed
development for Phase 1 (2016) were also added to the Phase 2 (2018) No-Build traffic
volumes to reflect the actual traffic volumes with the Phase 1 construction complete but, prior
to the completion of the Phase 2 construction. The resulting No-Build traffic volumes for
Phase 1 (2016) and Phase 2 (2018) are shown in Figure 4 and 5.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 9




LB
&
8
=
FARRIN PKHY »J l
0 (1) —
2 (10) —
B3
ot
]
&S o]
- | S
=< B3
—o P
l L Y9 (0) : ) l
80 1500 JOLLY GAK RD
: 40 (70—
48 (49) —
gz s
| < e
p)
5
:
R
& B
g -
§ g c5g
Sac - = 533 |
W ~n s s
o88 = S
won f% 7 (g i < S 75 (103)
J —— 761 (570) J L "8 (2) ) l\ ~— 476 (323)
JOLLY ROAD — 66 (15) ~— 782 (494) — 428 (442) JOLLY ROAD
11 t6) — a4 (87— 169 (292) —4
407 (655) —= 400 (819) —» 19 ol — [
70 (19) — <55 144 (30— g8
m‘-aU Ney
- SR
WOODLAKE DR /
<
2
a
&
S
- LEGEND
XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
(XXX) = PM PEAK VOLUME
)
. DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE CS: - FIGURE 4 DRAWING| SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY
FILE: ' 2016 NO BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES - 10




S

o
a9
-
= 1
X io
(=]
-~
z N
[=]
o
s
N
~5
FARRIN PKHY ) l
PROPOSED 18 (1) — ‘] I
SITE DRIVE 1 Y S
83
o9
PROPOSED Gal @
SITE DRIVE 2 \ ) §§ a
PROPOSED ©w
SITE DRIVE 3 > ag
PROPOSED Ja Y JOLLY 0AK RD /J l
SITE DRIVE 4\ | / 52 (82—
72 (64— w I .
g2
~o
.
[T-]
o
8
3 PROPOSED
£ SITE DRIVE 5
. No . .
N
Ji
1 §
AL] >
P < ]
-8 5 2% .
~i . ) i
8 5 & Sq |57 ERE]
Qe bt = -
o N gas
Son [N 19 (20) Y RS N7 (119
) L ——— 780 (581) ) L N 14 (22) J l L ~— 485 {340)
JOLLY ROAD /—67 {15]) —~— 793 (510} r—‘432 quJOLLY ROAD
14 (20) — 15 (92)—A 170 (295)—A
412 (BB7) ~—> 405 (829) —>- 187 (411)—
71 (19) 11 157 (3200 — | am
222 | BES
S 223
N~
HOODLAKE DR /
2 LEGEND ~
@ XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
@l (XXX} = PM PEAK VOLUME
g
o
DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE CS: FIGURE 5 DRAWING] SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY ]
FILE: 2018 NO-BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 11




. S o
== .
\

‘WestPac

= o cas it e tazes o |

! Bergmann

gssacigtas

C. Trip Generation

The Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Report, Trip Generation, 9t Edition, was
utilized for the trip generation analysis of the proposed development. This report is a
compilation of trip data for various land uses as collected by the transportation professionals
throughout the United States in order to establish the average number of trips generated by
those land uses. It is the intent of this project to construct the total development in two
phases. Each phase is proposed to consist of the construction of 250 dwelling units. In order
to estimate the maximum amount of generated traffic, it was assumed that each dwelling unit
within the development is occupied. In addition, as noted earlier, this analysis assumes 500
total units while the proposed site plan shows only 466 units resulting in a conservative
analysis. The overall trip generation results are summarized in the following table:

Table 2: Generated Trips for Subject Site

Development Information Generated Trips
Land Use JTE Sive AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Code ~ Enter Exit Total | Enter Exit Total
- Phase 1
Apartment | 220 250 Units 26 100 | 126 101 54 | 155
Phase 2
Apartment | 220 250 Units 26 100 126 101 - b4 155

D. Trip Distribution and Assignment

The generated trips, as shown in the table above, were distributed to the surrounding project
area intersections based upon the existing traffic movements into and out of the project area.
There are six driveways providing inbound and outbound access. to the proposed
development as shown in Appendix A. Trips were distributed to these driveways based on
the intended direction of the vehicles and proximity of the driveways to the population centers
of the proposed development. The trip distributions of site generated traffic volumes for the
AM and PM peak hours are shown in Figure 6. The volumes in the figure detail the generated
trips for a single phase (250 units) of construction. Because both proposed construction
phases consist of the same number of apartment dwelling units, the distribution of generated
trips in Figure 6 reflect trips generated during both Phase 1 and Phase 2.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing~ Development Traffic Impact Study 12




) L 1 @
5201

2 (6)—rA

g (22) —

8
0N
FARRIN PKHY J l
"\. PROPOSED 18 (10— 1
SITE DRIVE 1 1
o~
=
—
PROPOSED by
SITE DRIVE 2 ‘
g PROPOSED g
~——3 (11) SITE DRIVE 3 ) =
/"'—1 {3} J
PROPOSED ™ JOLLY 0AK RD
W 1 [' SITE DRIVE 4 ————~\_| / 2 A
=05 23 (14—~
o5 g
(7]
PROPOSED
SITE ‘DRIVE 5
: .
:l>-
= 5
By B = S
o A a2
3 (11) ¢ (20} N2 (8)
JOLLY ROAD =126 =—3 {i1) ~—4 {14 oLy RoAD
3 (14 —A 1 (5)—A 7 {7)—
1 (5) — 1 ()— 12 (B—
@
oo
0w
WOODLAKE DR
E LEGEND
&| XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
@ XXX = PM PEAK VOLUME
E .
S
DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01/30/15
. NO SCALE CS: FIGURE 6 DRAWING| SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

FILE:

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT TRIP DISTRIBUTION 13




. TR ST )
WestPac | | ) Bergmann

- E. Projected Traffic Volumes with Development

The total projected Build traffic volumes for each phase were determined by adding the No-
Build traffic volumes (existing & background growth) to the projected development traffic.
The projected volumes for the weekday morning and evening peak hours after construction
of Phase 1 (2016) and Phase 2 (2018) of the proposed development are provided in Figures

7 and 8.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 14




Y

J L\——i @
24 23

G N
3
S
\1 t ~5
85 FARRIN PRHY J L
Pt 18 (11)—
o PROPOSED 2 (10) — ‘1 t
- SITE DRIVE 1 &
bt or ]
QO
30
-
PROPOSED = 3
SITE DRIVE 2° B
\ —on
PROPOSED ——
SITE DRIVE 3 ) et
PROPOSED ™ JOLLY 0AK RD J l
SITE DRIVE 4~ ———\_| / 52 181) —A
) 71 63— 1 t
&5
o
s
w
m
3
PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 5
1 g
68 3,
-~ ne =t
- = 5338
bS] a8 | B et
o N < O
@85 2% = Eig
—— -
7 (Ao e il K- =
14 (2
JOLLY ROAD J 1 L — 66 (15) J L ~—185 (505) »J 1 L 428 (492} JoLLY RoAD
—A i 169 (292) —
408, 1560 —o T 136 (408) —»- W ' (
o 401 (820 111y —
—| g8 g3k
&=3 SE§
2 KR
WOODLAKE DR /
g LEGEND
2 XXX = AW PEAK VOLUME
@l (XXX} = PM PEAK VOLUME
g
(=)
DESIGN UNIT: T5C;

NO SCALE -

DATE: 01/30/15

cS:

FIGURE 7

DRAWING| SHEET

JN:

FHIE:

WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

2016 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES

15




g
o)

j.3

g (g —A
10 (6)—

4 {12) —~

20 (44) —>

\

8 (38)—~

18 (10)—

5 N
-
—~O
§=
)i
8F FARRIN PKHY J l
)
AN PROPOSED 18 (11—~ *] f
o SITE DRIVE 1 2010 —
B3
=
PROPOSED ) S o
SITE DRIVE 2 ) el
PROPOSED : o
SITE DRIVE 3 ) 32
PROPOSED /1N JOLLY 0AK RD J 1
SITE DRIVE 4~ X[ 52 19—
: : 95 (78)—
5a
~o
. oS
=
3
©
PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 5
w 1 >
—— pi= )
o2 % -
& = g |8= 288
. Sga °F | = o=
=2 o2 &g
Rom [ %43 (31) sy <% g0 (120)
—~— 792 (586) S 20 (42) ) ~— 489 (354)
67 (15) —.—— 432 (447)
JOLLY ROAD ry— 96 {521 JOLLY ROAD
p—
17 34— 46 (57—~ 170 (295) *] T (
413, (672) —> W T r 406 (B30) —> M=
U9 —| zax T\ =8
| gva ggg
L D
& 523
HOODLAKE DR
g LEGEND
€| XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
@l (XX} = PM PEAK VOLUME
&
S
. DESIGN UNIT: TSC: ) DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE cs: - FIGURE 8 DRAWING] SHEET
. JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES -TRAFFIC STUDY

FILE:

2018 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES

16




o ¢
WestPac

IV. TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ANALYSIS

2 Bergmany

gssqagiatas

Based on the traffic counts, traffic volume projections, traffic peaking characteristics, and
intersection geometry, a level of service analysis was conducted for the following traffic

conditions:

- Existing (2015) .

- Future No-Build Phase 1 (20186)
- Future Build Phase 1 (2016)

~ Future No-Build Phase 2 (2018)
- Future Build Phase 2 (2018)

This analysis is necessary to determine the ability of an intersection or roadway to
accommodate traffic. Level of service (LOS) is a qualitative. measure that describes motorist
satisfaction with various factors influencing.the degree of traffic congestion. These factors
include travel time, speed, maneuverability, and delay.

The level of service analysis methodology for analyzing signalized and unsignalized
intersections is documented in the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) (Transportation
Research Board, Washington D.C., 2010). Levels of service range from A to F. LOS A
describes operations with little or no delay while LOS F describes highly congested
conditions with substantial delays. LOS D or better is generally considered acceptable for
peak hours of traffic under urban peak hour conditions similar to the study area intersections.

Synchro software was used to. analyze the fraffic operations at both the signalized and
unsignalized intersections. Synchro allows for the analysis and optimization of isolated
signals and coordinated traffic signal systems. The Synchro model accounts for the affects
upstream intersection operations have on individual intersections when developing Levels of
Service. A base model of the traffic operations network was developed for the study area
which included signal timing data provided by the MDOT and Ingham County Road

Department (ICRD) and existing roadway characteristics.

A. Existing (2015) Conditions

The level of service results for existing AM and PM peak hours are shown in Figure 9.
Results are shown for the overall intersection and each lane group at signalized locations.
Levels of service for the critical movements are shown at each unsignalized location.
Corresponding values of control delay in seconds per vehicle (s/veh) are summarized in
tables included in Appendix D. As shown, all of the intersection approaches within the study
area are currently operating at acceptable levels of service (LOS D or better) during both the
morning and evening peak hours with the exception of the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection.

Analysis of the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection shows significant capacity constraints within
the intersection. In general, the left-turn movements throughout the intersection account for
the majority of the intersection delays, however, the shared through/right-turn movements on
each bound also experience significant delays with only the northbound and westbound
shared through/right-turn movements currently calculated to operate at acceptable levels of

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 17




% Bergmann

asancintas

service (LOS D) during the morning peak and only the westbound shared through/right-turn
movement calculated to operate at an acceptable LOS during the evening peak. As shown .
in the following figure, the overall intersection is calculated to operate at LOS E under the
morning peak hour and LOS F under evening peak hour conditions. Please refér to Section
V. Okemos Road/Jolly Road intersection Operations for further information regarding the

operations at this intersection.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 18




JOLLY ROAD

=

FARRIN PKWY @G’

F—hw@

%/
B (B—d  ©

©

WATER LILY WAY

omm

>—pw

&/

JOLLY QAK RD . @?

A

B (B)

JOLLY ROAD

ST0P

WOODLAKE DR

OVERALL INTERSECTION LOS: E (P}

2
2
3
g
S LEGEND
XXX = AM PEAK LOS
(XXX) = PM PEAK LOS
(D MINOR ROADWAY STOP CONTROL
DESIGN UNIT: To: , DATE: 01/30/15
NO SCALE CS: FIGURE 9 DRAWING| SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY
FILE: EXISTING LEVEL OF SERVICE 19




/'% Bergmann

EEELIHE

B. Future No-Build (2016) Conditions

The level of service results for future No-Build (2016) conditions are shown in Figure 10.
Results are shown for the overall intersection and each lane group at signalized locations.
Levels of service.for the critical movements are shown at each unsignalized location.
Corresponding values of control delay in seconds per vehicle (s/veh) are summarized in

tables included in Appendix D.

As shown, all of the intersection approaches within the study aréa are projected to continue
to operate at the same LOS as-existing conditions with the exception of the following

movements:

e Water Lily Way/Jolly Road intersection ‘
o Southbound right-turn movement (AM and PM peak)

e Okemos/Jolly Road intersection
o Eastbound left-turn (AM Peak)
o Eastbound shared through/right-turn (AM Peak)

The southbound right-turn ‘'movement at the Water Lily Way/Jolly Road intersection is
projected to continue to operate at an acceptable LOS however, operations are projected to
degrade from a LOS B to a LOS C during both the morning and evening peak hours. The
eastbound approach (left-turn and shared through/right-turn [anes) to the Okemos/Jolly Road
intersection is projected to degrade during the morning peak hour only from LOS E to LOS
F under No-Build (2016) conditions. As shown, the overall intersection LOS for the morning
and evening peak hours are E and F, respectively. Please refer to V. Okemos Road/Jolly
Road intersection Operations for further information regarding the operations at this -

intersection.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 20




FARRIN PKHY J@P
A (00—
B (Bl —

=0

B (B)—+

A JOLLY OAK RD

pm— ©

L3

c o) —4
BBl —

WATER LILY WAY

y—ER JOLLY ROAD

oa
Om .
J L B (A ::{LLL & <&—D [}

JOLLY ROAD

OVERALL INTERSECTION LOS: E (F)]

WOODLAKE DR

2
2
8
g
© LEGEND
XXX = AM PEAK LOS
(XXX} = PM PEAK LOS
(D MINOR ROADWAY STOP CONTROL
: DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01730715
NO SCALE cs: FIGURE 10 DRAWING| SHEET
N ‘WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY
FILE: o 2016 NO-BUILD LEVEL OF SERVICE 21




Gail Oranchak

From: | Martha Wyatt

Sent: Tuesday, March 03, 2015 8:14 AM

To: Gail Oranchak

Subject: FW: Traffic study for new development
Hi Gail-

| had sent the Forsberg traffic study to the ICRD to Iook at and here are their comments.

Martha Wyatt :

Associate Planner/Landscape Architect
Phone: 517.853.4580

Fax: 517.853.4095
wyatt@meridian.mi.us
www.meridian.mi.us

From: Peterson, Robert [mailto:rpeterson@ingham.org]
Sent: Monday, March 02, 2015 8:57 AM

To: Martha Wyatt

Cc: Mark Kieselbach; Hartman, James; Conklin, William
Subject: FW: Traffic study for new development

Martha:

We have reviewed the 01-30-15 WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Study you sent us on 02-
13-15 and have the following comments.

1.

Jolly Oak Road has been signed 35 MPH, pursuant to a recent Traffic Control Order issued by the Michigan State
Police.

Turning counts at 5 of the 6 study area intersections were performed in early January 2015. The turning counts
for Jolly Road at Okemos Road were collected 18 months earlier (early June 2013) —as part of the JNL traffic
study. June volumes are pretty dated especially with the sensitivity of the intersection’s operational issues.
Existing traffic data with growth applied plus “committed projects” traffic data, like the JNL project, should be
incorporated into traffic studies if they have impacts on the same adjacent roadway network. It really does
matter in this case as the Jolly and Okemos Road intersection is already functioning poorly during peak traffic. In
two years when both JNL and WestPac projects are in place, there is no doubt that there will be a perceptible
increase in traffic with longer queues, delays, and lengthening of peak traffic periods. JNL's office expansion is
slated for completion in August 2015. They intend to populate the new building over a two year period once
completed. At the very least, the 2018 build-out scenario should reflect the proposed JNL traffic.

Mr. Forsberg visited the ICRD and indicated that their focus group for marketing the apartments will be JNL and
Delta Dental employees. Based on the trip generation model, distribution, and assignment please provide a
table listing the total quantity of trips generated by the WestPac development and what quantity of those trips
will approach each of the 4 approaches to the Jolly Road and Okemos Road intersection durlng the AM and PM
peak.

The future Build (2018) Condition — Phase 2 paints a pretty bleak picture for the Jolly and Okemos

intersection. Indicating that the addition of 10 trips during the design hour lowers the SB'thru/right from LOS E
to LOS F. Please provide a discussion on how addition of a dedicated SB right turn lane would mitigate the
intersection LOS.

Generally, the study states that the Jolly and Okemos intersection operates poorly during peak traffic and that
the addition of more traffic will cause it to function worse. Does that mean that unacceptable queues develop
and delays exceed the accepted values or does it mean more? The question is how close is the intersection

1




operation to affecting the 1-96 operations? The JNL study has already indicated that the intersection has the
potential to cause backups on the interstate system, especially during the PM peak. This study suggests that
“significant improvements would be required” at the Jolly and Okemos intersection “to improve operations to
within acceptable ranges”. It also suggests new interchanges as a region wide mitigation for the Jolly and
Okemos intersection. Pretty sure those are not a serious mitigation strategy.

Sincerely,

Robert H. Peterson, P.E.

Ingham County Road Department
Director of Engineering

County Highway Engineer

(517) 676-9722 ext 2336
rpeterson@ingham.org

From: Martha Wyatt [mailto:wyatt@meridian.mi.us]
Sent: Friday, February 13, 2015 9:09 AM
To: Peterson, Robert; Conklin, William
Cc: Mark Kieselbach
Subject: Traffic study for new development

Hi Bob and Bill-

The Forsberg Family LLC has presented a concept plan to the Township recently for a mixed use planned unit
development off of Water Lily Way, Jolly Road, Farrins Parkway, and Kansas. They are proposing 400-500 apartment
units'and an approximate 20,000 fitness center. The first step is to rezone several parcels within the project area to

- commercial (C-2). A rezoning application has been submitted which includes a traffic study. The rezoning request is
tentatively scheduled for a public hearing on March 9 at the Planning Commission but it’s not for sure yet. The concept
plan has been presented to the Planning Commission and Township Board once and is coming back to the Board on
February 17 and to the Planning Commission on February 23.

We wanted youto be aware of the project and are sending you the traffic study. It does not appear to acknowledge
future traffic impacts from the Jackson National expansion project. We would appreciate any comments you may have
on the project or the traffic study. Thank you for your consideration of this.

Martha Wyatt

Associate Planner/Landscape Architect
Phone: 517.853.4580

Fax: 517.853.4095
wyatt@meridian.mi.us
www.meridian.mi.us




A Belg

BSSONBIES

West P -
A : e
e GAMPLS COSMUNGIES -

C. Future Build (2016) Conditions — Phase 1

The level of service results for future Build (2016) conditions are shown in Figure 11. Results
are shown for the overall intersection and each lane group at signalized locations. Levels of
service for the critical movements are shown at each unsignalized location. Corresponding
values of control delay in seconds per vehicle (s/veh) are summarized in tables included in

Appendix D.

. As shown in Figure 11, all of the intersection approaches within the study area are projected
to operate at acceptable levels of service (LOS D or better) during the 2016 Build morning
and evening peak hours with the exception of the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection. As shown,
the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection remains at an overall intersection LOS E for the morning
peak and a LOS F for the evening peak, similar to existing conditions. Please refer to V.
. Okemos Road/Jolly Road infersection Operations for further information regarding the

operations at this intersection.

As noted in Section Il.B of this document, the Jolly Oak/Water Lily Way/Farrin Pkwy
intersection is currently uncontrolled. Due to the proximity of the proposed Site Driveway #4,
both the proposed Site Driveway #4 and the Jolly Oak Road approach should be stop sign
controlled while the northbound and southbound movements would be free flow. Each bound

should consist of a single, shared left /thru/right-turn lane.

As shown in Figure 11, all of the intersection approaches within the study area are projected
to continue to operate at the same LOS as No-Build (2016) conditions with the exception of

the following movement:

¢ Okemos/Farrin Pkwy
o Eastbound left-turn (AM peak)

The eastbound left-turn movement at the Okemos/Jolly Oak Road intersection is projected
to continue to operate at an acceptable LOS however, operations are projected to degrade
from a LOS A to a LOS C during the evening peak hour. No left-turn movements were
- recorded during the existing conditions, so the LOS decreasing is due to the 18 left-turn
movements that were distributed to this intersection. As the level of service remains within
acceptable levels, this turning movement is not shown to be significantly impacted by Phase
1 of the development. The levels of service for the remaining study area intersection
movements remained.the same between the 2016 No-Build and Build conditions.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 22




-%—A (A)
\?/
w
=

A (A

N
A& _<..
iz

SITE .DRIVE 2

PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 3
PROPOSED J
SITE DRIVE 4 \ y
' ©)
—)
®
%
:]>—
vES
=
gs |=
Oom
JU

SITE DRIVE 1

PROPOSED

PROPOSED

FARRIN PRY

JOLLY OAK RD

C {e)—~A

B (B —
g8
m

w
e
=

S
¢ —A
B (B—

—

B (B)

=

@

[OVERALL INTERSECTION LOS: E (F)

WOODLAKE DR

LEGEND

OKEMOS ROAD

XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
(XXX) = PM PEAK VOLUME

(D MINOR ROADWAY STOP CONTROL

(@ sTOP CONTROL ON EB DRIVEWAY

& WB JOLLY OAK

NO SCALE

FILE:

DESIGN UNIT: TsC: DATE: 01/30/15
CS: FIGURE 11 DRAWING} SHEET
JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

2016 BUILD LEVEL OF SERVICE

23




7 GRS COND N RS e

D. Future No-Build (2018) Conditions

The level of service results for future No-Build (2018) conditions are shown in Figure 12.
Results are shown for the overall intersection and each lane group at signalized locations.
Levels of service for the critical movements are shown at each unsignalized location.
Corresponding values of control delay in seconds per vehicles (s/veh) are summarized in
tables included in Appendix D. '

Similar to the previous analyses, all of the intersection approaches within the study area are
projected to continue to operate at acceptable levels of service (LOS D or better) during the
2018 No-Build morning and evening peak hours with the exception of the Okemos/Jolly Road
intersection. As shown, the overall intersection LOS for the morning and evening peak hours
are E and F, respectively. Please refer to V. Okemos Road/Jolly Road Intersection
Operations for further information regarding the operations of this intersection. -

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impéct Study 24




A (A)——-<
FARRIN PKHY sm,®
PROPOSED ¢ (o) —~ 1
SITE DRIVE 1 Bil— | |
m
m
" PROPOSED
= SITE DRIVE 2
< PROPOSED
l ~}—B (A) SITE DRIVE 3
. ) W PROPOSED . JOLLY OAK RD @@@
A (A,_<.. \#/ SITE DRIVE 4 Q) -
= ® B (Bl— 1
< a8
m
PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 54@
6)
A (A)—-<
5
:1>—
Hs
w
o =L
el Enind
Om ——
il
) L L 4 L JX-»'LD {0} :
JOLLY ROAD @ B ,—EF)  JOLLY ROAD
’ (O]

P )
CE
(TN~}

[OVERALL INTERSECTION LOS: E (F)

WOODLAKE DR / )

LEGEND

XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
(XXX} = PM PEAK VOLUME

(D MINOR ROADWAY STOP CONTROL

(2 STOP CONTROL ON EB DRIVEWAY
& WB JOLLY 0AK

OKEMOS ROAD

DESIGN UNIT: TSC: DATE: 01/30/15

NO SCALE  [cs: FIGURE 12 DRAWING] SHEET

JN: WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

FILE: _ 2018 NO-BUILD LEVEL OF SERVICE 25




/% Bergmann

sssoclatay

WestPac

U CAMP U COMMUNET S0

E. Future Build (2018) Conditions — Phase 2

The level of service results for future Build (2018) conditions are shown in Figure 13. Results
are shown for the overall intersection and each lane group at signalized locations. Levels of
service for the critical movements are shown at each unsignalized location. Correspondmg
values of control delay in seconds per vehicle (s/veh) are summarized in tables included in

Appendix D.

All of the intersection approaches within the study area are projected to continue to operate
at acceptable levels of service (LOS D or better) during the 2018 Build morning and evening
peak hours with the exception of the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection. As shown, the
Okemos/Jolly Road intersection remains at an overall intersection LOS E for the morning
peak and a LOS F for the evening peak. Please refer to V. -Okemos Road/Jolly Road
intersection Operations for further information regarding the operations at this intersection.

As discussed earlier, both the proposed Site Driveway #4 and the Jolly Oak Road approach
to Water Lily Way should be stop sign controlled while the northbound and southbound
movements should be free flow with the build conditions due to the proximity of the proposed
Site Driveway #4 to the existing Jolly Oak/Water Lily Way/Farrin Pkwy mtersectlon Each
bound was should consist of a single, shared left /thru/right-turn lane.

Review of the LOS diagrams shows that all of the intersection approaches within the study
area are projected to continue to operate at the same LOS as No-Build (2018) conditions

- with the exception of the following:

o Jolly Road/Okemos Road
o Southbound shared thru/right-turn (PM Peak)

¢ Jolly Oak/Water Lily Way/Farrin Pkwy
o Eastbound left /thru/right-turn (PM Peak)

The southbound shared thru/right-turn movement at the Okemos/Jolly Road intersection is
projected to degrade from LOS E to LOS F with the addition of the proposed development
traffic. However, only 10 additional trips are projected to travel through this intersection
during the PM peak and while the level of service is shown to lower to LOS F, the control
delay (seconds per vehicle) only increased by 3 seconds. This intersection is currently
operating with significant capacity issues. As intersections approach capacity even minor
fluctuations in traffic can cause significant variances in delay. However, based upon the
minor increase in control delay (only 3 seconds) and the existing poor operations of this

intersection, this turning movement is not anticipated to be significantly impacted by Phase

2 of the proposed development.

An additional 48 trips during the PM peak were assigned to the easthound left/thru/right-turn
movement at the Jolly Oak/Water Lily Way/Farrin Pkwy intersection. As shown, this
movement is projected to continue fo operate at an acceptable LOS however, the level of
service is shown to lower from a LOS A to LOS B with only a 1 second increase in control
delay. Based upon the minor control delay increase, this movement is not shown to be
significantly impacted by Phase 2 of the proposed development.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 26




=

¢ ()t

PROPOSED B (B

SITE PRIVE 1

: &)
FARRIN PKHY sm?

PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 2

PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 3

PROPOSED JOLLY CAK RD

@
T0P)
¢ (D) —
BB —y
]
oy

PROPOSED
SITE DRIVE 5‘4@

A (A)—<
a
a3
>~
o<
Lt ==
]
8 <t
e 1= ! e~
om [

D} .,
JOLLY ROAD F} JOLLY ROAD

i
p=
lig

b
folu]
F () —r
D (F)-T

[OVERALL INTERSECTION LOS: E {F)

WOODLAKE DR /

LEGEND

XXX = AM PEAK VOLUME
(XXX} = PM PEAK VOLUME

(D MINOR ROADWAY STOP CONTROL

(D STOP CONTROL ON EB DRIVEWAY
& ¥B JOLLY OAK

OKEMOS ROAD

DESIGN UNIT: T8C: DATE: 01/30/15

NO SCALE cs: FIGURE 13 — |pravine| sreET
JN: _ WESTPAC CAMPUS COMMUNITIES TRAFFIC STUDY

FILE: ) 2018 BUILD LEVEL. OF SERVICE 27




WestPac /% Bergmann

F. Proposed Site Driveways Right Turn Lane Warrants

The need for right-turn lane tapers or deceleration lanes at the proposed site driveways (as
detailed in Appendix A) was investigated per the Rules, Standards and Procedures for
Driveways, Banners and Parades Upon or Over Ingham County Road Commission Right of
Way. Based upon the guidelines set forth in this document, the right-turn movements do not
meet the warrants for a right-turn lane deceleration lane or taper. Please refer to Appendix F
for the warrants for right-turn deceleration lanes or tapers.

V. OKEMOS ROAD/JOLLY ROAD INTERSECTION OPERATIONS

As shown in.this report, the existing Okemos Road/Jolly Road intersection is currently
operating at an overall intersection LOS E during the morning peak and LOS F during the
evening peak, with the majority of the individual lane groups also operating at LOS F. Existing
Okemos Road queues have been observed to extend to adjacent intersections on all
‘approaches due to these poor operations. Based upon analysis at this intersection, many of
the movements have volume to capacity (v/c) ratios calculated near or above 1.00. When
the v/c ratio for a movement is greater than 1.00, the movement is operating above capacity,
meaning that some vehicles may be required to wait multiple signal cycle lengths before
clearing the intersection. When an intersection is operating at or above capacity like the Jolly
Road/Okemos Road intersection is, minor variations in fraffic flows may disrupt fraffic
operations through the intersection significantly. As these traffic flow variations occur, the
traffic operations of the intersection begin to breakdown. Queues may develop during the red
phase which are not serviced during the green phase. This creates longer queues for the
following signal cycle. As these queues become greater and greater in length, motorists are
forced to wait through multiple signal cycles before clearing the intersection.

Significant improvements would be required at this intersection to improve operations to
within acceptable ranges and reduce vehicle queuing regardless of the proposed WestPac
Housing Development. Regardless of the additional traffic generated by the proposed
development, this intersection will continue to operate at unacceptable levels of service

unless mitigations are implemented.

Region-wide improvements may be required to mitigate existing operational deficiencies at
this intersection which are beyond the scope of this project. Potential improvements include
construction of a new 1-96 interchange at Meridian Road or Hagadorn Road. Construction
of an interchange at Meridian Road couyld re-distribute traffic from the Okemos Road corridor
to the less densely developed corridors of Meridian Road, Jolly Road (east of Okemos Road),
and Grand River Avenue (east of Okemos Road). Construction of an interchange at
Hagadorn Road could re-distribute Okemos Road corridor traffic fo the less densely
developed corridors of Hagadorn Road, Jolly Road (west of Okemos Road), Bennett Road
(west of Okemos Road), Mt. Hope Road (west of Okemos Road), and Grand River Avenue
(west of Okemos Road). Re-distribution of this traffic will likely not only improve operations
of the Okemos Road/Jolly Road intersection but, improve operations throughout the Okemos

Road and Jolly Road corridors as a whole.

WestPac Campus Communities Hodsing Development Traffic Impact Study 28




| Westé%%{

VI. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Based on the projected traffic volumes and all analyses detailed in this report, the followmg
conclusmns are formulated:

Vil

> The level of service results comparing each of the Phase 1 and 2 Build scenarios with

their respective year No-Build scenarios suggest that the proposed development is
not expected to create SImelcant operatlonal impacts to the surrounding roadway

network.

The Okemos/Jolly Road intersection currently operates ata LOS E & F for the morning -
and evening peak hours, respectively. Significant improvements which are beyond the
scope of this project would be required at this intersection to improve operations to
within acceptable ranges prior to construction of the proposed WestPac Housing
Development. While minor increases in specific movement delays at this intersection
result from the proposed development, these delay increases are exaggerated by the
current capacity constraints at this intersection and should not significantly impact the
current operations of the intersection. :

RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendafions are éugges‘ted as a result of this analysis:

> All of the proposed site driveways should be stop sign controlled. The proposed Site

Driveways #1 thru #5 should be constructed with one inbound and at least one
outbound lane. :
The proposed southern site driveway (existing Forsberg Driveway) should be stop

sign controlled; with the proposed development access drive stopping for Jolly Road
traffic. The existing laneage for this driveway wnth one inbound and two outbound

lanes shoeuld be retained.

The existing uncontrolled Jolly Oak/Water Lily Way/Farrin Pkwy intersection should
be stop sign controlled; with the westbound Jolly Oak Road trafflc stoppmg for
northbound/southbound traffic.

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study 29




o /% Bergmann
Appendix A

Proposed Site Plan

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study




YLOTS * WADUIIYRZ MMM * /GZ0 676 0£6 * TILE OPBIOTD * UONE * 9761 xoq od

0017 596 508 * LOLEG BILIOIED © vIRqURq RIULS * J9911S 18] 505

i

seiunwiuio sndiue”) Jeg1sann

SLyLLO

m , QAIRNSN[|| UB|d Jolseyy Aleulwield . MWMWH—MQB

MAYd Doa
$SIDDV Iy
TYILNALOJ
WALSAS
TVAL VDO
AIYANNOE
103(0¥d )
¥31d DNIHSI
¥IINDD k ) ; , ) s : , : .
SSANLd mtdr o0 f . . . : ) g . WILSAS TIVaL
— — N . , TYNOIDTY
223d 100d
2 NOITUAVL
NYvVd
253d 1004

ISNOH N0 ®
3D1440 DNISYIT




/% Bergmann

zegelatas

A HB_
‘N? |5

ests. SiL
e GO COM MUNEE S 80

Appendix B
Traffic Count Information

WestPac Campus CbmmL_mities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study




gcl 667" 000 089" 95. _ eel. [wil 000" 008" OS2z  g@/¢ |v69 000 68G 699 Gl | 005 000" 0S¢ 000 GJg  |dHd
0 €C . £€8  vrh 0 08 g Sl 0 8 Z16 80 0 5z 0 gz 12101 "ddy %
(41415 a8y 0 Ll 104 QL 0Z 0 9l 5 £ 0cg g 99 pA7A L \4 0 l Q g SWNIOA [B10]
692 €Ll 0 ! §8 vz g 0 2 D 0 051 0 9z 0zl ¢ [ 0 I 0 0 N 00:80
cozze gel 0 S 801 12 L 0 g 0 z 1841 0 £z g6l 2T z 0 0 0 z WY S%:20
v vy zZsh 0 z veL 9l g 0 r4 g L 662 0 ol %% z 0 0 0 0 0 WY 0€:20
562 98 0 e 128 6 g 0 g 0 0 €02 0 g ;L 1 1 0 0 0 L WY S§1:20
) . NV GL-L03e mr__mmm uofgossIau] Uz Joy JNCH yead
’ . 1401 3edd - NV G180 0} NV 00:/0 WoJd SISAleuy Jnoy desd
[re30l Jur [ EoL'ddy [spad [we] | nuyl [ybid | BLddv | sped | Pa_ [miql | Jubrd | el ddv [spad Tys7_ [miyl [wbry | eolddv [sped | wo [niur Twbrd [swil peig
1SINA Woad Yymog wol4 . jse wol4 YUON WOl
AT10r INVIAOOM ATIOr IHVIACOM
0 0 0 0 [¢] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [¢] 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0 Z2iueg %
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Zueg
61 z 0 0 ¥z 0 7Y 0 0 00l  Geb | L1 0 1 gL 0 0 0 0 0 0 I Siued %
ZF Ll 0 0 Ll 0 z 0 0 1 1 £z 0 1 Y4 0 0 0 0 0 o} } ueg
1’86 26 0 00} 96 00F 896 0 00F 0 g8 | €96 0 66 286 00l |00} 0 o0l 0 Q0L | PeUIySUn %
[1]5#44 ge8 0 el £0L ozl 14 0 6¢g 0 L 8lel 0 66 602L Q1 0} 0 |4 0 g payiysun
6LE 0 90  z¢ 3] N3 0 1o ¥0  |S68 0 ¥y L¥S  ¥0  |¥0 0 Z0 0 €0 | %IEoL
0 - gl 98 vl 0 4% B 2’91 0 gL g6 L0 0 oy 0 09 % Yoiddy
z8z2 £ 0 gL 02  0zZL |8% 0 6¢ 1 g Lpel 0 00l  1e2L O ol 0 ¥ 0 9 [B101 puBIS
_ _ 2501 vEP 0 4 198 12 62 0 £z L g 188 0 18 S%6 g Z 0 4 0 g [ejoL
\ ¥z €6 0 0 el gl el 0 Ay 0 z 991 0 8 96l 2 z 0 1 0 P NV 57'80
062 821 0 L oL Il S 0 ¥ 0 L $G1 0 ol vl L g 0 } 0 4 INY 0£:80
$22 00! 0 0 98 zl 9 0 ¥ 0 4 1L 0 1 L 0 b 0 } 0 0 WY §1:80
692 gLl 0 L 88 ¥z g 0 ¥ } 0 oSl 0 82 0zl ¢ L 0 l 0 0 WY 00:30
S611 6l 0 L 65¢ ¥ 6l 0 9L 0 g ¥5. 0 £ 9. g e 0 0 0 g fE10.L
zz¢e ggl 0 g 60l 12 7 0 g 0 Z 8.0 0 €C gl 2 z 0 0 0 z INY S¥20
S z8lL 0 z veL 9L € 0 Z 0 l 862 0 oL 82 2 0 0 0 0 0 WV 0€:20
562 98 0 g v 8 S 0 g 0 0 £02 0 g L 1 L 0 0 0 L NV G120
4} o 0 3 (44 € )4 0 ¥ Q Q | ZA 0 g. 69 4] 0 Q 0 Q 4] WY 00:20
leloL | | oL ddv [spad | yo7 Iyl Jwbry | reor-ddy | spad | 4e1 I | Wby | IeioL ddy | spad |us o | By | oL ddy | spad _ 197 _ gL _ wbry | BWi] Jeis
1SOAN WOl UInog Wi 183 woig UHON Wol
AT10r IAVIAOOM ATI0r AVIAOOM
¢ Jjueg - | Jueg - pspiysun -pejulld sdnoio
L1 ON abed
GL0cC/8/L - |k Mels
00000000 - ®poD s

Alor 2 aye|poopy INY

swieN a|i4




Ajlor 3 a)e[poopn INd

sweN aJi-

€8 98 000" S/ 988  6J9° |[ze9 000" €99° 000" 229 |o06% 000" 689% GSL6  £95° ]899 000" 00} 000" €9 [dHd
v 0 670 €96 8¢ 0 ¥ve 0 959 0 ST 696 gl 0 g8, 0 818 |IEloL ddy o,
€951 149 0 9 TS89 o13 €Le 0 ¥6 0 641 185 0 gl 498 8 (44 0 ¥ 0 8l SUIN|OA [BJ01
(ir44 641 0 2 743 L 19 0 14 0 Ly 991 0 8 ssl € 8 0 l 0 L Nd §1:60
A4 00T - 0 l S6lL 14 801 0 92 0 L PG 0 2 1Sl 4 ] 0 l ¢] 14 INd 00:50
. Jee €51 0 14 i 4 9 g 0 |54 0 x4 A Y I 611 L4 g 0 ! Q ¥ Nd $¥v0
v ope - 4} 0 0 vl 4 0s 0 Ll 0 €L Lyl 0 g t44" 0 ¥ 0 I 0 € Nd 0€:%0
W 0g:¥0 e suibog uonossisiu| a1gus 10} INOH 3esq
. L 30 | 3e3d - Nd G450 03 Nd 00:¥0 WOl SISAjeuy Jnoy deed
[1ejoL ‘Wi =oL-ddv [spad (1o UL [yPig | BoL ddy [sPed [¥o7 [ndyL | Jybry | mor -ddy [sped Twe1 [nugl [bry | =01 -ddy [Spad [¥eT [Nyl [jubrd | oL ueis
1S9\ Wioig ynog uol4 i 1583 wolg UHON woly
ATIOr INVIGOOM ATI0r IDIVIAOOM
L 90 0 0 90 0 0 0 0 0 0 gl 0 0 6’ 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 Jued %
x4 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 6L 0 0 6l 0 0 0 0 0 0 L Jueg
66 766 0 00t ¥'66  00L 0oL 0 0oL 00l 00} Z'86 0 aoL 1’86 00L 00l 0 0ol 0 001 PSPUSUN %
8812 6621 0 Sl 6y2l ge  -|0s8e 0 )45 3 ere 0eo) 0 oe 586 Sl 6e g 6 0 oe bayiysun
6'9v 0 g0 L'sy €1 14 0 (4] 0 VA Llg 0 Lk l'ee g0 ¥l 0 €0 0 L % [ejoL
0 L 786 L 0 ¥ie €0 €29 0 8¢ Lse Pl 0 l'€e 0 6'9L | % uolddy
88/¢2 £0€1 0 Sl ASTA R <> o6e 0 oyl 1 424 601 0 0e y00L Gl 62 0 6 0 oe [EJOL puein
66¥71 ¥0.L 0 g 289 Ll 8¢e 0 78 0 4513 4% Q 9l 0lg 8 €2 0 9 0 Ll g0l
€8¢ 6¥L 0 l Gyl € 144 0 L 0 €l €0l 0 l Lol L L 0 4 0 g Nd S+°G0
62¢e 9L 0 4 Ll € 6e 0 A 0 (44 Ll 0 9 €01 4 € 0 4 0 L | INd 0€:50
: 0zy 611 0 | SRR VA % L 19 0 4 0 VA4 99l 0 8 <o) € 8 0 s 0 L Nd §1:60
L9 00z 0 2 S61 14 801 0 . 9e o] (74 121" 0 l 321 4 S 0 3 a 14 Nd 00-50
98zl €09 0 ol 6.8 8l 2st 0 29 L 68 Glg 0 ¥l 6% L 9l 0 € 0 gl el
© Toge €5l 0 14 5143 9 14 0 |74 Q Lz vel 0 | 6Ll 14 g 0 12 0 14 Nd S¥v0 .
ore S¥l 0 0 1541 4 0s 0 Ll 0 €e vl 0 S 445 0 4 0 I 0 € Nd 0ev0
162 oSk 0 € 348 e] vz 0 zl 0 f43 azt 0 ] 438 4 e g l 0 4 Nd 91%0
€€ 1 0 g 14 ¥ . 10¢ 0 ¢l I Ll el 0 € 0zl 3 4 0 0 0 4 INd 00:+0
[ioL W | 1oL ddy [spad [ge | mayL [ bRy | oL ddy [sped [y [yl by | el ddy | sped | us7 o | Wbry | oL "ddy | spad | 4eT _ nyL |wéy [eWl] Jels
1S3 Wolg 4inog wol4 jseq wol UUoN wolg
ATIOr IAVICOOM ATI0P INVIAOOM
L dueg - pspiusun -pajulld sdnois ’
l . ON abey
§102/9/L © Qed peis
00000000 : 8poD xS




PSL 98/, 000" 00s” 184 0g0° 000" 000 000" 000 000" a9/ 000" 000" 09L 199" 188" 000 00§ 074 129" dHd
0 54 126 0 0 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 66 3 0 tx4 Ll 896 leyo "ddy %
162} 12154 0 2l 90¥ 9] 0 0 o] a 0 984 a 0 841 8 €6 Q Z 13 06 SWINIOA [e10L
112 chl 0 9 g0l ¢} 0 0 0 0 0 (442 0 0 6el ¢ o4 0 L 0 44 NV 00:80
PR - 74 AR 0 z oLl 4] 0 0 0 0 0 vl 0 0 r43% Z zl 0 I 0 A NV $¥:20
', ooey cel 0 - g ogl 0 0 0 0 0 0 192 0 0 95z - Lo 0 0 L 6¢ NVY 0€:20
[4:14 19 o] L 09, 0 Q 0 0 0 o] gle 0 Q 374 4 8} 0 Q 0 gl WY §1:20
INY §1:20 1e suibag uopossieu SJjus 10} INOH Yead
. . L 40 | Xe3d ~ INV S4:80 0} INY 00:L0 WOl sisAjeuy JnoH deay
[e1ol U | ol ddv [spad %S [muyl [wbpy [Eolddv [spag [usd  [muul [ Jubid |50 0dv | Sped | us] [nyL Twbrd [®EoL-ddv [spad [ Po]  [mayr  |3ubly | oWl neig
ISOAA WI0L YInog wol4 ) jsegd wol YHON Wod-
ATI0r AYOATION ATI0r AVOATIOr
0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q o] 0 0 ¢] 0 4] gueg % -
0 0 0 0 o] 0 o] 0 0 0 0 0] ¢] 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0 o] .¢ jueg
8¢ 2 0 L4 14 0 0 0 0 i 0 1r'e .0 .0 6l 291 [l 0 29 0 S'C L jued %
29 e 0 14 8¢ 0 0 0 Q Q 0 92 0 a Ve 14 g Q 14 Q g L jueg
1716 6°G6 0 €e6 96 0 0 0 0 i 0 6°L6 0 0 1'86 £'¢8 |¢o6 0 ee8 00l §'I6 | PSYIUsUN %
£802 S2L 0 144 L0 0 a 0 0 0 0 8¢ct Q 0 8igl 0l ogl 0 al 2 6Ll payiysun
z'ge 0 A Pe 0 0 0 0 0 0 §'8g i 0 6.8 90 €9 0 90 0 A % [e30L
0 ye 996 0 0 0 0 0 : 0 0 .66 1 0 68 L0 ¥06 | % uoiddy
51474 982 0 az (01574 0 0 0 0 4] o] i1 0 0 L ¢l sel 0 [4? L {441 [BJO], puei
2001 86¢ 0 81 08¢ 0 0 0 4] 0 0 8%S 0 0 P8 9 98 Q L 0 j*14 el
v JSE€¢ g8 o] 2 £8 0 4] 0 0 0 0 ovl 0 0 0147 0 ol 0 > a L NV S%:80
092 1911 0 € gLl a 0 0 o] 0 0 el 0 a [44% 4 oL o] € [« L NV 0€:80
0ee g8 0 A 8L 0 0 0 ¢] 0 o] el 0 ¢ LEl L el 0 14 0 6 NV G1:80
1.2 cll 0 ¢} 90l 0 0 0 0 4] 0 tA 4" 0 0 6El € £€e¢ 0 L 0 [#44 NV 00:80
19497 85¢ 0 8 0se 9] 0 0 4] 0 0 904 0 0 QoL S 6L 9] 3 3 LL 12301
86¢ 435 0 4 0Ll 0 4] 0 0 0 0 vLL o] o] [7A% Z 43 g l 0 Ll WY §¥:20
oey eel 0 € o€l ¢] 0 0 ¢] 4] c 152 0 0 9% I 04 0 0 L (S NV 0E:20
262 19 0 I 09 0 0 0 ] 0 0 AN 0 ] 11z 4 8l 0 0 0 gL NV §1:20
ggl 4%} 0 4 Qg 0 0 0 g g 0 29 0 0 19 I 6 0 0 0 6 WV 00:20
[Elel W) | roL “ddy * spad _ o _ Nyl | by | el ddy _ sped _ o] _ nyL | wbiy | oL ddy _ spad E 9] _ nyl H Wy | oL ddy _ spad ; e « nyL A why | QWi Heis
S9N Wod4 . yinog wold4 1583 Woly YHON wolg :
ATIOr AVOATIOr ATIOr AVOATIOr
. Zueg - | yueg - pajiysup) -pajuld sdnolg
© L: ON obed.

G10c/./L - °fed Hels
00000000 © SpoD sls
Allor 3 XeQ Ajlor Ny : swen ojid.




6Eg” 808" [o[s]¢} £ie 708" 000° 000° 000" . oo0 000 000" gl6° 00Q° 000" L6 0se BgL 000° 005" 000° 0L dHd

0 90 '66 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 966  ¥0 0 [AS) 0 8'06 [ejo] *ddy %
€07l ¥v8 0 g 668 0 0 0 a 0 0 ¥61 0 0 By 2z g9 0 8 0 85 SWIN[OA Jejo
€8¢ gle 0 0 g9i¢ a 0 0 0 0 o] 4398 0 o €LL z 2c - 0 € - 0 6i Nd §1:60
8Ly 19g 0 0 19z 0 0 0 0 0 0 gel 0 0 g€l 0 (44 0 L 0 1z Wd 00:50
pAAS (5513 0 14 06l 0 0 0 Q 0 0 L2l 0 g L2l g °] 0 0 0 g Nd S0
S0g el 0 } (72 0 0 0 0 0 YN 0 0 L ¢ gl 0 4 0 €l Nd 0€%0

i Wd 0€:%0 Je suifeg uonoasiaju] S13UT 103 JNOH desq
-7 } 40 | Yead - Nd §¥:50 O} Wd 0070 W0l sisAleuy Jnol yead
[lejol i [=ol"ddy [spsd | W97 |yl [JUPly | ol ddy [spsd [HeT  [niy] [Jybid [ el ddv | Spag [¥97_ [ruyl [biy [=oLddv | spad [¥e7 "ol [WBiy [3wil uEig
ISIAA WIOLL Uinog wod- 1Se3 Wod ULION wol4
ATIOP AYQATIOr A17or AVOATIOP
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Zued %
0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 2)ueg
vl JA) 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 92C 0 0 g¢C gzl g1 0 69 0 L L ueg %
ge 0l 0 0 al 0 Q. 0 9 a ¢] £2 Q 0 [ 4 L 14 4] 2 (4] L L Jjued
9'86 £'66 0 00l €66 O 0 0 0 0 0 ¥i6 ] 0 .6 G/8 (286 0 1'¥6 0 66 payIUsun %
yaadA 29l 0 el 442 0 0 Q 0 0 18 0 0 798 L Ll g 9l 0 §6 | Payysun
¥'65 0 g0 685 0 0 0 0 0 0 1'9e 0 0 Ige €0 gy 0 L0 0 8¢ % [e10],

0 60 166 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 166 60 0 gl 0 8 % youddiy
6.¥2 Zivl 0 el 8sPL 0 0 0 o 0 0 69 0 0 988 g €Ll 0 Ll 0 96 [E0L puelD)
¥82L ¥08 0 € 108 0 Q 0 0 a 0 ¥ 0 0 vy 2 »9 0 8 0 95 [e101
182 Lyl 0 € vl 0 0 0 0 0 0 €8 0 0 €8 0 L 0 € 0 ¥ Nd §¥'50
9.2 08l o] 0 08l 0 0 0 0 0 0 €8 0 0 €8 -0 el 0 l e zl INd 0850

¢ gse 91z 0 0 -glz 0 0 0 0 0 0 A1 0 0 el 2 (44 0 € 0 6l Nd 160
N cg 192 0 0 192 0 0 0 o 0 0 sgl 0 0 geL o0 44 0 } 0 12 Wd 00:50
g6L1 899 0 0] 8689 0 a 0 0. 0 0 8% g - g 2y 9 (514 0 6 0 o B0

/28 ¥61 0 ¥ 06l 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 0 ZZl 0 9 0 0 0 9 Nd §¥'%0
S0¢ gLl 0 A [ 0 0 0 0 o L 0 0 PAA Gl 0 z 0 el Nd 0840
08z 8vl 0 z o¥L 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 0 aL e 14" 0 ¥ 0 oL INd S1:%0
£8¢ €8l . 0 € asl g 0 0 g 0 4] 9Ll 0 0 ZlL 14 7l 0 g 0 L Nd 0040
oL ] | moLddy [spsd [yo1 [maul |[jubly | ol ddy | spad [ve1  [nyl w6y | eor-ddy [spad [pe1 [nuL by | reror ddy [spad [uet | gy | by | oWl Uelg
1S9/ WOl ynog wolq 1SET WOl YHON Woig
AT10r AVOATIOr ATI0r AVOATION
Zueg - | Jueg - pepiysuf ~pajulld sdnois)
L: OpN abed
. GL0Z/L/) - eleq uels .
00000000 - spog a)s

Ajlor % qeQAlor Nd

sweN oji




NV Aljor ® sowsyO :

suieN 9l

Ve [e9g  0%e GGl Gl G/g [e6e 000 G99 Ges 6. |¥ve 09 16 06L _GI§ b6 000 26 %26 8oL [Ind
z0 i€ 698 1ee 0 iz 9€s  vSl 0 v €l 64 0 €7k evl Ll |l ddv %
Blse | svb ) 09L  19b gey  |edl 0 9vz _ Sv. 18l |56 } 92y 0y SL  |Jve 0 $eL 80 0L | swmjopfeol
158 €0V 0 g€ vy ve  |v0E 0 1L €6k Oy |s0¢ b ok SL IL |68 0 € 98l 0¢  |WVSL80
£08 g6 0 0c 6z 9 |69z 0 09 gl o |8ig 0 »OL  l0L el |lee 0 £ 8L iz |Wvooso
. ss6  |ost b €& ¥ ze  |sE 0 8 €@ 18 w0 0L ¥zl e [osz 0 g€ 'zl £ |WYGH.LO
v 0l6 0zl 0 W v |z 0 9 9 8 |z 0 ol ek oz |lg2 0 08 €1 ¥ |Wvo0sL0
NV 08:203e wc_mmm UoNoasISIU| 843U Jo) INOK Nesd
} 40 | Ye2d - NY 5480 O} INY 00:20 W0l Sisleuy o sesd
[PBioL 0l [l ddv [Spod [HST [yl [ubly |eioL-ddy [Sped [We1 [Tyl [Py | el 09y [Sped |Uo7 |Gl |14l [ Bl 'ddv [Spad [#91  [MIUL | 1UPA | SUL 161G
ISSAN WOIS . inog woig 1se5 Wolg GHON Woig
QY ATIOr QY SOWSO ad ATIOP Q¥ SO0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z>iueg %
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 2iueg
Ve VS 0wr 8% S g Ve 0 T te gt |22 0 Vi L2 €y [T 0 € 61 8 1 3I0eE %
9% 42 } N R I k) 0 L ey oz |se 0 8 AR ¥y 0 L € ¥l |Ljues
696 |9%6 0 TS6  S6  v6 996 0 €96 L9 G9 846 00 686 €46 L9 [€16 O 16 1’86 26 | POMUSUN %
0509 |zvi 0 97 88¢__ 8l |90z O 6ev 9%z, ige  |sg9L | €2, Y8, MLl |I6SL O 92z 11zl 09L | psuusun
97k 0 ¥ 6v L€ |98 0 €L 80z &9 |9z 0 TR g9 0 e g6l 8¢ | %EoL
Lo gle 988 962 0 iz 619 €9l Vo vey g9y Lol 0 Tyl TSL  90L | %wuxddy
oves |82 b 8z €0 ez |860z 0 9s»  e6zk eve |eeLL L leL 908  g8L  |L¥9L O €62 b€ZL  vLL | [EOLpUEID
. 8sze |9y 0 Zek__29L  zzL |ovll 0 Ove 80, 86l |98 I €9e 09 ezl |68 0 el 0v9 95 [moL
. 8%8  [vob 0 ov 8¢ 9  [s0¢ 0 6s 8L 29 |ve 0 g8 90, €5 |202 0 8  wvl Oz | WV G¥E0
N oL [vo 0 4 18 s s 0 0s .s9L 0§ (002 0 8L or  |Lz 0 g€ €L 62 | WVO0Ee0
158 €01 0 s€ v v |v0g 0 i g6l Oy |S02 } 2l s L ez 0 € 9L 0z |WVGLE0
808 |6 0 oe 62 9 |69 0 09 gl or sz 0 ¥OL 0L el |lez 0 £ 8L iz |Wv00:80
avez___|s.c } 9L Lvl  OLL |26 0 9lz 165 opy  |oas 0 8¢ Ovp 29 |zoL .0 06 65 8. |0l
G } € v ee | 8ee 0 8 ez 19 i 0 WL ¥k sz |08 0 g 26l £ |WVGHLD
016 ozl 0 v v |z 0 9 99l e |z 0 olL oSl ez |l 0 0¢ el ¥E  |WVOEL0
¥L9 28 0 iz se % (o 0 99 oz 0 |uz 0 2@ ozk 6 g9l 0 Sl oeel L |WYSILO
80F _ ~lov 0 oL 8L 8L |8l 0 s€& - 78 0z |9k 0 9 29 8 0bl 0 0L 08 0)  |WV00:0
FloL il [meLddy [sped [po1  [mur [wBRI |mioLddy [sped M1 L [4ORS | mouddy [sped Bl |l |wbid | meL'ddy [sped [wel |l [wbrs | SWIL LElS
1S9/ Wolg Unog woiy 1B Woi4 - UUON Lioid
Q¥ ATIOr Q¥ SONMO QY ATIOr Q¥ SOWMO
Z>luBg - | g - PSRIGSUL -pelld Sanois)
L1 ON abed
€102/5/9 : Sieq Mejs
00000000 - ®poD =g




¢

S16° 868’ 000" 0L6"  8%. 168 86§ 000" 918" 908" geg | ov¥ 000" 698" 818 6.8 |8.8 000" #if° 288 988 [ dHd
0 90¢ 668 G662 0 €vlL 1’89 9ze 0 SvS @e¢  9cl 0 L6 08 96 [Pl "ddv %
£9g¢ g6g 0 29 I¥e  z8g 1zl 0 €LV ¥9.  wiz | i08 0 Oby S92 z0L  |066 0 96 6. 16 SWIN[OA ejo |,
916 102 0 g9 2L g9 gz 0 e ¥5L 09 10z 0 6Ll 19 Z 15z 0 9z 0lg 1z Wd 0£°50
880} 574 0 . vl wL £9¢ 0 €9 82 €9 681 0 66 €9  le g9z 0 gl 9e vz Nd G160
.Zs01 3%4 0- zL 18 8g Lze 0 o 661  z8 8ez 0 821 18 6z 28z 0 e 2 62 d 00:50
628 881 0 ¥9 69 gg 262 0 67 Il 69 £L1 0 8 09 6l 98l 0 ¥e 6eL €2 Nd S0
Nd GP-p0 Je wc_mmm uofjossssiu] auiugy JoJ INOH Xead
1o v 4e8d - Nd G¥:G0 O Wl 00:0 Woid siskjeuy 1noH yead
[0l I [EoL"ddv [SpSd [§S1 [ MUl MBI | EioLddv [ Sped | §o1 Mgl | IUPRd | ol ddy [sped [¥eT [niyl [IyBRY [l ddv [Spad [ Pe1 | nuuL (Wb Towr pelgs
1SOAA LUO - i UInog woi4y sed woad YUON woi4
gy ATI0r ax SO0 ax Arior ay SONEMO
] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2ueg %
0 0 0 0 0 0 ‘0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 Zjueg
gl €l 0 A gl zl el 0 ge L €l LT 00L 2T ez ¥ 1z 0 1T 1z gl Lueg %
9zl 6l 0 g 6 S 62 0 8 ¥l L., |ov L Ll ) g o 0 g 4 € 1 jueg
96 JE T 0 686 G86 996 |86 0 GI6 66 L8686 |€16 0 8.6 €76 96 676 00l €46 66 986 |PeulsUn %
0Z0L 98y} 0 oy 209  62¢r | glzz 0 aLe  eiel  9z8 | .istl 0 19/ 98y ¥6lL 12981 I L}y 98yl 86l | psuysun
1'ieg 0 $9 ] ) vie 0 vy g8l gL 602 0 Ll VL 27 |99 0 ST Zle 8% % [e10
0 90e . 90y 982 0 Tyl 129 geg 10 Y28  Lbe  sel 1o 96 86. 90l | % yoiddy
1492 G051 0 09%  Ll9  vey | bz 0 8lE €68l €8S |6l A v8L 0l zZoz | <208l } 28lL-  8l§L 10z |fej0l puein
298¢ £eg 0 AT o> W2 |eoz) o 651 192  egz  |seL 0 A A £€0l 0 06 0¥8 €0l |0l
29 99l 0 ¥ 89 24 ¥82 0 ge (VY] BG1 0 8l LL ol 622 0 8l 28l 62 INd 6%°50
916 102 0 g9 1L g9 174 0 le 5L 09 102 0 6lLL L9 1z 152 0 92 012 12 Nd 0260
9501 6¥2 0 19 L w2 €5¢ 0 €5 182 €9 681 0 66 €9 12 S92 0 gl 9zz vz Nd G150 -
\. . 250 Le 0 zL 18 8g 12e 0 o 66L 28 8c2 o 82l 18 62 z82 0 le 22T 62 INd 00:50
982¢ 2.9 0 802 liz €6l 101 0 65 289 08z | ¥0L l 09 veZz 601  |698 I 26 8.9 86 B0l
68 881 0 ¥9 - 69 sg 262 0 6 vl 69 €Ll 0 ¥6 09 6l 93l 0 ve 68l  €¢ Wd $¥%0
£e8 98l 0 zs €9 1S 192 0 0¥ 0oL 19 291 0 68 28 iz |sle A 8l 08l 02 Wd 0£:%0
197 8yl 0 08 28 oy 12 0 1€ 9L ¥§ 11 0 8L LG 82 ¥ord 0 8C L oze Nd §3:%0
L¥8 051 0 44 L9 |54 152 o 6 25l 99 202 b 66 99 A4 £€2 0 44 88l ¢z Nd 00:%0
BIOLWI [FoL'ddy |spod |41 [l [MBR | el ddy [Spad |49l |nuul BRI | meLddy [spod |uel [mur [BR [moddv [spad [uoT  |mul [wn | QWL HEIS
1SOMA WOl YInog wolH 1seq woly UHON WOl
ad ATI0r ay SOWNaMO0 ay A1ior a¥ SOWEIMO
Z>ueg - | Jued - pagiysun -pajutd 8dnois
11 ON obed
€10c¢/S/9 ¢ Sjeq Hels
00000000 - ®po) =g

N Ajlop 3 SoWYQ :

SwieN 914




1

2

\

L

£96° 06L 000" 969" 000" 008" 2.6 000° £08” 096" 000" 000 000" 000 000" 000" 126 g0Q” 000" 188" 889" dHd
0 26¢g 0 809 0 89 c6 0 0 0 0 o] o] 0 L1838 ecL Iejo] “ddy %

G/81 6L 0 1€ Q 8y 206 0 19 178 0 o] 0 Q 4] 4] 68 . @ 0 8L oLl QUINJOA [eJ0 L

5%y 4 0z 0 8 0 1% gze 0 145 f4%4 0 0 0 0 0 0 07z o] Q 861 (44 WV G180

geh 474 o} €l 0 clL 2ie 0 61 £61 0 0 0 0 0 0 861 0 0 0LL 8c NV 00:80
a4 1 0 g 0 6 [A4 0 gl 612 0 Q 0 0 0 0 Wwe 0 0 744 0z WY §¥:20

8Y 0e 0 g 0 sl 2eT 0 Sl JANA 0 0 0 0 0 0 gee 0 0 g6l oy NV 0€:20

: NV 0€:£0 Je suifieg uonoasisiu snjug Joj oM Mead
: : } 30 | Yedd - WV S#:80 0} NV 00:20 Wi SisA[euy InoH Yeod
[fejo1 i [0l ddy [spad [ P97  [niyl [Py | EoLddy [spad | o7 [ndul [Wbry [moL-ddv [speq [yeq |yl [WBry [mol-ddy [spad [go] | nauL [ Wby [owil pe)g
15904 Wold Yo o4 1seg Woiq UHON 10J4
avoxd MVYO ATIOr Avod SONIHNO avod MvOo ATI0r avOod SOINEMO

0 0 0 4] 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9] o} 0 0 0 0 Zijueg %

0 0 0 o] 0] o] 0 0 0 Q 4] Q 0 a Q 0 0 Q 0 [¢] 0 Zueg

6L 1'Z 0 9¢ 0 [ %4 0 L'e 22 0 0. 0 0 0 0 vl [i] 0 ¥l Ll L queg %

£9 g 0 Z 0 l pAS 0 \4 £e 0 0 Q 0 [¢] 0 jord [¢] Q (V4 g | Jjueg

1"86 616 0 96 0 6'86 yAVIS) 0 £°96 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 9'86 0 0oL 986 £'86 payiysun %

692¢ 6gl 0 €Sg 0 98 8es91l 0 70l YL 0 o] 0 4] 0 0 2851 0 14 vorL QL1 P3lysun

129 4 0 Ll 0 97C viv 0 £e FA 44 0 4] 0 0 0 4] €8y 0 1’0 [sy4a4 Ve % [e10l
X 0 '8¢ 0 €19 0 69 1'e6. 0 0 o] 0 0 0 1’0 188 2Ly % Uouddy
2zee Zrl 0 s . 0 28 GGl 0 801 9%L 0 0 0 0 0 0 S09L 0 4 vevl  6LL [eloL puelo)
LLL) 88 0 [44 0 {514 298 0 29 - 008 0 0 0 Q 0 0 223 Q Z ByL 9L [BjoL

S0Ly t44 0 (43 0 oL €02 8] cl 161 0 0 0 0 0 ¢] S8l 0 0 cll el NV §¥:80

[Sie14 24 0 3] 0 clL 44 0 FAR 02 0 0 0 o] g 0 vee 0 Z 602 el NV 0€:80

99¥% 0c 0 ] 0 cL 922 0] i clz 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4144 0 0 861 FAA NV §1:80

gey 274 0 gl [¢] Zl cle 0 6l €61 0 0 0 Q 0 Q 861 0 0 0LL 8¢ NV 00:80

gpSl ¥g 0 €l 0 %4 gLl 0 gy 199 0 Q o] 0 Q 0 _LL 0 Q g9 £0L 1ejol

PA* 14 142 0 g 0 6 fAA 0 €L 612 0 0 0 0 4] 0 1¥2 0 0 [X44 (014 NV S%:20

PAC 4 014 o] 4 ¢ Sl 2ee 0 Sl PANS 0 0 0 0 0 0 qee 0 0 g6l _- O AV 0€:20

PAZ (012 0 0 0 oL €91 0 122 281 0 0 0 o] 0 o] vil 0 4] Sl 62 WV G120

{44 0l 0 g 0 L 98 0 L 6. 0 0 0 0 0 Q 821 0 0 YLl ¥l Y 00:20

feoL qul |eeLddy [sped [yel [l [wybiy | moL-ddy [sped [ye1 [nmy [ubrd | rroL ddv [ spa [ye1  [nuyL [ by | oL ddy |spad Juet. [yl [y [BWI| Hels

1S3,y W14 UINo0g Woid 153 Wol4] UHON Woiy
avod AVO ATIOr avod SONIM0 Aavox VO AT10r avod SONIXMO
. Zjueg - | jueg - psyiysun -pajullg sdnoisy
L ON ebed
GlLocd/L/L - ejeQ Mels ?
00000000 - ®poD =g

sowsXO g Ye0 Allor Y :

sweN 9ji4




“

\

Qg6 ove 062" €L 000" /219 | $06° 000" 89/ 206" 000" | 000" 000" 000" 000" 000" |06 000" 000" 506" O¥. | dHd
Lb 89y 0 X4 0 6'¢ 1’96 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y °e6- 89 1101 "ddv %
8¢eg 6 2 44 0 514 9601 0 (514 €50l 0 0 a ¢] a 0 8¢0l 0 0 £96 |7 SUWIN[OA [B10]
669 2z 0 L 0 St €0g 0 12 (4:14 0 0 0 0 0 0 vie 0 0 0sZ e Nd §1°50
PAG: §¢ 0 2l 0 gl §8e 0 8 L2 Q 0 0 0 0 0 182 0 0 L92 0c Nd 00:50
8lg [44 0 oL 0 cl 9T 0 0L 124 0 0 0 0 0 0 474 0 0 8lT 14 Nd $¥%0
vig se 12 St 0 6 e 0 147 0ee 0 0 0 0 0 0 144 0 0 (424 el Nd 0€%0
) Nd 0€1%0 Je suifag uonoasisiu] Ius Joj INOH Yead
. : L 40 | JBad - INd G5:G0 O} Nd Q0-0 WS sishleuy Inol yead
[1e10L Jul [ ®wo1'ddy [Spad [ue1 [yl [Juble] [Moiddy [Spod [Po1 |miul [14biy [ Pioiddy [ sped Uo7 |niul  [Jubld | oL ddy [ spad | o] [yl " [BRd_ [ owil [elg
1SapA WoL] Yinog wolt iseq wodd UMON WOl
Qvod MVO ATIOP AvOod SONIMO AYOA XVO ATIOr AvOod SOWIMO
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 giued %
0 0 0 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 g 0 0 Zjuegd
L S0 0 0 0 L l 0 g 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 vl 0 0 L4l 7L L Jueg %
oF L 0 0 0 l 512 0 4 PAS Q 0 0 g 0 0 9¢ 0 0 e 4 1 queg
6°86 §'66 00l 00} 00l 686 |66 0 16 1’66 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 9'86 0 0 986 986 |PsPUSUN %
L0y 961 4 L0l b 98 P96l 0 g9 668 O 0 0 0 0 0 4881 0 0 PAZA N4 payiysuny
i 0 9¢ 0 L' 1414 0 9l g9y 0 o 0 0 0 0 L9v 0 0 ger. g¢ % IBJ0L
4 evs g0 (4474 0 Ve 996 - O 0 0 0 0 0 0 9c6 VL % Youddy
€60y 6l 4 L0} b .8 €861 0 L9 96t 0 0 0 0 0 0 €L6l 0 0 VALY 2Pl [EJ0] puelD
29le 90} ! 05 L Sy SZ01 0 e WOl 0 0 0 Q 0 0 186 0 0 806 €L B0l
18y £e 0 le 3 g 0¥e 0 9 ¥EC 0 0 0 0 0 0 8l 0 0 SLL 6 Nd %60
605 9z I €l 0 gl L¥e 0 6 8¢€C 0 0 0 0 0 0 9€eg 0 0. 91g 0z Nd 0€:g0
669 (44 0 L 0 Sl €0¢g 0 Ll 262 0 0 0 a 0 0 viT 0 0 sz e Nd §1:60
- LBS gc 0 (4" 0 32 q982 0 8 Llg 0 0 0 0 0 0 L8¢ 0 0 192 14 Nd 00:50
LE6L 16 I 8y Q 44 806 0 £g gi8 0 g g 0 0 0 [A%S) Q a €98 69 IE10 L
8L [#4 0 13 0 ¢l ¥9¢ 0 al ¥se 0 0 0 0 0 0 [£74 0 0 154 14 Nd %0
142 14 1 gl 0 6 ¥¥e 0 14 1}24 0 0 0 0 0 0 || §¥e 0 0 (44 €l Nd 080
Ly 8l 0 cl 0 °) 981 0 S 181 0 0 0 0 0 0 €12 0 0 861 Sl Nd §1%0
oy |9z 01 0 s [viz 0 vy 0z 0 |0 00 0 0 |z&xx 0 0 Gz JZ | Wd0Oow0
oLl | Flol 0y [spad [y [l [WPnd [Piddv [spad [ye1 [naL [BN | meLddy [sped [yo1 [mauL |wbi | eeLddy [spad |81 [mul [wb |SWLL LEIS
1SS\, W01 U3nog ol Iseg wod] YHON wWold
QYO MVQ AT1Or ‘avod SO0 Avyod XVO ATTOr AvQd SONaM0
g>jueg - | Yueg - payysun -pajullg sdnoig
1 : ON 8bed
GLOg/L/L - Sred yels
00000000 : ®poJ 3xg

SOWNO B ¥e0 Allor” |Nd

SWweN 9ji4




188" 008" 000C 006" 000" 00§ [z8% 000" €88 €89 000|000 000" 000 000" 000 | 28% 000" 000" 088" 00 [dHd

0 0 0 001 0 €z 116 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 866 20 1elo1 "ddv %
1811 14 0 0 -0 4 128 0 0z IS8 0 0 0 0 0 0 P16 Q Q 26 T SWN[OA [e10L
9% 1 0 0 0 ) 0z2 0 ] Sz 0 0 0 0 0 0 k% 0 0 obz 1 INV 0€:80

N2 0 0 0 0 0 90z 0 9 00z 0 0 0 a 0 0 oIz 0 0 9z o0 NV 5180
. 988 0 0 0 0 0 861 0 g 6L 0 0 0 0 0 0 861 0 0 281 I INY 00:80
108 ) 0 0 0 L e 0 9 Wz 0 4] 0 0 0 0 69T 0 0 68 .0 NV S¥20
NY §¥:L0 Je suifieg uoijoesIsiuf 21U JOy INOH Jedd
: 1 40 | vead - NV G680 01 WV 00:20 WOl sisAjeuy JnoH desd
[rejoL i [moL'ddy [spad [¥o7 [nuyl [wbrd [0l ddv [sped [§a1 [yl | Jubly [eioLddy [spad | o1 [ niyL [Pl | 8oL ddy [spad [y [nuyl By [ewr pejs
ISSAA WIOL4 yinog wot4 ised wold YHON wol4
AV SIMYES avoy SOWaN0 ANV SRIYES avod SONIMO
0 0 0 0 0. 0 - Jo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 . 0 0 0 Zueg %
Q 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Z>ueg
gl 0 0 0 ] 0 ve 0 0 §e 0 0 0 0 0 ¢ €1 0 0 <l ] 1 ueg %
65 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8g 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 1 dueg
z86 001 0 0 0 00l |96 0 0L G/6 0O 0 0 0 0 0 186 0 0 2’86 00l | pSMNSUN %
6pLE 4 0 0 0 4 6281 0 8¢ 1671 0 0 0 0 0 0 8191 0 0 9191 ¢ psyIysun
10 0 0 0 10 8% 0 A Ly 0O I8 0 0 0 0 LG 0 0 LS 10 % [210].

0 0 0 00} 0 g g6 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q 666 L0 % Uoiddy
802Z¢ 4 0 0 0 4 1981 0 8e 6251 O 0 0 0 0 0 6e9l 0 0 g9l 2 [EloL puelD
£891 l 0 0 0 L v8 0 6l 828 0 0 0 0 0 o ges 0 0 ge8 T 801

\ eop ] 0 0 0 0 €22 0 g glz o 0 0 0 0 0 08l ] 0 08l 0 NV 5580
299 L 0 0 0 L 022 0 g glz o0 a 0 0 0 0 1z 0 0 oz L WY 0g:80
z2y 0 0 0 0 0 902 0 9 00z 0 0 0 0 0 0 91Z 0 o 9lz o0 NV §1:80
968 0 0 0 0 0 861 0 € g6l 0 0 0 0 0 0 861 0 0 161 1 NV 00:80
o] l 0 0 0 } 0zL 0 6l 0L 0 0 0 0 0 0 08 aQ 0 $08 0 [BloL
205 1 0 0 0 1 vz 0 ) 1wz 0 0 0 0 0 0 652 0 0 652 0 NV §7:20
9sb 0 0 0 0 0 112 0 S 2lz 0 0 0 0 0 0 662 0 0 662 0 NV 0€:20
28 0 0 0 0 0 651 0 12 g5l 0 0 0 0 0 0 g9l 0 0 gL 0 NV §1:20
882 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 4 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 L7l 0 0 WL 0 Y 0020
[S0L I | Bl 'ddy [spad | Yo [ruul [jubRy |@oiddv [sped [we1 [nul [wbid |PeLddv [sped [ys1 |l Wb |meLddy [spad [§o1 |yl [wBA | UL LEIS

IS9AN Wod4 yInos woi4 1B wold UMON Wol4
AW SIENEA avoy SONTN0 A ST aAvoy SONIIO
T yueg - | Yueq - payiysun -psjulld sdnoin
L. ON abed
GlL0c/8/L © sje Hels
00000000 - ®pog 8jg

SOWO B S84 AV :

sweN a1




h

o

kM

0

f

0.8 0SS 000" 02" 000 00 |/8% 000" 082 988 000|000 000" 000" 000" 000 |0S% 000" 000" 188" 00§ | 4dHd
0 1’6 0 6°06 0 e0 L'66 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 866 0 [ejo] "ddy %
2861 L 0. } 0 0L 066 0 g 186 0 0 0 0 0 0 996 0 0 868 g SWN[OA [E10]
8y z 0 0 0 z S22 0 ) ¥Z2 0 0 0 0 0 0 152 0 ] 15 0 Nd S1:50
LS Z o] |13 0 L 6.2 0 1 8T 0 Q0 0 4] Q0 0 062 0 0 68¢ L INd 00:50
144 z 0 0 0 4 622 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 0 L1 0 0 ‘9lz 1 INd Sti+0
06¥ S 0 0 0 ] 152 0 L 9sz @ 0 0 0 0 0 82z 0 0 82z 0 Nd 0E%0
Nd 0240 1e Mc_mmm uopaassu aigug JO} INOK Mead
’ . 140 | ead - Nd S1:G0 03 INd 00:70 Wold SisAleuy inoH yesd
Le30L Jui [ oL "ddv [Spag Y87 [yl |JUbRy [ el ddv | sped | ¥o1_ [MUL | bl | oL ddv Isped [us7 . [nuyl [Py [miolddv | spad | We] | niul ERRETERES
IS8 WS Yinog wod4 - 1se3 woli4q YLION wWou4 .
ANVDId SIMYTS Qvod SOWIM0 AW SRINES avod SOWIIO
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Zueg %
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Zueg
80 0 0 0 0 0 L0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 ] 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 ueg %
e 0 0 0 0 0 gl 0 0 £l 0 0 0 0 0 0 8l 0 0 8l 0 1 ueg
z66 00} 0 00l 0 00l €66 0 00l €66 O 0 0 0 0 0 66 0 0 66 001 | psyiusun %
£798 74 0 L 0 [ QL8 0 g 208 0 0 0 0 0 0 6081 0 0 1081 2 PayIysun
L0 0 0 ) 90 9'6Y 0 10 g6y 0 0 0 0- 0 0 L'6v 0 0 L6 10 % [e10L
0 4 2 266 0 Z0 266 0 . 0 0 0 0 1} 0 666 L0 % Youddy
v19¢ ¥z 0 1 0 £z £z81 0 € 0z8L 0 0 0 0 0 0 1z81 0 0 gesl 2 [EI0L puBID
Sp8L 8 0 L 0 L 906 0 4 $06 O 0 0 0 0 0 LEG 0 0 056 L B0l
¥8¢ z 0 0 0 z 631 0 0 63L 0 0 0 0 0 0 €61 0 0 g6l 0 Nd §¥:50
45 4 z 0 0 0 Z £lz 0 i} gz o0 0 0 0 0 ] 161 0 0 6, 0 INd 0850
8.y Z 0 0 0 z §zz 0 A ¥2Z2 0 0 0 0 0 0 152 0 0 12 0 INd 150
‘128§ 4 0 1 0 1 6.2 0 1 82 0 0 0 0 0 0 062 0 0 68z L Wd 00:50
6231 ol 0 0 0 gl .16 0 l 916 0 0 0 0 0 0 968 0 0 g68 L B0l -
Shy Z 0 0 0 4 622 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 0 L1z 0 0 glz | INd §¥%0
06% g .0 0 0 g 52 0 L 9s¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 822 0 0 82z 0 INd 0£:70
Ly 9 0 0 0 9 g8l 0 0 g8l 0 0 0 0 0 0 0zz 0 0 02z 0 Nd 510
08¥ g 0 0 0 g 9vz 0 0 9z 0 0 0 0 0 0 1e2 0 0 €2 0 INd 00:70
JPioL il | FioLdey |sped [ye1 [niuL [wbRy | meLddy [sped [yo1 [l by | melddv [spad | 4o [y [wbry [morddy [spsd [yo1 [l [wbi | OWI] JEIS
JSSAN\ Wolq - Ujnog woli4 jseq woig UYHON wol
AL Sy avod SO0 ANV SIMYES avoy SOINTMO
g Jjuegd - | yueg - payiysun -pajuld sdnoig)
L. ON abed
GL0¢/8/1L - 9leq Mels
00000000 : spo) syg

sowO ¥ SIS Nd

sweN 9|14




N

X

18 000° 000" 000" 000" .000° |9es 000" 000" 00§  Z¥re 289 000" 289" 000" 000" oSz 000" 000" 02" 0000 |dHd
0 0 0 0 0 0 eelL L98 0 001 0 0 0 0 0oL 0 [elo "ddy %
201 0 0 0 0 0 gl 0 0 4 gl 06 0 06 0 0 l 0 0 l 0 SwnjoA [e10.L
4 0] 0 0 [¢] 0 L 0 0 3 9 gl 0 gl 0 0 0 0 ¢] 0 0 NV 00:80.
8L 0 0 0 [¢] 0 € 0 Q a e Sl 0 gl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NV S§¥-L0
, 9¢ 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 I b £e 0 fox 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y 0€:20
0 0 0 0 0 0 € 0 0 0 £ 9z . o - 92 0 0 2 0 0 l 0 NV G1:20
NV §1:20 18 suifeg UoloasISIu| 31UT 10} INOH 3ESd
. : 1 30 | dead - AV 0£:80 01 WV 00:20 wo.l4 sisfjeuy JnoH dead
[[el0l Wi [ oL ddy [spad [go]  [miyl [bry [Eel-ddy [spad | ue7 [nyl by [eoLddy [sped [ye7 | niyp [ Wby~ [ieloL-ddy [spad | ¥o] [niyl Twby [owil pels
- 1S9 W0ty UInos woi 15E3 W0l UMON WIo1
M3 AVO ATIOP MVO ATIOr M3 MYO ATIOP AYO ATIOP
0 0 0 0 [¢] 0 0 0 0 0 0 [¢] 0 9] ¢} 0 0 o] 0 0 0 gued %
0 0 -0 0 0 0 Q 0 Q o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q 0 0] Q 0 g jueg
9y 0 0 ¢! 0 o] VLo 0 [¢] Q g6 14 0 14 0 0 0 4] 4} 0 0 L dueg %
L 0 0 0 0 0 Z 0 0 Q Z g 0 g Q 0 0 o] 4] 0 0 1 Jjueg
P66 0 0 0 0 0 9'¢6 0 0 (40} 506 96 0 26 0 0 00} 0 0 0oL 0] Pajiusun %
oL Q 0 o] 0 0 14 0 0 9 6l 6Ll 0 6L1 0 0 4 o] 0 Z 0 pajiysun
4] 0 o] 0 0 9'LL 0 [¢] 6'C el 18 0 18 0 0 el 0 0 el 0 % [elo L
0 o] 0 0 0 0 [A#4 8L 0 aolL 0 ¢] 0 0 00l 0 % Uoiddy
€91 0 0 0 o] 0 px4 0 0 °] 1z i A" 0 j24% 0 0 AN 0 0 I 0 [e10], pueioy
¥9 0 0 0 0 0 Ll 0 0 g 2l oy 0 oy 0 g } 0 0 L o] lejol,
\Nv 0 0 [¢] 0 0 Z 0 "0 l l ol 0 oL 0 4] 0 ¢ o] 0 " Q NV $%:80
el 0 0 0 0 0 S 0 .0 4 € L 0 L 0 0 L 0 4] 4 0 INY 0€:80
gl 0 0 0 o] 0 € 0 0 L 2 192 0 €l 0 0 o] 0 0 0 0 NV G180
|4 0 0 0 a 0 L 0 0 2 9 213 0 9L 0 0 0 ¢] 0 ¢ 0 NV 00:80
69 0 0 0 0 0 0l 0 -0 l 6 8. 0 8. 0 0 L 0 0 L Q0 g0
8l 0 0 0 0 0 € 0 0 0 € Sl 0 Gl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NV &%:20
524 0 ‘0 0 o] 0 4 0 0 L L ee 0 £€e 0 o] 0 0 0 Q 0 NV 0€:L0
04 Q. 0 Q 0 o] e 0 Q 0 € [*14 0 14 0 4] 2 0 0 L ¢} NV G120
9 0 0 g 0 g 12 0 0 g 4 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NV 00:£0
oL I | moLddy [spad [yo1 [nu [wbry | morddy [spad [me1 [nm1 [wbry | moLddy [spad [uet [nay [wbry | oL "ddy | spad [ue7 [nurL _ N ETTT RIS
1S9)\\ Wi ynog ol 3seg Wold UHON Wl :
MIMVO ATIOP AVO AT10r MIANVO ATIOP AVO ATIOP
2 ojuEg - | YlEg - papIysuf] -pajuld sdnoisy
L: ON abed
G102g/L/L © °led Mels
00000000 - 8po) sls

¥eo Allor 8 3e0 Allor” NV

sweN aji4




98/ 000" 000" 000 000° 000" ]o00% 000 000" 000 0o | 869 000" 899" 000" 0000 |Geo 000" 000 G2¢9°  000° [dHd
0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 001 0 00l © 0 0 0 001 0 [e30 | "ddy %
99 o 0 0 0 0 9 0 g 0 g 0g 0 0s 0 0 al 0 0 al 0 SWIN[oA [ejo1
0Z 0 0 0 0 0 L 0 0 0 } Sl 0 gl 0 0 ¥ 0 0 ¥ 0 Nd §LiS0
1z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6l 0 6l 0 0 z 0 0 z 0 Nd 00:50
8 0 0 0 0 0 € 0 o 0 t g 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nd 570
L 0 0 0 0 0 z 0 0 0 z 1 0 Ll 0 0 ¥ 0 0 ¥ 0 Nd 0€%0
. . Nd 040 1e wc_mmm uopossIsu| U] J0) IO Jead
S 140 | 23 - Nd S50 01 Wd 00:#0 WOl SISA[EUY NOH Sead
LIEJoL W [ oL "ddy [spoq |97 | magl | Jubry | oL ddv [Sped | Bl [niUL [ Wby | EmL v [spad [¥e7 [nuyl [yUBrg | =oL-ddv |spad | JoT [yl Twhy~ [eull peig
ISOAA WICLS Uinog wol ISe3 Woi4 UHON wiod4
MI VO ATIOP VO ATIOP MI MYO ATIOr AVO ATIOr
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ! 0 0 ZYueg %
0 0 0 o} 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Zueg
9z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ge 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 ueg %
£ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £ 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L dueg
v16 0oL 0 00F O 0 001 0 0 00l  00F |Gg6 0 g9 0 0 001 0 0 00L 0 F PRRIUSUN %
Zil 1 0 L 0 0 Ll 0 0 } 9l Z8 0 Z8 0 0 4} 0 0 zZl 0 payysun
60 Q 60 0 0 YL 0 0 60 6€l |6¢€L 0 6€. 0 0 7oL 0 0 ¥0L 0 % (2101
0 oL 0 0 0 0 6'S 1'v6 0 00} 0 0 0 0 00} 0 % Yoiddy
GLi L 0 L 0 0 Ll 0 0 1 9l ag 0 g8 0 0 zl 0 0 4 0 [EJ0] puBlD
L9 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 v 0s 0 0§ 0 0 L 0 "~ 0 L o 2oL
9 0 0 0 ) 0 3 0- 0 0 3 € 0 € 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 INd §¥:50
¥l 0 o} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 £l 0 gl o 0 l 0 0 L 0 Nd 0€:50
.02 0 0 0 0 0 L 0 0 0 } Gl 0 Sl ] 0 ¥ 0 0 4 0 Nd §Li50
NPT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6l 0 6l 0 0 z 0 0 Z 0 Nd 00:50
145 1 0 l 0 0 £l 0 0 l ) ge 0 gg 0 0 g 0 0 g 0 [B10.L
8 0 0 0 0 0 € 0 0 0 € S 0 S ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nd S¥+0
Ll 0 0 0 0 0 Z 0 0 0 4 b 0 M 0 0 14 0 0, % 0 Wd 0€:%0
L 0 0 0 0 0 z 0 0 o} 4 g 0 g 0 0 1 0 0 L 0 Nd §13%0
8l 3 0 } 0 0 9 0 0 L g Ll 0 Ll 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nd 0040
[2J0L I | mioL ddv [ spagd | 391 | nayy _ Wby | EoL ddy _ spad ~ o] _ iy * bRy | oL “ddy _ spad _ a7 “ niyL _ WY | rioL ddy _ $pad _ 5] ﬁ iy, _ why | sWl] Hels
1SS/ WOl Uinog woiy jseq woig UHON woi4
MI VO ATI0r AYO ATIOr MI VO ATI0r MVO ATIOr
A Z3jueg - | Jjueg - payiysun -pajuLd sdnoig
l - ON obey
GLoc/L/L ¢ °keq Hels '
00000000 : ®poD =g

3eo Aljor » eQ Allor INd -

SWeN 9ji




P
h
T

WestPac ~ J%Bergmann

: Appendix C
Level of Service Definitions

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Development Traffic Impact Study




Definitions of Level of Service for Unsignalized Intersections

Level of | Expected Delay to Minor Control Delay
Service Street Traffic Per Vehicle (sec)
A Little or no delay <10
B Short traffic delays >10and <15
C Average traffic delays >15and < 25
D Long ftraffic delays >25and <35 -
E Very long traffic delays > 35 and < 50
F * > 50

i When exireme delays will be encountered with queuing, which may cause sever congestion
affecting other traffic movements in the intersection. This condition usually warrants improvement to

the intersection.

The Highway Capacity Manual describes level of service for unsignalized intersections and
the quality of traffic operation in terms of control delay. Control delay is the total elapsed
time from a vehicle joining the queue until its departure from the stopped position at the
head of the queue. Control delay includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time,

stopped and final acceleration delay.

Levels of service range from A to F, with A describing traffic operations with little or no
delay. Level of service F describes operating conditions where average total delay
exceeds 45 seconds per vehicle (control delay exceeds 50 seconds per vehicle).

Level of service analysis for unsignalized intersections considers all the turning movements
of the minor street and the left-turns from the major street entering the minor street. The
number of_gaps in fraffic is then compared to the number of vehicles waiting for a break in
traffic. In all cases, the level of service of unsignalized intersections describes the delay for
drivers waiting to exit the minor street or waiting to turn into the minor street. Therefore,
the majority of traffic traveling through an intersection will usually operated under a better
level of service, as the minor street will have little or no effect on through traffic.




3
o

Definitions of Level of Service for Signalized Intersections

Level of service describes the quality of operation in terms of delay to the driving public.
Levels range from A to F. Definitions for levels of service follow. The level of service
analysis provides a basis for assessing the potential impact of traffic both in terms of how
traffic conditions would change and also whether the existing transportation system would
be inadequate for the additional traffic both in terms of how traffic conditions would change
and also whether the additional transportatlon system would be inadequate for additional

traffic.

Level of service for signalized intersections is defined in terms of delay. Delay is a
measure of driver discomfort, frustration, fuel consumption, and lost travel time. The
Highway Capacity Manual describes level of service for signalized intersections and the
quality of traffic operation in terms of control delay per vehicle for a 15-minute analysis
period. Control delay includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped
delay, and final acceleration delay. Control delay may also be referred to as signal delay.

. The criteria for level of service are given in the following table. '

Level of Service Control Delay Per Vehicle (sec)

<10
>10 and =20
>20and =35
>35 and =55
> 55 and < 80
>80

n|mlo|o|m|>

Delay is a complex measure and is dependent on a number of variables including: the
quality of traffic progression, the cycle length, and the relative amount of green time for the

lane group or approach in question.

LOS A describes operations with very low control delay, up to 10 sec per vehicle. The level
of service occurs when progression is extremely favorable and most vehicles arrive during
the green phase. Most vehicles do not stop at all. Short cycle lengths may also contribute

to low delay.

LOS‘B describes operatlons with control delay greater than 10 and up to 20 sec per
vehicle. This level of service generally occurs with good progression, short cycle lengths,
or both. More vehicles stop than with LOS A, causing higher levels of average delay.

LOS C describes operations with control delay greater than 20 and up to 35 sec per
vehicle. These higher delays may result from fair progression, longer cycle lengths, or
both. Individual cycle failures may begin to appear at this level. Then number of vehicles
stopping is significant at this level, though many still pass through the intersection without

stopping.




LOS D describes operations with control delay greater than 35 and up to 55 sec per
vehicle. At level D, the influence of congestion becomes more noticeable. Longer delays
may result from some combination of unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high
v/c ratios. Many vehicles stop, and the proportlon of vehicles not stoppmg declines.

Individual cycle failures are notlceable

LOS E describes operations with control delay greater than 55 and up to 80 sec per
vehicle. This level is considered by many agencies to be the limit of acceptable delay.
These high delay values generally indicate poor progression, long cycle lengths, and high
v/c ratios. Individual cycle failures are frequent occurrences.

LOS F describes operations with control delay in excess of 80 sec per vehicle. This level,
considered fo be unacceptable to most drivers, often occurs with oversaturation, that is,
when arrival flow- rates exceed the capamty of the intersection. It may also occur at high
.v/c ratios below 1.0 with many individual cycle failures. Poor progression and long cycle
lengths may also be contributing factors to such delay levels.




Pl
R,

{

X

WestPac o ¥ Bergmann

T
1 1
;

| Appendix D
Synchro Level of Service Intersection Reports

WestPac Campus Communities Housing Devélopmem‘ Traffic Impact Study




UIBRIYBNOIY L Ui PaleyS = M1
UIN-JYBR /LIy paseyg = 4T °
UNHUBRIBNOLY | paIByS = ¥

:._E.utmq\cm:of._. paleys = 17
- 0Ly WY WY LY LY O/ Y/N YIN Y/IN V/N 41 PUnoquuoN Gmu__mcHEmca
6/ oLy B/ 6/v 6/v 6/ /N Y/N VIN /N 7 punogises | G aAuq B Al Jejepm
[“i4 e “i4 N 4 e /N Y/IN Y/IN Y/IN o417 punoqynog
o LY [“i\4 WY “id LN Y/IN /N /N Y/N d1l1 punoquuoN (pszijeubisun
Zlid Li/g oLy ol/d oL 01/g V/N VIN VIN Y/IN p=1lgi punogisspn < ¥ aalQ)
WIN YIN - V/N YIN YN VIN 6/ /Y B/ 6/ A7 PUNOQIS8fA |  uled B 3eQ Ajjor
0Ly 0L 8/ 8/ 6/ 6/ /N /N V/N VIN LT punogjsey _
oL 204 LY N LI WY Y/N V/N VIN V/N 11 PUNoquuoN (pazijeubisun)
6/ 6/ B/Y 8/ o/v B8/ /N YIN /N /N o1 punogises | g anUQ @ Amid uleq
N WY [ LY LY W VIN VIN V/IN VIN 17 punaquiioN (pozijeuBisun)
6/Y 6/ 6/v 6/ 6/ 6/Y /N /N V/N /N 1 punogse3 |z anlQ B Amid Ul
o N o Y vV N /N VIN YIN V/IN 17 PuUnoqyuoN (pazifeubisun)
B/ 6/Y 6/ B/ 6/ 6/ Y/N /N YN /N o7 punogises | | aAuQ R AW uled
L1/d L/g Ll/d 324! 324z L1/g L/g L1/4 Lig Li/9 Win1-4a7 | punoqyuon {pazjjeubisun)
ylig zlig glid zhg £l/d zl/d £/ zL/g £l/d ZL/g__Jjunybiy| punogises Aworg -
€20 12/0 [#4}9) 02/ 22/ 6110 02/ oY 0¢/9 o uinj-4a7 | punogyseg UlLie @ sowsNg
€L/g Li/g zl/d LLid 14245 L9 cL/g L g /g Llid UNj-ys7 | punogyuoN (pezyeuBISun)
vl/d el/d l/d gl/d ¥l/g cl/d el/g cl/d el/d gl/g  |juinl-ubiy| punogiseq e >=n.% 9 .onmx 0
82/a 0Z/2 gz/a 81/0 ) 8170 2/ L1190 12/0 L1/Q |l wni-yeT | punogiseg .
YrLid 8./3 Sel/d [IE] zelid [IE] eel/d 69/3 v6/d 29/3 | AiYe)
1.8/4 <9/3 8./4 09/ 9//4 8S/3 €./4 95/3 Zl/3 95/3 | ubnayy punogyjnog
Ll/d ¥9L/4 LeL/d £51/d 62l/d 6 L/4 LLLd 347F ARTE| 6€L/d | uni-ye7 |punoquinog
Qci/d 8y/a ehl/d 8v/d 601/d L¥/d c0L/4 2¥/Q 00L/4 9v/q L punogqyuoN (peziRUBIS)
0e8/4 89L/d YRA/E! B6GL/d 89%/4 GGl/d Sly/d 8¥L/d £e2/4 PLl/4 funi-yst | punoquuoN Py ’ filo _..w wo. wao
0s/a ¥/1Q 6¥/a Lyia 6v/Q Iy/d 8v/Q Zy/d ¥r/d Syid L punogissp
26/d z9/3 26/d 29/ 6874 IE] 68/ 19/3 88/ 193 || Winl-ya7 | punogisapn
182/4 0g}/d §2e/d L21/4 0ge/d Yr49E | 602/d 80L/4 SLi/4 64/3 p=AN punogiseg
EL/4 £8/4 £./4 £8/4 [94E] £8/4 [AAE| £8/ 04/4 84/4 win -e7 bunogisez
] ] zl/ig Ld Zig 1La [E! Lg oL/d L1/g_ {{un3ubig[puncquyinos (peziEUBISUN)
22/0 81D 0210 1110 0z/0 110 8L/0 AL /g Sl/d ) wni-yeT |punoquyinos Pyt Allor z: .
6/ 0lL/g 6/v 0L/g 6/Y oL/d 6/ 0l/d 8 Ol/d Jluin)-ysT | punogiseg -
Li/g /g Li/d €i/d Lig el/d L1/d el/d \id gl/d L punoqujnog
0g/a ze/a 8z/a 1e/a ge/d 0e/a 9z/a 6z/d oz/a 62/d || uni-ysT {punoquinog (pozeuBisun) Py
LD (2] 9110 £2/0 L0 22/0 aL/0 L2/0 91/0 120 HL PUnogyuoN Aiop .,m Em.ﬁwa i
ge/ad [4e] Le/a L2/ 0e/d 12/ 22/ 61/0 9¢/d 6110 Win[-4a7 | punoqyuon SYE[POOM
oL 6/ B/ oY 6/ 6/ B/vY S 6/vV 6/ uinj-js7 | punogisepn
81y L1/ 6/ L1ig 6/Y Li/d 6/ Ld 6/ Li/d | wini-3sy | punogisey
JBed INd |ead NV || Jeed Nd | dBad INV || Mead d | Jeed NV | ead Nd |dead WV || yead Wd |Meed ny
Aepxaapn | Repyoapnil Aepysapn | Aepyoapn || Aepsioap | Aepsisap Kepsisann | Aepyoopn|l Kepyeapn | Aepsiaapn
{(Yanyoss) Ae[e/SO Tl (Usn/o9s) Keleq/Son (yanyoes) AeR@/SO1]|(GaA/298) Aeleg/sOTi|(Usn28s) Aejeq/sOT
. yoeouddy uonoasIsy|
piing SUOHIpuad
piing aimind 8102 {Ipling-oN a1ning m_.om piing ainindg 9102 -ON 2Injn4 9102 (c1L02) Bupsixg

SO uopoesia]




BF@FWWE N
E JAN g 02018 |
e o

e Kt
e e a1 S Y O € CH 03 63 SRR

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX Bill # 12821
Postmarks ot accepted. This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 by 5:00 p.m.
This tax is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb, 17, 2015, Our office at 5151 Tax Detall *
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is T bl Val 545 842
available 24 hours, 7 days. 1% Interest added to winter payments received State E axaple vaue: g !
" qualized Value: 3,279,400
after Feb 17th. March 2nd add_monal charges apply. Postmarks not Primary Residence %: 0.0000
accepted. Allow 7 days for mailed payments. P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00
DESCRIPTION MILLA AMOUNT
Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 4,912.57
Okemos Debt 3.50000 1,910.44
Okemos Bldg/Site 0.49600 270.73
' gem
Property Information €C/ors/Hum Serv 0.15000 .
OKEMOS School: 33170 Meridian Bikepth 0.27740 151.41
Property Assessed To: Mer[g!an Elreks 8ggg?8 ggggl
eridian Parl . .
FORSBERG COMMERCIAL BUILDING LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 331.87
Prop #: 33-02-02-33-353-015 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 109.16
Prop Addr; 2398 JOLLY Land Preserve 0.33000 180.12
OKEMOS, MI 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 136.46
Firestation Debt 0.20000 109.16
Legal Description: Cata/Re%ular ?ggggg 1, gg} 3;1
M33-10 M33-10-2-1 COM. ON SEC. LINE AT PT 1816 FTW ~ Ingham County 431210 2,353.72
OF S 1/8 POST OF SW 1/4 OF SEC. 33, -W 280.5 FT ALONG Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 2, 1078.12
SAID SEC. LINE, N1414.25 FT PLLWITHN & S 1/8 LINE OF Smith 1,067.35
SD SW 1/4 OF SEC. 33, -E 33 FT, -N 1225.68 FTTONLINE O
*BALANCE OF DESCRIPTION ON FILE*
Operating Fiscal Years
The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.
?ounty: 01-01-15 - 12-31-15
wp; 01-01- - 12-31-1
Sc[f?oo" 07_81 _:}2 - (1)6_38_12 . . TOta| TEX . 33‘5221 0 1 9,355.02
State: 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 Administration 182.97
) o TOTAL VYI!\ITER AMQUNT DUE 18,6 ,537.99

*Taxes are based upon Taxable Value.

Make check payable to:

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
51561 MARSH RD

OKEMOS M| 48864
517-853-4140

WWW, MERIDIAN MILUS

2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #:

Property name and address:

DUE DATE 02-17-15

TRETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYNIENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED
1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value. Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges.

ggg%SBERG COMMERCIAL BUILDING LLC
OKEMOS, MI 48864

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 19,5637.99
33-02-02-33-353-015

3

OOZILROO-116 FAIal J OAI LI T2 ain




[

ol Mao % ;E
S |

aammuamau»uamnaammuaaama

DT W ey

ww T

T e

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX . Bill# 12653
Postmarks not accepted. This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 by 5:00 p.m.
This tax Is due In our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015. Our office at 5161 Tax Detail *
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is Taxable Val 17.583
avallable 24 hours, 7 days. 1% Interest added to winter payments received State E il Vglgg g 21'800
after Feb 17th, March 2nd additional charges apply. Postmarks not Prlmar;{ReSIdence %+ 0_6000
acoepted. Allow 7 days for mailed payments., : P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00
As of March 1sf, all or part of your prior year taxes were returned delinquent 0 AMOUN
fo the County. For more lnformatlon please ¢all the County Treasurer (517) g@i%?ﬁgrl]_g ome M‘%’L(')A(S—OEO _1%5‘4@
6767220, .ty T it S A 8§emos gl%bt/ i 3.50000 6% gg
emos Bldg/Site 0.49600 .
SUMMER TAXES OWING _ Meridian Oper 4.20020 73.85
Property Information EneCIder/%uF Stﬁrv 0.15000 g.gg
. ‘ eridian Bike .
Property Assessed ToC:) KEMOS Schook: 33170 mef;g'an Elfekp §:§§§§§. 1;%8
eridian Parks . .
FORSBERG FAMILY LLG Meridian Police 0.60800 10.69
Prop #: 33-02-02-33-302-003 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 3.51
Prop Addr: 2411 KANSAS Land Preserve - 0.33000 5.80
OKEMOS, Ml 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 4,39
Firestation Debt 0.20000 3.51
Legal Description: : 82%{5 %ular %z)ggggg g%g
M 33-15 COM AT PT 24 RDS E & 108 4/7 RDS N OF SW COR Ingham County 431210 75.81
OF SEC.-E 30 RDS-N 12 3/7 RDS-W 14 RDS-S 26 1/2 FT, Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 66.94
SW'LY TO PT 176,61 FT DUE N OF BEG.- S TO BEG ON SW Smith 63.74
1/4 OF SEC. 33, TANR1W
Operating Fiscal Years
The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.
_IC_Jounty: 01-01-156 - 12-31-15
School: 070114 - 063045 Tol Tax 3352210 653.08
State: 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 Adminisiaton Fee 589
) TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE . 658.97
T " RETURNTHIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED
| *Taxes are based upon Taxable Value. 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value, Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges.
Make check payable to: Property name and address: EA%R;SK%NRSGA gAMILY LLC
MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
5151 MARSH RD AT OKEMOS, M| 48864 )
OKEMOS MI 48864 DUE DATE 02-17-15
517.853-4140 TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: A 658.97

WWW.MERIDIAN.MLUS .
2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #: 33-02-02-33-302-003

b3




g
oy
i

¢
fei
8,
5’ e
e

B,
¢
¥

T
15
N

2
-
b

.

W
]
A

:sm
P
i
o
Tl
=2
on

vy s

e U sl
ST
PRI N Tl ««maanaaas

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX Bill# 12654
Postmarks not accepted., This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 by 5:00 p.m.
y P-
t [ This tax is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015. Our office at 5151 Tax Detail *
i | Marsh Rd. Is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbs:de payment dropbox is Taxable Val 12.090
| | available 24 hours, 7 days. 1% interest added to winter payments received State E L?;(l?zecel Vglgg 1 5’ 400
: after Feb 17th, March 2nd add‘monal charges apply. Postmarks not anar)?Res:dence %e 0_6000
: accepted. Allow 7 days for mailed payments. P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00
As of March 1st, aII or part of your priof year taxes were returned definquent
! DESCRIPTION MILLAGE MOUNT
: 207 éh.; 2(32%unt}/ Eor more mformatlon please call the Count‘y Treasurer (517) Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 108.81
X . i K R 8llgemos gl?ibt/S't 3.50000 4?)8&1;
. emos Bldg/Site 0.49600 .
! SUMMER TAXES OWING I\R/leri/cgan/ r?pers 420020 5%513
! Property Information ec/ors/num serv 0.15000 .
! OKEMOS School: 33170 Meridian Bikepth 9.27740 %
| [Propory Assessed 1o e i e 118
! FORSBERG FAMILY LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 7.35
| |Prop #: 33-02-02-33-302-004 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 2.41
i [Prop Addr: 3668 KANSAS Land Preserve 0.33000 3.98
I OKEMOS, Ml 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 3.02
I i Flres/t;t:onlDebt 0.20000 ségg
! | Legal Description: ' Cata/Regular 3.00700 .
j | -og8! Pescription GADBL-Library 156000 18.86
i {M33-16 COM. 24 RDS. E & 102 6/7 RDS. N OF SW COR. OF Ingham County 4.31210 52.13
I | SEC-E 28 RDS-N. 5 5/7 RDS-W 28 RDS-S 5 5/7 RDS TO BEG. Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 46.02
: ON SW 1/4 OF SEGC. 33, TAN R1W-1 A, Smith 52.85
| .
|
1
!
|
! Operating Fiscal Years
: The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
| fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount,
! gountyr 01-01-15 - 12-3}-15
Wp! 01-01-15 - 12-31-15
| | School: 07-01-14 - 06-30-15 Administofal Tax  33.52210 458.08
| |State: 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 46211

I S RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED
*Taxes are based upon Taxable Value. 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value. Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges,

]
{
!
: Make check payable to: Property name and address: EO%SK%NRS%\ EAMILY LLC
I MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 66
5151 MARSH RD 17 OKEMOS, M! 48864
| SKEWOS i dooos  DUEDATE 02-17-15 .
517-853-414 g TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 462.11

' WWW MERIDIAN.MI.US
' : 2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #: 33-02-02-33-302-004

OBT 1-RQOCLI IO IeTAIM 1 AN 1A 3 17 enins




MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX

SOETTTS

e
aaaampneuaaauaﬁ&ﬂsn

Bill# 12655

Postmarks not accepted.

This tax Is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb, 17, 2015. Our office at 5151
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox Is

: available 24 hours, 7 days. 1% Interest added to winter payments received
. | after Feb 17th. March 2nd additional charges apply. Postmarks not

; accepted. AIIow 7 days for malled payments
i

This tax is due by: 02/17/2015

Tax Detail *
Taxable Value: 24,146
State Equalized Value: 27,300
Primary Residence %: 0.0000

by 5:00 p.m.

P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00

As of March’ 1st aflor part of your prior year taxes were returned delinquent 0 G UNT ($)
to the Counly. For more mformatlon please call the County Treasurer (517) gé%%?gg;_#o me M"S; 16'305) AM% 1;1. 2,:1
| OTeTRR0 : : Okemos Debt, 3.50000 84.51
| emos bldg/olie 0.49600 .
| SUMMER TAXES OWING ll\?/leriltgal}}?pers 4.20020 10:13.‘61;
: Property Information ec/ors/Hum serv 0.15000 .
! . Meridian Bikepth 6.69
' | Property Assessed To(-)KEMOS School: 33170 R,,ﬂe” g;an E'rekp , 8:§§§§8 ;g;g
' : eridian Parks 0. 0 .
* FORSBERG FAMILY LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 14,68
" Prop#: 33-02-02-33-302-005 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 4.82
| |Prop Addr:  KANSAS Land Preserve 0.33000 7.96
i OKEMOS, MI 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 6.03
Firestation Debt 0.20000 4.82
1 Legal Description: 8%%@&%ular ?sogggg gggg
. |M33-17 M 33-18-2 COM. 24 RDS. E & 85 5/7 RDS N OF SW Ingham County 431210 104.11
COR. OF SEC-E 28 RDS-N. 17 1/7 RDS-W 28 RDS-S 17 1/7 Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 91.92
* |RDS. TO BEG. ALSO BEG., 858 FT. E & 1414.31 FT. N FROM Smith 82.79
, |SW COR. OF SEG. 33-N 377.08 FT -E 33 FT.-S 377.08 FT.- W
!
I
!
: Operating Fiscal Years
) The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
; fiscal years, This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.
! frl.ounty: ' 01-01-}5 - 12-3}-}5
Wwp: 01-01-15 - 12-31-15
f School; 07-01-14 - 06-30-15 A dmmlstratlo Tlge 33.52210 895. (1) g
|| State: 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 900.20

]

i

| *Taxes are based upon Taxable Value,
,' Make check payable to:
|

|

i

|

5
OKEMOS, MI 48864
517-853-4140

WWW MERIDIAN.MLUS

ERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
1 MARSH RD

" RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED
1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value. Amounts with no millage are either Speclal Assessments or other charges.

Property name and address: FORSBERG FAMILY LLC
KANSAS

DUE DATE 02-17-15

OKEMOS, MI 48864

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:
2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #:

900.20

33-02-02-33-302-005

# m rian

~ e

AN en,.




N

o,

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014'WINTER TAX

Bill #

[

12797

Postmarks not accepted.

This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 by 5:00 p.m.

: Operating Fiscal Years
The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.

This tax is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015, Our office at 5151 Tax Detail *
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is Taxable Value: 211.869
avallable 24 hours, 7 days. 1% interest added to winter payments received State E L?a)l(l?zeg Vglsg: 556' 400
after Feb 17th, March 2nd additional charges apply. - Postmarks not Primar;‘Resid ence % :' 0.(5000
acoepted. Allow 7 days for malled payments. P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00
As of March 1 st all or part of your prior yeartaxes were returned delinquent DESCRIPTION MILLAGE AMOUNT ($)
207 gic_a, zg%unfy For more |nformatxon Pplease call the County Treasurer (517) Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 1, 9016. 82
M <o Okemos Debt 3.50000 741.54
SUMMER TAXES OWING Okemos Bldg/Site 0.49600 105.08
ReoSm s 045000 EINE
Property Information ec/ors/num oerv © 0.15000 .
. Meridian Bikepth 0.27740 68,77
Property Assessed T School: 33170 Meridan Fire 054050 13570
eridian Parks . .
FORSBERG FAMILY LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 128.81
Prop #: 33-02-02-33-329-002 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 42.37
Prop Addr: 2350 JOLLY OAK Land Preserve 0.33000 69.91
OKEMOS, Ml 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 52.96
Firestation Debt : 0.20000 42.37
Legal Description: Cata/Re%uIar 3.00700 637.09
: CADL-Library 1.56000 330.51
UNIT 2, OKEMOS POINTE OFFICE PARK CONDOMINIUM Ingham County 4,31210 913.60
CONDO SUB PLAN NO 267, SEC 33 T4N R1W. Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 806.62
‘ Smith 334.08

_Cr:ounty: : 01-01-15 - 12—3}-15

wp: 01-01-16 - 12-31-15

School: 07-01-14 - 06-30-15 AdministoigiTex,  33.52210 743651
State: 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 7,507.33

oo T T e o 'RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED

*Taxes are based upon Taxable Value. 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value. Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges.

Make check payable to:
gﬂERIDlAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP

151 MARSH RD DUE DATE 02-17-15

OKEMOS MI 48864
517-853-4140
WWW.MERIDIAN.MI.US ) "

. 2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #:

Property name and address: FORSBERG FAMILY LLC
2350 JOLLY OAK

OKEMOS, Mi 48864

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 7,507.33

33-02-02-33-329-002

PRy )

1A e

LN

i,

AN oRaL




MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX Bill# 12798
' Postmarks not accepted. This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 py 5:00 p.m.
This tax Is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015. Our office at 5151 Tax Detail *
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is - Taxable Val 0
available 24 hours, 7 days, 1% interest added fo winter payments received State E L?e;(hazeg Vglgg 0
after Feb 17th, March 2nd additional charges apply. Postmarks not Prlmar;lReSId ence %: 0.0000
accspted. Allow? days for mallad paymens. P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bl By: 0.00
D DESCRIPTION MILLAGE AMOUNT (3]
Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 EXEMPT
. Smith‘ 160.97
Property Information
OKEMOS School; 33170
Property Assessed To:
FORSBERG FAMILY LLC
Prop # 33-02-02-33-329-100
Prop Addr:  JOLLY OAK
OKEMOS, M! 48864
Legal Description:
COMMON ELEMENT, OKEMOS POINTE OFFICE PARK
CONDOMINIUM CONDO SUB PLAN NO 267, SEC 33 T4N
R1W,
Operating Fiscal Years
The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.
gounty: 01-01-15 - 12-31-15
Sehool: e L e . Total Tax 9.00000 160.97
State: ’ 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 Administration I'-aee 0.00
) ' TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 160. 97

RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED

*Taxes are based upon Taxable Value. 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value. Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges.

Make check payable to: Property name aﬁd address: 585&85’;}% FAMILY LLC
MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP -
5151 M R HRD 17 OKEMOS, Ml 48864
R0 NMLUS . TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 160.97
2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #: 33-02-02-33-329-100

1~ e e

DOT AR A 3Ar b AR R




LETN

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX

Bill# 12825

Postmarks not accepted.

This tax is due by: 02/17/2015

| by 5:00 p.m.

This tax is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015, Our office at 6151
Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is
available 24 hours, 7 days. 1% interest added to winter payments received
after Feb 17th. March 2nd additional charges apply. Postmarks not
accepted. Aliow 7 days for mailed payments.

Tax Detail *
Taxable Value: 279,772
State Equalized Value: 281,400
Primary Residence %: 0.0000

P.R.E. Exemption Has Reduced This Bill By: O 00

DESCRIPTION MILLAGE AMOUNT ($)
Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 2,517.94
Okemos Debt 3.50000 979.20
Okemos Bldg/Site 0.49600 138.76
Meridian Oper 4,20020 1,175.09
Property Information llsleq/c?rs/lgl}lin Stﬁrv 0.15000 g; .gg
EMOS . erialan bikep 0.27740 .
Property Assessed To(:)K Mo School: 33170 Mer!g!an Elrek 88‘8*%?8 ;;g;?
eridian Parks . ,
OLD EPIBUILDING LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 170.10
Prop #: 33-02-02-33-376-012 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 55.95
Prop Addr: 2362 JOLLY OAK Land Preserve 0.33000 92.32
OKEMOS, Mi 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 69.94
Flres/tatlon'Debt 0.20000 82?.9?
Legal Description: Cata/Regular 3.00700 2
egal bescription : % 1.56000 436.44
MP 6858-2, M33-10-1, A PART OF LOT 2 JOLLY OKEMOS lngham County 431210 1,206.40
INDUSTRIAL PARK DESCASBEG@APT100FTNONE Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 1,065.14
LOT LN FROM SE COR SD LOT 2 -S 89 DEG 46'20"W 201.43 Smith 82.60
FT-N 0 DEG 48'30"W 197.4 FT -S 89 DEG 46'20"E 204.23 FT -
*BALANCE OF DESCRIPTION ON FILE*
Operating Fiscal Years
The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax Is due or its amount.
A = R+ ~
wp: 01-01-15 - 12-81-
School: 07014a - 063012 C Totel Tax - 33.52210 9,461.06
State: . 10-01-14 - 09-30-15 Administration Fee 93.78
’ TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 9,554, 84

RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED

*Taxes are based upon Taxable Value, 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value, Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges.

Make check payable to:

MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
5151 MARSH RD

KEMOS Mi 48864
517-853-4140
WWW MERIDIAN.MI.US

Property name and address: QLD EPI BUILDING LLC
2362 JOLLY OAK

DUE DATE 02-17-15
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:
2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #:

OKEMOS, Ml 48864 -

9,654.84

33-02-02-33-376-012




O\TSOUTE
]
Bl
i : MERIDIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2014 WINTER TAX Bill # 12824
g : . Postmarks not accepted. This tax is due by: 02/17/2015 by 5:00 p.m,
;1 | Thistax is due in our office by 5:00 p.m. Feb. 17, 2015, Our office at 5151 Tax Detail * :

!y | Marsh Rd. is open 8am to 5pm M-F and our curbside payment dropbox is Taxable Value: 133.876
i | available 24 hours, 7 days. 1% interest added to winter payments received State E L?;(l?zed Vglgg: g 328'1 00
I | after Feb 17th. March 2nd additional charges apply. Postmarks not Primar)?Residence % N 0_0'000
: acoepted. A.uow 7.§ays .for mailed payments. P.RE Exempti.on Has Reduced This Bill By: 0.00
: L . DESCRIPTION MILLAGE AMOUNT {
I - ’ Okemos Non-Home 9.00000 1,204.88
! Okemos Debt 3.50000 468.56
: Oke‘m_os Bldg/Site 0.49600 66.40
| Reo/Srelum S 535000 °26.00

Property Information ec/ors/Hum oerv 0.15000 .
| OKEMOS. School: 33470 Meridian Bikepth 0.27740 37.13
I | Property Assessed To: - ' Merigian ll;irek 883%?8 12?;3
| eridian Parks X .
| FORSBERG FAMILY LLC Meridian Police 0.60800 81.39
I |Prop#: 33-02-02-33-376-011 Cata/Meridian 0.20000 26.77
: Prop Addr: 2360 JOLLY OAK Land Preserve 0.33000 4417
| OKEMOS, M 48864 Road Millage 0.25000 33.46
X Firestation Debt 0.20000 26.77
i {Legal Description; 8?\%@!?%#5{: ?.ggggg ggg.gg
: MP 6858, LOT 2 JOLLY-OKEMOS INDUSTRIAL PARK EXC- Ingham County ) 431210 577.28
) |THE 8 297.4 FT THEREOF SEC 33 TANR1W 3.34 AC M/L. Lansing Com Coll 3.80720 509.69
: Smith 164.89
i
|
i
|
! " "
! Operating Fiscal Years
| The taxes on bill will be used for governmental operations for the following
l' fiscal years. This does NOT affect when the tax is due or its amount.
| goynty: 01-01-15 - 12-31-15
wp: 01~ - 31~

! | soho: Ry Sty Ry  TofalTax  33.52210 4,652.60
| IState: 10-01-14 - 00-30-15 Administraion Fee 44.87
t ) TOTAL WINTER AMOUNT DUE 4,697.47

P h o RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENVELOPE SUPPLIED
? *Taxes are based upon Taxable Value. 1 mill equals $1.00 per $1000 of Taxable Value, Amounts with no millage are either Special Assessments or other charges, .

Property name and address: FORSBERG gﬁl\}éuLY LLC

Make check payable to:
. 2360 JOLLY
DUE DATE 02-17-15

.1 MERIDIAN GHARTER TOWNSHIP
5151 MARSH RD

l

1

| OKEMOS, M 48864
| 817-853-414

I

2

OKEMOS, M(l)48864
WWW MERIDIAN.MLUS TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: 4,697.47
2014 WINTER TAX BILL PROPERTY #: 33-02-02-33-376-011




William F. Savage, P.E.
Savage Traffic Engineering, Inc.

Summer Address | Winter Address
6401 Timber Ridge Trail 6611 Stone River Road, #206
East Lansing, Ml 48823 e-mail: MSUSavage@aol.com Bradenton, FL 34203
Phone & Fax: 517-339-3933 : Phone & Fax: 941-755-4681
February 12, 2015

Gail Oranchak, Principal Planner
Charter Township of Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, Ml 48826

RE: WestPac Campus Development

Dear Gail:

The Traffic Study by “Bergmann” was excellent. Long, but easy reading and a
complete study. There are no concerns, except the Okemos @ Jolly Road
intersection. |

What is missing are concerns for pedestrians and bicyclists. The pedestrians
can be served by a shuttle bus operating during school hours.

Helping the bicyclists will be challenging, but it was noticed that several streets
(Jolly Oak, Water Lily Way, Woodlake Drive, Forsberg Commercial Drive, and
Farrin Parkway) are 32-ft wide and could be converted to two 12-ft lanes and
two 4-ft lanes for the bikers. Maybe someday a bike path will close by.

The big problem is the Okemos at Jolly intersection. It is suggested that right-
turn-lanes be constructed at the intersection by redesigning it with 11-foot
lanes, and buy property on one side or the other, making sure that the lanes

end up in alignment.

Sincerely,
WFSavage @iﬂgﬁ ELMZ rﬂ

William F. Savage, P.E. Ei;
‘§§ ;

TS W e e G T S U A8 63 %Y 308 5 et e B P o




“Rezoning #15020

(George F. Eyde Family LLC)

APPLICANT:

STATUS OF APPLICANT:
REQUEST:

CURRENT ZONING:
LOCATION:

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE:
EXISTING LAND USE:

EXISTING LAND USES
IN AREA:

CURRENT ZONING IN AREA:

FUTURE LAND USE
DESIGNATION:

FUTURE LAND USE MAP:

March 5, 2015

George F. Eyde Family LLC
4460 S. Hagadorn Road, Suite 660
East Lansing, Ml 48823

Purchaser
Rezone to C-2 (Commercial)

PO (Professional and Office) and RA (Single Family, Medium
Density)

1614 and 1622 Grand River Avenue and an undeveloped
parcel east of Central Park Drive and north of Grand River

8.66 acres (377,229.6 sq. ft.)

Single Family residences and undeveloped

North: Undeveloped

South: Grand River Avenue

East: Sparrow office building, detention pond
West: Commercial strip center

North: RA (Single Family, Medium Density)
South: C-2 (Commercial)

East: PO (Professional and Office)

West: C-2 (Commercial)

Office

North: Office

South: Commercial (across Grand River)
East: Office

West: Commercial




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission

i o, py .
FROM “‘/ L AL w/}?f/«sz@fw&w
Gail Oranchak, AICP
Principal Planner

DATE: March 5, 2015

RE: Rezoning #15020 (George F. Eyde Family LLC) request to rezone approximately
8.66 acres located at 1614 and 1622 Grand River Avenue and an undeveloped
parcel on Central Park Drive

George F. Eyde Family LLC has requested the rezoning of three parcels totaling approximately
8.66 acres from PO (Professional and Office) and RA (Single Family, Medium Density) to C-2
(Commercial). Single family homes are located at 1614 and 1622 Grand River while the Central
Park Drive parcel is undeveloped except for two sheds.

Master Plan
The 2005 Master Plan designates all three parcels in the Office category.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

R SRR PR
e : 4 Legend b
. .

\N .o + o o o RESIDENTIAL1.2535DUA P

.. . L
o + 3 [J 0] RESIDENTIALBS6.0DUA 5
o ¢ ¥ =] ReSIDENTIALB.0-14.0 DUIA

+ +| [ commerciaL

¢ % [T ] COMMERCIAL COREAREA |

¢ 4 BEZ oFFIcE

+ 4 F ] insTITuTIONAL

HAMILT




REZ #15020 (G. F. Eyde Family LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 2

Zoning

As far back as 1963, Township zoning maps indicate the three parcels were zoned as they are
today, PO for the two parcels with frontage on Grand River Avenue and RA for the parcel with
frontage on Central Park Drive. Combined or individually, the three parcels meet the minimum lot
width and lot area requirements for their current zoning districts (PO or RA) and the proposed C-2

district.

PARCEL LOT AREA LOT WIDTH
1614 Grand 2.41 acres 145 ft.
River (104,980 sq. ft.)
1622 Grand 3.21 acres 206 ft.
River (139,828 sq. ft.)
Central Park 3.04 acres 359.29 ft.
Drive (132,422 sq. ft.)
ZONING DISTRICT LOT AREA LOT WIDTH
PO (Professional
and Office 5,000 sq. ft. 50 ft.
RA (Single Family,
Medium Density 10,000 sq. ft. 80 ft.
C-2 (Commercial) 4,000 sq. ft. 100 ft.
ZONING MAP
RC
RD
RA

\

HAMILTON ROAD

Tk




REZ #15020 (G. F. Eyde Family LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 3

Physical Features

Single family residences occupy the two Grand River Avenue parcels. Township records show a
2,900 square foot greenhouse is also located on the site addressed as 1614 Grand River while
two sheds of 176 square feet and 3,576 square feet are located on the Central Park Drive parcel.
Vegetation consists of deciduous and conifer trees, shrubs and open lawn areas. Elevations
range from 870 feet above mean sea level along the Grand River Avenue frontage to 859 feet
above mean sea level in the center of the two Grand River Avenue parcels. Slope is fairly gradual
from Grand River Avenue northward to the low point and then gradually increases to 867 feet
above mean sea level on the Central Park Drive parcel. The Flood Insurance Rate Maps for
Meridian Township show 100-year floodplain elevations are not present on this site.

Wetlands

The Township Wetland Map shows three wetlands may impact future development. Wetlands 22-
12 and 22-13 are located on the Central Park Drive parcel. At less than .25 acres in size they
may be unregulated. Wetland #22-15 appears to skim the east side of 1614 Grand River Avenue;
it is a large detention pond owned by the Ingham County Drain Commissioner. At more than two
acres in total area, a required 40 foot natural features setback is a potential factor in future
development. The Township Wetland Map is a guide and a wetland delineation will be required
prior to future development to determine the extent and location of wetlands.

WETLAND SIZE ATTRIBUTES
2212 .23 Emergent
2213 .23 Emergent
2215 8.95 Emergent/Open Water/Shrub-Scrub
WETLAND MAP

D
A i ] /;y' egen
4 f/ 7




REZ #15020 (G. F. Eyde Family LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 4

Soils

The following predominant soil types are found at the subject site:

SOIL ASSOCIATION SEVERE
LIMITATIONS
KbA (Kibbie) Wetness
SpB (Spinks) : None
UpA (Urban Land-Capac/Colwood) Wetness, Ponding
UtB (Urban Land-Marlette None
Source: Soil Survey of Ingham County, Michigan. 1992.
SOILS MAP
-
A

7

Streets and Traffic

Access to the site is available from Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive. Grand River
Avenue is classified as a Principal Arterial as shown on the map titled Street Setbacks and
Service Drives, Section 86-367 in the zoning ordinance. Central Park drive is identified as a
Collector street on the same map.

Grand River Avenue consists of two eastbound and two westbound lanes with a center turn lane.
A Michigan Department of Transportation traffic count from 2013 showed average weekday trips
totaled 17,000 vehicle trips at a location east of the Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive
intersection.




REZ #15020 (G. F. Eyde Family LLC)
Planning Commission (3/5/2015)
Page 5

Central Park Drive consists of two northbound and two southbound lanes. Ingham County Road
Department data indicates the most recent traffic count for this segment of Central Park Drive was
taken in 2003. At that time, 12,557 vehicle trips were counted evenly distributed between
northbound and southbound directions.

The applicant’s traffic consultant has prepared a rezoning traffic assessment comparing potential
uses permitted in the RA and PO zoning districts to those permitted in the C-2 district. Single
family detached housing is compared to a 27,000 square foot specialty retail building for the
rezoning from RA to C-2. For the PO to C-2 parcels, a 77,000 square foot office building is
compared to a 49,000 square foot supermarket. The report concludes traffic volumes will
increase but level of service will be acceptable at LOS D.

The Township’s traffic consultant reviewed the applicant’s traffic assessment commenting, “The
intersection of Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive will operate satisfactorily.” He further
commented, “Care should be given to the location” of future entrances into the site “to assure
good site distance on Central Park Drive and adequate spacing with existing road and driveways
on Grand River.”

Utilities
Public sanitary sewer and water lines in the vicinity of the site are available for connection.
Staff Analysis

The applicant has requested the rezoning of an approximate 8.66 acre site consisting of three
parcels located on Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive from PO (Professional and Office)
and RA (Single Family, Medium Density) to C-2 (Commercial). When evaluating the request, the
Planning Commission should consider all uses permitted by right and by special use permit in the
current and proposed zoning districts as well as topics listed on the rezoning application such as
changing conditions in the vicinity of the site; consistency with the Master Plan; furtherance of
health, safety and welfare; compatibility with surrounding uses; potential adverse impacts to the
environment; identified community need; logical and orderly development pattern; and/or better
and more efficient use of land. In support of the rezoning, the applicant responded to applicable
topics in the attached application materials.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request or it may
recommend a different zoning designation to the Township Board. A resolution will be provided
for a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Application and supporting materials
2. Township traffic consultant’s report dated February 9, 2015

G:\ Planning\REZ\REZ 15020 (George F. Eyde Family LLC)\Staff Reports\REZ 16020.pc1.doc




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

REZONING APPLICATION

Part I, Il and Il of this application must be completed. Failure to complete any portion of this form may
result in the denial of your request.

Part |

A. Owner/Applicant fﬁ7/c>r¢7g P [\/Cc" /é’?ﬁﬁ/ / / / / L
Address of applicant " £4e S. Llaga dern, (Se,fe lio, E4, /7

Telephone:  Work 5/7- 351 /2486 Home
~ Fax 577 3Si- 23 /9 Email__c/ovse @ oJde . (o)

If there are multiple owners, list names and addrésses of each and indicate ownership intereét. Attach additional

sheets if necessary. If the applicant is not the current owner of the subject property, the applicant must provide a

copy of a purchase agreement or instrument indicating the owner is aware of and in agreement with the requested

action.
B. Applicant’s Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request:
Name / Contact Person M ﬁ’é’/ CAOOS &
Address ‘ Sare
Telephone:  Work Home

Fax Email

C.  Siteaddressfiocation V2 ~(entval [t Drive = 1er < /ézzémm/ [Dyes Ay, Obzms

Legal description (Attach addltlonal sheets if,necessary) 5@(’" AHalfool Svrvey’
Parcel number sSce alidc A u/a(/ Site acreage & ? Y. peres !

D. Current zoning sce Jz‘l (x&a«(:wé Requested zoning CZ- Lom here s al
E. The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

1. Nonrefundable fee.

2.~ Evidence of fee or other ownership of the subject property.

3. A rezoning traffic study prepared by a qualified traffic engineer based on the most current edition

of the handbook entitled Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for

Michigan Communities, published by the State Department of Transportation, is required for the

following requests:

a. Rezonings when the proposed district would permit uses that could generate more than
100 additional directional trips during the peak hour than the principal uses permitted
under the current zoning.

b. . Rezonings having direct access to a principal or minor arterial street, unless the uses in
the proposed zoning district would generate fewer peak hour trips than uses in the existing

zoning district.
(Information pertaining to the contents of the rezoning traffic study will be available in the Department

of Community Planning and Developnient.)

4, Other information deemed necessary to evaluate the application as specified by the Director of
Community Planning and Development.

Page 1




Part Il

P

REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST

Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof. Explain your position on the lines
elow, and attach supporting information to this form. Y
below, a supporting ° seve atichoa

A. Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1)

There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically:

2) The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects:

3) The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township's Master Plan, explain:

4) The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting
the Zoning Ordinance, specifically:

5) The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at
the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the
area:

6) The current zoning restrlctlons on the use of the property do not further the health safety or
general welfare of the public, explain:

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate:

1) Requested rezoning Iis consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain:

2) Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site,
specifically:

3) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on the natural environment,
explain: )

4) Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water
and  sewer  systems, education, recreation  or  other  public  services,
explain;

5) Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically:

6) Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain:

7) Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and

therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services,
explain:

Page 2




Part lll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or
Commissions, Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter
onto the above described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the

purpose of gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. ‘

IZ]/ Yes [] No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and

accom;} ihg d Cl?ma i6h is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate
f"';% / @C(%Z;/ / 7 -3/ Zef L/

Signature of Applicant Date

S A A

Type/Print Name
Fee: ?{ ‘73? 6‘7 Received by/Date:
7

Page 3




Rezoning Application
Supplement

Parcel 1 - 22-252-003
Parcel 2 - 22-401-003
Parcel 3 - 22-426-001

A2

A3

' B1

B2

B3

B4

B5

B6

B7

The Central Park Drive / Grand River Avenue area has continued to evolve into a commercial
core. Parcels 2 & 3 each front Grand River Avenue — with a multi-tenant retail center to the
west and Sparrow Heath Center to the east. Central Park Drive was developed with the intent
to house commercial / retail uses along either side — as it has been developed from Marsh Road

to Grand River.

Whereas the current Master Plan calls for Professional and Office (PO) zoning on all 3 parcels —
Parcel 1 remains RA — single family.

Whereas Office zoning is set forth on the Master Plan Map — the surrounding area has been
developed with a focus on commercial and retail. The subject area is a part of the Township’s
overall commercial core and uses consistent with that type of development will require
commercial zoning. :

As set forth above — the area has developed as a strong retail core —and commercial zoning
would be consistent with current uses on surrounding properties.

The subject parcels front Grand River Avenue or Central Park Drive. The property is generally
flat and has no wetlands on site.

The site is served by public water and sewer — with road frontage on Grand River Avenue or
Central Park Drive.

Current Master Plan calls for Office on the subject parcels — however there is no demand for
office space in the commercial core of the Township. Office occupancy continues to grow at a
very slow pace — but only in the developed office park areas of the Township. Retail /
Commercial uses have continued to grow in the core of the Township.

See B5 above.

As set forth above — the parcels front major corridors in the Township. Public utilities are
available to the parcels,




L 4D b JA3NS

upByaly ‘soLanG

DAUQ DG joRUEY WO puo| puT

Of wo1 TINOS

oy JuAy puDID 3aM Zzgl F® vigh — ASMENS TN ONYT BSOV/VLTY

T A GIORS
A UG Wt

LZEZ-1X 0N 8

B0vaz TN
Judmung GUDREN K]
Dusuoony Gobyitw
A3 ) peuR
Feobsy woe
407 ¢ dwquoman om0 Uiy [0 B0
{17 THE ACTITD UD Papirured Bim gRapy R CHRURG ¥ KOS
WO1 BUS L BABY MEAPRUT DUD ‘SYSN PUS YITV 43 pMATDe puw Suqmmaiae Lumf “wiuns
UL, PUUY NSICVITY 405 FWSWSTIY (D8] PIOTWCSS WA LIUE WUl Uijh $2up0s000
i a5 % B
Ay pereiy undmry

anarn] AICIY ML, UBIUIGL P AOEwS us! »

O} “Aiioy epky °g Wseen UOuESN, SAUR IO VIOWH T, VDIBNTA LRGY PUT (NP AL

sl *Aumos, woubly “Omedscy upgtiwy Srvirbey ©F 1M Gps MUK aTuall Twe} 15T

D004 DS 10 MTHD Ssom AswISeT RS DY Ky DU 4O AR 3R} %

vy Vee; 1GT DI eGUe] “Wok L alay GHON  UMDL T VNG M WS miprb woy
w5 e, WAL SLCTAL Y00 @ 30 DALl SorduIaap Duno) Wk 1€

TN SHYIGTIOVE TH KYIRGI 40 AONIOW TUL ROUVHDNVAL
Y10/C1/01 22UNC INDHUACD T + ¥ FIADOS KO CIDACHS S MOLANISIO T3l

NN ARUNSYAN
IV ONZT S0v9ray §ml

LN pote aavnsyawv

L5 - L8 AWOS

!

N

f

IV IO'T Sduora

IRt

4

3,002,005

ST

v

WY
669 ¥,,41.49,005 SINSAA} FINOS

i

]

DTS S
ATy B 3o 8

amd

AR IRARR

J_

13

Y]

“NCRiH UL 5 ONY T ORMvd 1LY
sl Jovd 9L ADON N WICLOWRY INFOSI ~ 6L 3l

T COMENG S ONY § TOMve XN
w21 %4 ZTOZT WG 4 TIOUITIM AHENNDL AVDININ OF LN3RISVS < D R

ORI CALLON I ONY T T30 SITLIN

1AL Jove ZEAL HEEY @ CDONSTSH NivoO HEENT 0 LNRESYY - 21

.

NI MUCW S OV § Tioerd SIXLY
“L0F 30¥4 "C2it VBT W CIINOOGH WMNO MWIENT: BOS INJTOSYE - OV Wil

INBGAYE I ST 0N YD LO0HUL YU I YL 2303 N 0N
Q730 ANTZ DAO #i OIAIOSIN . HIHM DIVISI HAUCOAAL ¥ S¥R NDILIRYSX
‘g8 GOV Qukl HMC M CRONOOTH LOWIIEK ToVINNXG HOMNN OL JKYMISVR = & Ril

WO DU R M T X T TERNG SN
gt IoV4 WA CL UARA Mt 03CHITIN
UINTISSANDS NVIKI AINIKE) 1vOSE A CITHIA SESOGUTE NI HKOUNT H0U IGHISYS = ¥5 Rall

QA0 I LONKVD Doy TN W LTIV S L0 L 130 S

XY

“»0C TV BTt OF 430 s (ICHCTZY ANMANGG AWING HINSNGD OL QU INFOTVE - T Ml

IO D ACNHYD CRY AW N LDIVE S 106 T TIIHVS S33av
£OC 20Vd WY 05 K300 3 QXTI AMVIADD ANDAT SEIMSNIS QI QLAMD INIGIVD = &b o

WY OFLIOTS SOV € TIwvd SLOLY

S 1024 10N 5300 T

“MOUK TALLW D ON T ¥ 2 TN ST 101
“CI33evd DDA 10N 5300 W2

“NIBM O0LOTE St ONY € "OS¥vd SISldfy €2

W LIUOTTG AT 40 ANOD Ni QUSI SISO LYM-SD-1200 8d I3

s ATM SHYWCZOYL

o foualy It VONOUEVSIY $iOL/TL/CY PO Weuthuiing 22r) SNCHEIIKT £ HOLIXS = H AURIMIS

Vitl<
02UCSHAN

WEO'E SavnIAU dMl

s Ty

amores TG

ot AIRUWILD STTWD
£500t Sd V3 SN MYE &/ OGN0

UK SO SSEIN
6082 M, QAR D Hlia Py
IOV, T RIS $/E 12 =

NN Huve HINDD

L

WIEIv SEW VI QN ‘L

wnoM

IMLz v—-a




- TRAFFIC ASSESSMENT
~ For the
Proposed Rezoning of

8.66 Acres on Grand River Avenue (M-43)
And Central Park Drive

~ Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, MI

February, 2015

Prepared by:

Traffic Engineering
Associates, Inc.

PO Box 100 * Saranac, Michigan 48881
. 517/627-6028 FAX:517/627-6040




Table of Contents

Page
. Project Description 1
Aerial Photo ‘ 2
EXiSting Conditions | 3
Land Use | 3
Traffic Generation | 4
Table 1 — Traffic Generation Summary, _ 6
Grand River Avenue Properties
;l“able 2 — Traffic Generation Summary, 8
Central Park Drive Property
Table 3 — Rezoned Total Traffic Generation Summary ‘ | 10
LOS Analysis for Existing AM and PM Peak Hour for
Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive Intersection 11
Table 4 — LOS Summary, Existing AM and PM Peak Hour 12
Site Distance | 13
Conclusions | ' 13
- Supplemeﬁtal 4 ‘ ‘ 14

Site Survey
Turning Movement Counts
LOS Summary




PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The purpose of this study is to determine the difference in the traffic being generated between the
existing zoning, One-Family Medium-Density Residential (RA) and Professional Office (PO),
and the proposed new zoning, Commercial (C-2), of an approximate eight point six six (8.66)
acre parcel located at the northeast corner of Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive
in Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

The trip generation for the existing parcels was based on the largest trip generators allowed
under the Meridian Charter Township Zoning Ordinance. There are three (3) parcels, the first
parcel consisting of 3.04 acres is currently zoned One-Family Medium-Density Residential, the
second parcel consisting of 3.21 acres is zoned Professional Office and the third parcel
consisting of 2.41 acres is also zoned Professional Office.

The trip generation for future development was determined by the largest trip generator use
allowed under the proposed Commercial (C-2) zoning category.

The traffic analysis consists of the following items:

e Comparison of trips being generated with the existing zoning One-Family Medium-
Density Residential (RA) and Professional Office (PO), versus the requested new zoning

Commercial (C-2).

e Level of Service analysis- for existing conditions ‘at the intersection of Grand River.
-Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/Dobie Road

e Discussion of any potential sight distance issues.

This study was conducted in accordance with the guidelines set forth in “Evaluating Traffic
Impact Studies, A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communitiés,” sponsored by the Tri-
County Regional Planning Commission and the Michigan Department of Transportation, and the
Meridian Charter Township Zoning Ordinance. :

l% Ne—————————r
.
1




| Aerial Photo




EXISTING CONDITIONS

Grand River Avenue (M-43) is an east-west, five-lane paved roadway with concrete curb and
gutter. There is a concrete sidewalk along both sides of Grand River Avenue (M-43). Grand
River Avenue (M-43) is under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT). The posted speed limit is 50 MPH. |

Central Park Drive is a north-south, four-lane paved roadway across the proposed site property

* with concrete curb and gutter and sidewalks on both sides. Central Park Drive is under the
jurisdiction of the Ingham County Road Department. The speed limit is a posted 35 MPH.

-LAND USE

Surrounding land uses include residential to the north, to the immediate east are office suites, to
the west is commercial retail property and south of this site is commercial retail.




TRAFFIC GENERATION

The two (2) properties on Grand River Avenue (M-43) are currently zoned Professional Office
(PO), and the proposed rezoning to be Commercial (C-2). These two (2) properties were
combined into one (1) single parcel for the purpose of the comparison of existing zoning to
proposed zoning. The single property on Central Park Drive is currently zoned Residential (RA)
and the proposed rezoning to be Commercial (C-2); therefore, one comparison from existing
zoning to proposed zoning was conducted for this parcel. To assess the total impact, the two (2)
rezoning comparisons were combined to provide a total comparison of trip generation between
existing zoning and proposed zoning.

Grand River Avenue (M-43) Properties
In order to determine the use that would generate the maximum number of vehicle trips under

Professional Office (PO), this study used the Meridian Township guidelines of 10,000 square
feet of floor space for every 31,812 square feet of property as being the maximum square footage
(footprint) of a building that can be built on a site zoned PO (Professional Office).

The two (2) propetties on Grand River Avenue (M-43), which are currently zoned PO
(Professional Office), consist of a total of 5.62 acres, or, 244,807 square feet. The maximum
footprint under the zoning category would be approximately 77,000 square feet. The square
footage of the possible building footprint under both the existing zoning and the proposed zoning
were determined by Meridian Charter Township guidelines based on acreage. | '

The maximum building size estimate for Commercial (C-2) zoning is different from Professional
Office (PO). The Meridian Township guideline for the maximum building footprint for C-2
zoning is a 5 to 1 ratio, or 20% of the total acreage. Using this guideline, the maximum building
footprint for the two (2) properties on Grand River Avenue (M-43) under a C-2 zoning would be
49,000 square feet. .

General Office Building (ITE Code 710) was selected to represent the existing zoning category,
Professional Office (PO), for trip generation of the maximum building size of 77,000 square feet.
The ITE desctiption of General Office Building is as follows:

A general office building houses multiple tenants, it is a location where affairs of businesses,
commercial or industrial organizations, or professional persons or firms are conducted. An

office building or buildings may contain a mixture of tenants including professional services,

insurance companies, investment brokers and tenant services, such as a bank or savings and

loan institution, a restaurant or cafeteria and service retail facilities.

Supermarket (ITE Code 850) was selected to represent the proposed zoning category,
Commercial (C-2), for trip generation of the maximum building size of 49,000 square feet. The
ITE description of Supermarket is as follows: ‘




Supermarkets are free-standing retail stores selling a. complete assortment of food, food
preparation and wrapping materials, and household cleaning items. Supermarkets may also
contain the following products and services: ATMs, automobile supplies, bakeries, books and
magazines, dry cleaning, floral arrangements, greeting cards, limited-service banks, photo
centers, pharmacies and video rental areas.

A comparison of trip generation for the existing zoning to the proposed zoning for the Grand
River Avenue (M-43) properties is summarized in Table 1. The trip generation rates were
derived from the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9™ Edition.

Based on this data, it is projected that the proposed rezoning (C-2) will generate higher traffic
volumes than the current zoning (PO) by 12 vehicle-trips in the AM peak hour and 294 vehicle-
trips in the PM peak hour with a difference in the weekday volume of 3,596 trips.




Table 1

Traffic Generation Summary

For

Grand River Avenue (M-43) Properties

Existing Proposed Changg n
Zoning — (PO) | Zoning — (C-2) Tratfic
Volumes
ITE Code General Office Supermarket
Building (710) (850)
Size 77,000 Sq. Ft. | 49,000 Sq. Ft.
AM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 155 167 +12
1In 136 104 -32
Out 19 63 +44
PM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 165 459 +204
~ In 28 234 +206
Out 137 225 +88
Weekday Daily Vehicle Trips 1,076 4,672 -+3,596




Central Park Drive Property

The single property on Central Park Drive is currently zoned Residential (RA) and consists of a
total of 3.04 acres, or, 132,422 square feet. The maximum number of lots for RA zoning would
be 13 lots given a minimum of 10,000 square feet per lot under the Meridian Charter Township

zoning guidelines.

The square footage of the maximum building footprint for the proposed zoning was determined
by Meridian Charter Township guidelines based on acreage. The maximum building size
estimate for Commercial (C-2) zoning is different from Residential (RA). The Meridian
Township guideline for the maximum building footprint for C-2 zoning is a 5 to 1 ratio, or 20%
of the total acreage. Using this guideline, the maximum building footprint for the single property
on Central Park Drive under a C-2 zoning would be 27,000 square feet. A

Single-Family Detached Housing (ITE Code 210) was selected to represent the existing zoning
category, Residential (RA), for trip generation of the maximum lots of thirteen (13). The ITE
_description of Single-Family Detached Housing is as follows:

Single-family detached housing includes all single-family detached homes on individual lots. A
typical site surveyed is a suburban subdivision.

Specialty Retail Center (ITE Code 826) was selected to represent the proposed zoning category,
Commercial (C-2), for trip generation of the maximum building size of 27,000 square feet. The

ITE description of Specialty Retail Center is as follows:

Specialty retail centers are generally small strip shopping centers that contain a variety of retail
shops and specialize in quality apparel, hard goods and services, such as real estate offices,
dance studios, florists and small restaurants.

A comparison of trip generation for the existing zoning to the proposed zoning for the Central
Park Drive property is summarized in Table 2. The trip generatlon rates were derived from the
ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9™ Edition.

Based on this data, it is projected that the proposed rezoning (C-2) will generate higher traffic
volumes than the current zoning (PO) by 229 vehicle-trips in the AM peak hour and 119 vehicle-
trips in the PM peak hour with a difference in the weekday volume of 1,032 trips.




Table 2

Traffic Generation Summary

Central Par

For

k Drive Property

Existing Proposed Changg i
Zoning — (RA) |- Zoning — (C-2) Traific
' Volumes
Single-Family
ITE Code - Detached Specialty Retail
Housing (210) Center (826)
Size 13 Lots 27,000 Sq. Ft.
AM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 19 248 +229
In 5 119 +114
Out 14 129 +115
PM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 17 136 +119
In 11 76 +65
Out 6 60 +54
‘Weekday Daily Vehicle Trips 161 1,193 +1,032




9

Combining Table 1, which consists of the Grand River Avenue (M-43) properties, and Table 2,
which consists of the Central Park Drive property, provides a total comparison of trip generation
for the existing zoning and the proposed zoning which is summarized in Table 3.

Based on the data, it is projected that the Commercial (C-2) rezoning for the three (3) properties
will generate higher traffic volumes than the existing Residential (RA) and Professional Office

(PO) zoning.

The proposed Commercial (C-2) zoning is projected to generate more traffic by 241 vehicle-trips
in the AM peak hour and 413 vehicle-trips in the PM peak hour with a difference in the weekday

volume of 4,628 trips.

The above comparison between the existing zoning and the proposed zoning is based on a worst
case scenario in which each future use is the maximum number of trip generation for that zoning

category.




10

: Table 3
Rezoned Traffic Generation Summary
Change
Existing Zoning Proposed in
(RA) and (PO) | Zoning (C-2) Traffic
' Volumes
AM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 174 415 +241
In 141 223 +82
Out 33 192 +159
PM Peak Hour Vehicle Trips 182 595 +413 |
In 39 310 +271.
Out 143 285 +142
Weekday Daily Vehicle Trips 1,237 5,865 +4,628




LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) ANALYSIS FOR EXISTING CONDITIONS

The critical intersection defined for this study was analyzed according to the methodologies
published in the most recent edition of the Highway Capacity Manual. The analysis determines
the “Level of Service” of the intersections and is based on factors such as the number and types
of lanes, signal timing, traffic volumes, pedestrian activity, etc. The level of service (LOS) is
defined by average vehicle delay in seconds created by a traffic control device for a given traffic
movement or intersection approach.

Level of Service | ~ Delay per Vehicle (seconds)
Non-Signalized . Signalized

A <10 - <10
B 10to 15 10 to 20
C ~15t025 20 to 35
D 2510 35 35t0 55
E 35t0 50 55 to 80

F > 50 : >80 .

Levels of Service are expressed in a range from “A” to “F,” with “A” being the highest LOS and
“F” representing the lowest LOS. Level of service “D” is considered the minimum acceptable
LOS in an urban area. '

The above table shows the thresholds for Levels of Service “A” through “F” for non-signalized
and signalized intersections, respectively.

All Level of Service computations contained in this report were based upon the Synchro 8
. software package which is approved by the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).
Delay per vehicle includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped delay, and
final acceleration delay.

Traffic counts were conducted for the AM and PM peak hour at the intersection of Grand River
Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/Dobie Road during January, 2015. The Level of Service
analysis for existing traffic at the subject intersection during the AM and PM peak hours is
summarized in Table 4.

The existing Level of Service (LOS) for the AM and PM peak hours for the intersection of
Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/Dobie Road operates at an acceptable LOS
(LOS D or better) for all movements.




12

Table 4

Level of Service (LOS) Summary -
Existing AM and PM Peak Hour Traffic

_ . Weekday Weekday
Location Movement AM Pgak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.

Delay LOS Delay LOS

Grand River Avenue (M- | EB Left 9.7 A 12.9 B

43) and Central Park EB Thru 8.0 A 12.6 B

Drive/ Dobie Road EB Right 2.8 A 2.8 A

| WB Left 8.6 A 10.6 B

WB Thru-Right 10.0 B 8.7 A

NB Left 29.0 C 18.0 B

NB Thru-Right 20.8 C 20.5 C

SB Left 21.1 C 52.3 D

SB Thru 20.3 C 19.3 B

SB Right 1.4 A 3.5 A

Intersection 13.3 B 16.8 B

Note: Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.
LOS = Level of Service




13

SIGHT DISTANCE

A field review shows that there are no sight distance issues with the two (2) properties on Grand
River Avenue (M-43). Although there are no sight distance issues with the property on Central
Park Drive with regard to vertical hills, the future driveway should be located to a point that will
not create a sight distance issue due to a horizontal curve just south of the property.

CONCLUSIONS

A summary of the findings of this ‘study are listed as follows:

- e The traffic volumes generated by the proposed rezoning (C-2) will be higher than the
existing zoning categories, (RA) and (PO).

¢ The existing Level of Service (LOS) for the AM and PM peak hours for the intersection |
- of Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/Dobie Road operates at an
acceptable L.OS (LOS D or better) for all movements.

o There are no sight distance issues on Grand River Avenue (M-43), but due to a horizontal
curve just south of the property on Central Park Drive, any future driveway must be
located to the proper location in accordance with the Ingham County Road Department’s

guidelines.




Feb 09

15 09: i . R . A .
29p .Bll} o : . 3417554681 - ° . P-

L - . 5\ .

- William F. Savage, P.E.
Savage Trafﬁc Engineering, Inc.

Summer Address - . o ~ Winter Address

6401 Timber Ridge Trail s : 6611 Stone River Road, #206
East Lansing, Ml 48823 e-mail: MSUSavage@abl.cpm Bradenton, FL 34203 ‘

 Phone & Fax: 517-339-3933. C : o Phone & Fax: 941-755-4681

February 9, 2015

. Gail Oranchak, Principal Planner
. Charter Township of Meridian

5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, Ml 48846

RE: Rezoning — Grand River @ Central Park

Dear Martha: |

The Traffic Assessment shows that ithé intersection of Grand Rivef Avenue and.
Central Park Drive will operate satisfactorily, with the addition of the proposed
development. : ’

. . ftappears thata roadway will be constructed through the development, from
" Central Park Drive on the Noith, to Grand River (M-43) on the South. Care

should be given to the locatio;nvq'f both entrances, to assure good sight distance -
on Central Park, and adequate spacing with existing road and driveways on -
Grand River. ' - '

Sincerely,

WFSavage

~ William F. Savage, P.E.




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission

FROM: ”4 N @wf?«v%&é

Gail Oranchak, AICP
Principal Planner

DATE: March 5, 2015 .

RE: 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Schedule Change

At the February 23rd meeting, the Planning Commission agreed to hold a work session meeting
on Monday March 16, 2015. The meeting will begin at 6:00 p.m. and it will be held in the
Meridian Area Resource Center (MARC), 4675 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI. A resolution is
attached to revise the 2015 meeting schedule and to add this meeting.

Attachment ’
1. Resolution to approve addition of March 16, 2015 work session meeting

\Planning\GLO\Planning Commission\Calendar\2015\3-5-15 PC Meeting Sched Change Memo.doc




2015 Planning Commission
Meeting Schedule Revision

RESOLUTION
At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 9th
day of March 2015 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by Commissioner and supported by
Commissioner

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission desires to announce the time, date, and place of all
meetings of the Commission pursuant to the provisions of Act 267 of the Public Act of 1976;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission adopted a 2015 meeting schedule; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission wishes to amend the 2015 meeting schedule to
add a work session on March 16, 2014 to begin at 6:00 p.m. in the Meridian Area Resource
Center (MARC) located at 4675 Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan; and

WHEREAS, all regular meetings will continue to begin at 7:00 p.m. and will be held in the
Town Hall Room of the Meridian Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos M| 48864.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby revises the 2015 meeting schedule by adding a
work session on Monday, March 16, 2015.

ADOPTED: YEAS:

NAYS:
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)ss
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

[, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairperson of the Planning Commission of the
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning
Commission held on the 9th day of March 2015.

John Scott-Craig, Chair
Meridian Township Planning Commission

G:\PLANNING\GLOWIlanning Commission\Calendar\Revise PC Sched Resolution 3-9-2015.doc




